NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2023
START TIME: 3:30 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

AGENDA

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1. CALL TO ORDER
A) Roll Call

2. INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A) Consideration and Approval of Disbursements Lists for August, September,
October and November 2023
B) Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports
1) Fresno County: Cash Balances — All Funds
2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget
3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of October 10, 2023

6. FIRE CHIEF REPORT
A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for November 2023
B) Operational Update
C) Summary of Mandatory Overtime

7. MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE
OF THREE APPARATUS FROM FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS

A. Resolution No. 23-12 - A Resolution Of The Governing Body Of North Central Fire
Protection District, Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of A Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement And Separate Equipment Schedules Thereto For The
Acquisition, Financing And Leasing Of Certain Equipment For The Public Benefit
Within The Terms Herein Provided; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of



Other Documents Required In Connection Therewith; And Authorizing The Taking
Of All Other Actions Necessary To The Consummation Of The Transactions
Contemplated By This Resolution.

8. UPDATE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNERS

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Before Closed Session) For any member of the public that
would like to make a comment on the Closed Session item(s)

10.CLOSED SESSION
A) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8
APN: 025200178
Property: Kerman 93630
Agency Negotiation: Chief Tim Henry
Negotiating Parties: Roland C. and Darlene A. Nale
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale
B) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
TITLE: Fire Chief

11.BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS

12.ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, January 25, 2024 at 4:30 p.m.

13.ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND INQUIRIES

At a Board meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item
is ready for discussion. If, at the meeting, you wish to discuss an item, which is not on the agenda, you may indicate your desire
to do so under “Public Comments”. In order to aliow time for all public comments and inquiries, the time for individual comments
may, at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board, be limited to five minutes. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Board
Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the Board, you may contact the District by 5:00 p.m. seven business days prior
to the scheduled Board meeting to so request. If the matter is within the Board's jurisdiction, and the Board has not taken action
or considered the item at a recent meeting, the District may place the item on the agenda. When addressing the Board, you are
requested to come forward to the speaker’s podium, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please
contact the District at 559-878-4550. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to
the physically disabled.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
AUGUST 01, 2023 - AUGUST 31, 2023

TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 08114123 $ 229,241.26

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 08/30/23 219,498.75
9560 DMV DMV Title Transfer Sales Tax 08/08/23 67,788.00
9561 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 08/15/23 62.42
9562 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 08/15/23 31.21
9563 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 08/15/23 65.60
9564 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 08/15/23 28.97
9565 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 08/15/23 153.22
9566 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 08/15/23 159.82
9567 ARBA Life Insurance 08/15/23 185.45
9568 ASI| ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS Dental/Vision Insurance 08/15/23 2,130.95
9569 BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN Legal Service 08/15/23 2,071.99
9570 BARRIOS SITE SERVICES, INC. Portable Restroom Service 08/15/23 135.00
9571 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 08/15/23 100.50
9572 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Employee Reimbursement 08/15/23 68.00
9573 CHERYL CARLSON Financial Consulting 08/15/23 4,972.50
9574 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES Utilities : Water 08/15/23 100.03
9575 CITY OF KERMAN - 4000 Utilities : Water 08/15/23 512.56
9576 CITY OF KERMAN -4001 Utilities : Water 08/15/23 245.95
9577 CLYDE LANSING Consuiting Services 08/15/23 429.00
9578 COMCAST BUSINESS - 6142 Internet & Phone Services 08/15/23 1,614.97
9579 CONSOLIDATED SERVICES, INC. Station Maintenance & Repair 08/15/23 3,5645.00
9580 COOK'S, INC. Radio Maintenance & Repair 08/15/23 4,397.38
9581 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Background Checks 08/15/23 49.00
9582 DGS DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES Legal Services 08/15/23 8,520.00
9583 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS Apparatus Maintenance & Repair 08/15/23 24,595.43
9584 FIRE SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC. County Plan Reviews 08/15/23 2,827.50
9585 FRESNO COUNTY DPH - EMS DIVISION Dispatch Services 08/15/23 15,781.92
9586 FRESNO REPROGRAPHICS Fire Prevention Signage 08/15/23 157.43
9587 Iron Cross Tractor Services LLC Lease Equipment 08/15/23 8,298.52
9588 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership Pension & 457 08/15/23 4,546.62
9589 JOHN NIPP Station 54 Rent 08/15/23 3,400.00
9580 JORGENSEN COMPANY, INC. Fire Extingisher Maintenace 08/15/23 1,443.41
9591 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 08/15/23 799.00
9592 LOPERENA ANTENNA SITES Tower Rental 08/15/23 1,853.00
9593 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 08/15/23 901.00
9594 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 08/15/23 171.46
9595 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 4900 Utilities : Trash 08/15/23 95.96
9596 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL 9100 Utilities : Trash 08/15/23 176.56
9597 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 08/15/23 2,400.00
9598 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 08/15/23 174.39
9599 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control Service 08/15/23 75.00
9600 PARS Membership Pension & 457 08/15/23 3,113.77
9601 PG&E 601-6 Utilites : Gas & Electric 08/15/23 2,360.34
9602 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer Support & Maintenance 08/15/23 1,541.50
9603 REPUBLIC Utilities : Trash Disposal 08/15/23 108.35
9604 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 08/15/23 2,166.39
9605 ROTARY CLUB OF KERMAN Membership & Subscriptions 08/15/23 291.00
9606 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 08/15/23 799.00
9607 SEBASTIAN 207-6 Phone & Long Distance 08/15/23 103.39



TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

9608 SEBASTIAN 325-8 Phone & Long Distance 08/15/23 63.51
9609 SIERRA DATA MANAGEMENT Storage of Scanned Documents 08/15/23 58.52
9610 STREAMLINE Web Maintenance 08/15/23 497.00
9611 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Reimbursement Health Ins 08/15/23 1,648.00
9612 U.S. BANK CAL-CARD Credit Card Payment 08/15/23 9,611.38
9613 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Plan Contributions 08/15/23 53,164.42
9614 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS Prior Board Member Insurance 08/15/23 455.94
9615 FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES Health Insurance 08/15/23 53,103.03
9617 PETTY CASH Petty Cash Reimbursement 08/31/23 97.39
9618 ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. Apparatus Equipment 08/31/23 9,617.88
9619 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 08/31/23 62.42
9620 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 08/31/23 62.42
9621 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 08/31/23 65.60
9622 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 08/31/23 86.91
9623 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 08/31/23 229.83
9624 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 08/31/23 159.82
9625 AT&T MOBILITY Phone & Long Distance Service 08/31/23 1,492.38
9626 BIOLA CSD Utilities: Water 08/31/23 192.79
9627 BLACK MOUNTAIN SOFTWARE Accounting Softaware - Annual 08/31/23 257.00
9628 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 08/31/23 100.50
9629 CENTER STATE FENCE INC. Fence Project 08/31/23 24,602.81
9630 CHERYL CARLSON Financial Consulting 08/31/23 3,493.75
9631 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Employee Reimbursement - Training 08/31/23 980.54
9632 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES Utilities : Water 08/31/23 116.90
9633 COMCAST BUSINESS Internet & Phone Services 08/31/23 208.39
9634 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Inspections 08/31/23 770.00
9635 FASTENAL COMPANY Station Supplies 08/31/23 2,010.78
9636 FAUSTINO LOPEZ Lawn & Garden Service 08/31/23 450.00
9637 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS Apparatus Maintenance & Repair 08/31/23 31,828.69
9638 Fire Districts Association of California Membership Dues 08/31/23 245.00
9639 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER Property Tax 08/31/23 910.00
9640 Grandmark Service Company Station Maintenance & Repair 08/31/23 4,000.00
9641 Iron Cross Tractor Services LLC Lease Equipment 08/31/23 5,108.80
9642 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership Pension & 457 08/31/23 4,374.49
9643 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Employee Reimbursement 08/31/23 99.99
9644 L.N. CURTIS & SONS Turnout 08/31/23 25,358.08
9645 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE Legal Services 08/31/23 1,360.00
9646 METRO UNIFORM Uniforms 08/31/23 381.41
9647 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Empioyee Reimbursement 08/31/23 216.73
9648 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 08/31/23 2,750.00
9649 Nwestco LLC APCD Compliance Testing 08/31/23 3,964.93
9650 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 08/31/23 349.29
9651 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control Service 08/31/23 168.99
9652 PG&E 217-2 Utilites : Gas & Electric 08/31/23 3,988.48
9653 PG&E 494-7 Utilites : Gas & Electric 08/31/23 2,655.92
9654 QUINN CO. Equipment Maintenance & Repair 08/31/23 1,390.17
9655 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer Support & Maintenance 08/31/23 1,617.00
9656 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 08/31/23 6,478.60
9657 SLUMBERGER Station Supplies & Maintenance 08/31/23 920.13
9658 SPARKLETTS Drinking Water 08/31/23 804.49
96569 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY Life & LTD Insurance 08/31/23 2,030.00
9660 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSC. VOYAGER Fuel Cards 08/31/23 4,582.40
9661 U.S. BANK CAL-CARD Credit Card Payment 08/31/23 17,043.70



TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
9662 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Plan Contributions 08/31/23 52,686.74
9663 UBEO WEST, LLC Copier Maintenance & Repair 08/31/23 402.17
9664 UNWIRED BROADBAND, LLC Radio Communication 08/31/23 9.98
9665 VERIZON Toughbooks Data Plan 08/31/23 658.52
9666 VERIZON WIRELESS Toughbooks Data Plan 08/31/23 17.95
9667 WALLY'S TIRE & WHEEL Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 08/31/23 1,235_.62
Total $ 965,576.65

Board Action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as presented for the
total amount of $965,576.65 for August 2023.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
SEPTEMBER 01, 2023 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

PAYROLL ~ Employee Payroll 09/15/23 § 208,407.43

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 09/29/23 197,014.57
9668 ACTION TOWING Apparatus Maintenance & Repair 09/15/23 675.00
9669 ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. Apparatus Equipment 09/15/23 11,233.14
9670 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 09/15/23 62.42
9671 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 09/15/23 93.63
9672 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 09/15/23 98.40
9673 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 09/15/23 57.94
9674 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 09/15/23 153.22
9675 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 09/15/23 239.73
9676 ARBA Life Insurance 09/15/23 225.14
9677 ASI ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS Dental/Vision Insurance 09/15/23 2,338.35
9678 AT&T MOBILITY Phone & Long Distance Service 09/15/23 1,492.38
9679 BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN Legal Service 09/15/23 650.44
9680 BARRIOS SITE SERVICES, INC. Portable Restroom Service 09/15/23 895.00
9681 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 09/15/23 100.50
9682 CHERYL CARLSON Financial Consulting 09/15/23 4,923.75
9683 CITY OF FRESNO - OTHER Utilities : Water 09/15/23 102.36
9684 CITY OF KERMAN - 4000 Utilities : Water 09/15/23 497.92
9685 CITY OF KERMAN -4001 Utilities : Water 09/15/23 235.79
9686 CLYDE LANSING Consulting Services 09/15/23 1,749.00
9687 COMCAST BUSINESS - 6142 Internet & Phone Services 09/15/23 1,614.97
9688 CONNER'S APPLIANCE Station Maintenance & Repair 09/15/23 148.00
9689 COOK'S, INC. Radio Maintenance & Repair 09/15/23 1,401.88
9690 COUNTY OF FRESNO - POB Pension Obligation Bond 09/15/23 28,354.27
9691 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Inspections 09/15/23 3,475.00
9692 DONNOE & ASSOCIATES, INC. Recruitment Testing Services 09/15/23 2,695.00
9693 ER SCOTT BAKER Fire Investigation Consultant 09/15/23 4,876.00
9694 FAILSAFE TESTING, LLC Apparatus Annual Inspection 09/15/23 1,100.00
9695 FASTENAL COMPANY Station Supplies 09/15/23 241.07
9696 FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES Medical Insurance Premium 09/15/23 45,899.28
9697 FRESNO COUNTY DPH - EMS DIVISION Dispatch Services 09/15/23 15,781.92
9698 FRESNO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT Equipment Graphics 09/15/23 2,968.44
9699 GILL CHEVROLET Vehicle Maintenance & Repair 09/15/23 271.53
9700 INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY Electrical Services 09/15/23 1,925.20
9701 Iron Cross Tractor Services LLC Lease Equipment 09/15/23 8,004.95
9702 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership Pension & 457 09/15/23 4,267.03
9703 JOHN NIPP Station 54 Rent 09/15/23 3,400.00
9704 JORGENSEN COMPANY, INC. Fire Extingisher Maintenace 09/15/23 220.09
9705 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health ins 09/15/23 799.00
9706 LEXIPOL LLC Annual Software Fees 09/15/23 9,426.23
9707 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE Legal Services 09/15/23 1,062.00
9708 LOPERENA ANTENNA SITES Tower Rental 09/15/23 1,853.00
9709 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 09/15/23 901.00
9710 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 09/15/23 171.46
9711 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 2400 Utilities : Trash 09/15/23 479.75
9712 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 4900 Utilities : Trash 09/15/23 89.74
9713 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL 9100 Utilities : Trash 09/15/23 176.56
9714 NBS Consulting Services 09/15/23 547.50



TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

9715 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 09/15/23 2,300.00
9716 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 09/15/23 132.00
9717 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control Service 09/15/23 127.99
9718 PG&E 601-6 Utilites : Gas & Electric 09/15/23 2,377 91
9719 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer Support & Maintenance ~ 09/15/23 2,746.00
9720 REPUBLIC Utilities : Trash Disposal 09/15/23 142.85
9721 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 09/15/23 2,653.01
9722 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 09/15/23 901.00
9723 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR CONTROL DIST. Annual Permit 09/15/23 143.00
9724 SEBASTIAN 207-6 Phone & Long Distance 09/15/23 103.39
9725 SEBASTIAN 325-8 Phone & Long Distance 09/15/23 63.51
9726 SIERRA DATA MANAGEMENT Storage of Scanned Documents 09/15/23 58.52
9727 SIERRA HR PARTNERS, INC. HR Consultant 09/15/23 700.00
9728 STREAMLINE Web Maintenance 09/15/23 497.00
9729 TARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING LLC Computer Software 09/15/23 1,982.75
9730 TIMOTHY HENRY Reimbursement Health Ins 09/15/23 1,648.00
9731 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSC. VOYAGER Fuel Cards 09/15/23 4,997 51
9732 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Plan Contributions 09/15/23 50,662.69
9733 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS Prior Board Member Insurance 09/15/23 455.94
9734 UNWIRED BROADBAND, LLC Radio Communication 09/15/23 9.98
9735 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY, INC. Station Supplies & Mainteneance 09/15/23 163.51
9736 WALLY'S TIRE & WHEEL Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 09/15/23 95.18
9738 Caliber Collision Vehicle Repair 09/19/23 11,206.52
9739 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 09/29/23 28.97
9740 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 09/29/23 153.22
9741 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 09/29/23 159.82
9742 AT&T Phone & Long Distance Service 09/29/23 680.18
9743 BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN Legal Service 09/29/23 1,564.83
9744 BETTER FLOORING Station Maintenance & Repair 09/29/23 3,682.11
9745 BIOLA CSD Utilities: Water 09/29/23 209.64
9746 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 09/29/23 100.50
9747 COMCAST BUSINESS Internet & Phone Services 09/29/23 222.39
9748 COOK'S, INC. Radio Maintenance & Repair 09/29/23 7,432.09
9749 COUNTY OF FRESNO - POB Pension Obligation Bond 09/29/23 28,354.27
9750 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Inspections 09/29/23 3,693.75
9751 DGS DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES Legal Services 09/29/23 4,526.25
9752 FedEx Shipping 09/29/23 43.50
9753 GCBUILDERS CORP. Station Maintenance & Repair 09/29/23 6,250.00
9754 GENERAL AUTOMOTIVE Apparatus Maintenance & Repair 09/29/23 1,517.26
9755 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership Pension & 457 09/29/23 4,267.03
9756 L.N. CURTIS & SONS Turnout 09/29/23 3,643.90
9757 METRO UNIFORM Uniforms 09/29/23 5,753.06
9758 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 09/29/23 2,650.00
9759 NFPA Membership Dues 09/29/23 175.00
9760 PARS Membership Pension & 457 09/29/23 3,113.77
9761 PG&E 217-2 Utilites : Gas & Electric 09/29/23 3,239.42
9762 PG&E 494-7 Utilites : Gas & Electric 09/29/23 2,209.47
9763 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer Support & Maintenance 09/29/23 957.00
9764 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 09/29/23 3,432.28
9765 SDRMA Workers Compnesation 09/29/23 49,391.80
9766 SPARKLETTS Drinking Water 09/29/23 887.93
9767 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY Life & LTD Insurance 09/29/23 2,030.00



TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
9768 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Plan Contributions 09/29/23 51,296.81
9769 UBEO WEST, LLC Copier Maintenance & Repair 09/29/23 507.62
9770 Winner Chevrolet Vehicle Purchase-Prevention 09/29/23 37,591.98

Total $ 887,231.09

Board Action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as presented for the

total amount of $887,231.09 for September 2023.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
OCTOBER 01, 2023 - OCTOBER 31, 2023

TOTAL

CKi# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 10112/23  $ 202,216.44

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 10/30/23 182,733.61
9771 SEBASTIAN NCFPD Microwave System Upgrade 10/05/23 43,927.56
9772 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 10/13/23 93.63
9773 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 10/13/23 124.84
9774 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 10/13/23 98.40
9775 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 10/13/23 115.88
9776 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 10/13/23 163.22
9777 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 10/13/23 159.82
9778 ARBA Life Ins.& Voluntary 10/13/23 141.98
9779 ATA&T Phone & Long Distance Service 10/13/23 52.46
9780 BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN Legal Services 10/13/23 1,335.72
9781 BARRIOS SITE SERVICES, INC. Portable restroom service 10/13/23 800.00
9782 BASILEA CONSULTING Fire Inspection Consultants 10/13/23 360.00
9783 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 10/13/23 100.50
9784 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Employee reimbursement - Flex 10/13/23 1,176.77
9785 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES Utilities:Water 10/13/23 269.82
9786 CITY OF KERMAN - 4000 Utilites: Water 10/13/23 523.54
9787 CITY OF KERMAN -4001 Utilites: Water 10/13/23 214.20
9788 CLYDE LANSING Consulting Services 10/13/23 2,310.00
9789 COMCAST BUSINESS - 6142 Intemet & Phone Service 10/13/23 1,618.97
9790 COOK'S, INC. Radio Maintenance & Repair 10/13/23 410.00
9791 COUNTY OF FRESNO - POB Pension Obligation Bond 10/13/23 28,354.27
9792 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Inspections 10/13/23 260.00
9793 FAILSAFE TESTING, LLC Apparatus Maint. 10/13/23 3,470.18
9794 FASTENAL COMPANY Station supplies 10/13/23 1,214.99
9795 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS Apparatus Maint. 10/13/23 30,302.72
9796 FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES Health Insurance 10/13/23 66,418.00
9797 FUTURE FORD Repair F550 VIN3004 10/13/23 130.00
9798 GILL CHEVROLET Apparatus Maint. #3003 10/13/23 1,654.59
9799 JOHN HANCOCK USA Pars 457 Employer 10/13/23 4,282.96
9800 JOHN NIPP Station #54 Lease - May 10/13/23 3,400.00
9801 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 10/13/23 799.00
9802 LOPERENA ANTENNA SITES Tower Rental - May Rent 10/13/23 1,853.00
9803 MAC'S EQUIPMENT small engine repairs 10/13/23 48.55
9804 METRO UNIFORM Haix airpower XR1 Boots 10/13/23 381.41
9805 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 10/13/23 901.00
9806 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 10/13/23 171.46
9807 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 2400 Trash Disposal 10/13/23 487.84
9808 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 4900 Utilities: Trash 10/13/23 89.74
9809 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL 9100 Utilities: Trash 10/13/23 176.56
9810 NBS Consulting Services 10/13/23 861.25
9811 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 10/13/23 2,850.00
9812 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS New Hire Physicals 10/13/23 4,108.00
9813 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 10/13/23 430.02
9814 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control Service 10/13/23 47.99
9815 PARC ENVIRONMENTAL Dispose of firefighting foam 10/13/23 1,805.00
9816 PG&E 601-6 Utilities 10/13/23 7,355.72
9817 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer support & maint. 10/13/23 2,012.50
9818 REPUBLIC Utilities: Trash 10/13/23 114.15



TOTAL

CKi# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

9819 ROBERT GONZALEZ Employee reimbursement Flex 10/13/23 812.39
9820 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 10/13/23 5,292.00
9821 BOARD MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 10/13/23 901.00
9822 SEBASTIAN 207-6 Phone & long Distance 10/13/23 103.39
9823 SEBASTIAN 325-8 Phone & Long Distance 10/13/23 63.51
9824 SIERRA DATA MANAGEMENT Storage of files 10/13/23 58.52
9825 SIERRA HR PARTNERS, INC. HR consultants 10/13/23 125.00
9826 SLUMBERGER Station maint 10/13/23 1,864.32
9827 STREAMLINE Web Maintenance 10/13/23 497.00
9828 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Reimbursement Healith Ins 10/13/23 1,648.00
9829 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSC. VOYAGER Fuel Cards 10/13/23 4,689.80
9830 U.S. BANK CAL-CARD Credit Card Payment 10/13/23 12,824.54
9831 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Plan Contributions 10/13/23 53,670.12
9832 UNITED HEALTH CENTERS Physical Exam 10/13/23 6,800.00
9833 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS Prior Board Membership 10/13/23 455.94
9834 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY, INC. Station Supplies & Mainteneance 10/13/23 441.07
9835 VERIZON Toughbooks data plan 10/13/23 646.17
9836 VERIZON WIRELESS Cell Phone Operations 10/13/23 18.30
9837 WESTERN EXTRICATION SPECIALISTS, INC. Apparatus Maint. 10/13/23 685.00
9838 EMPLOYEE PAYROLL Final Check 10/31/23 2,089.98
9839 A R TRANSMISSION INC. 2019 Chevy Silv.1500 10/31/23 5,549.73
9840 ACTION TOWING Towed Chevy to ART 10/31/23 175.00
9841 ALERT-ALL Promotional ltems 10/31/23 14,643.52
9842 ALLIANCE LAUNDRY SYSTEMS DISTRIBUTION LLC Station Maint. 10/31/23 1,875.49
9843 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 10/31/23 124.84
9844 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 10/31/23 93.63
9845 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 10/31/23 65.60
9846 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 10/31/23 57.94
9847 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 10/31/23 153.22
9848 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 10/31/23 159.82
9849 AT&T MOBILITY - FIRSTNET Phone & long distance service 10/31/23 1,495.14
9850 BIOLA CSD Utilities: WATER 10/31/23 196.94
9851 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 10/31/23 100.50
9852 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES Utilities 10/31/23 158.94
9853 COMCAST BUSINESS Intemet & Phone Services 10/31/23 222.39
9854 CSDA MEMBER SERVICES RMS- Annual Membership Dues 10/31/23 9,050.00
9855 CSFA CSFA Annual Membership 10/31/23 6,120.00
9856 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Inspctions 10/31/23 5,275.00
9857 DUNN - EDWARDS CORPORATION Station Supplies 10/31/23 92.59
9858 FASTENAL COMPANY Station Supplies 10/31/23 1,337.28
9859 FAUSTINO LOPEZ Garden Service 10/31/23 450.00
9860 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS Apparatus Maintenance & Repai 10/31/23 31,265.21
9861 FRESNO COUNTY DPH - EMS DIVISION Dispatch Services 10/31/23 15,781.92
9862 FRESNO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT Equipment Graphics 10/31/23 4,229.22
9863 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership Pension & 457 10/31/23 4,423.02
9864 JORGENSEN COMPANY, INC. Fire Extingisher Maintenace 10/31/23 543.75
9865 LC SERVICES Station Maint. 10/31/23 186.00
9866 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE Legal Service 10/31/23 4,838.00
9867 MAC'S EQUIPMENT vehicle maint. 10/31/23 392.67
9868 METRO UNIFORM HAIX Airpower XR1 Boots C 10/31/23 762.82
9869 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 10/31/23 3,000.00
9870 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 10/31/23 602.72
9871 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control Service 10/31/23 141.97



TOTAL

CKi# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
9872 OVERHEAD DOOR, INC. Door Repair & Maint. 10/31/23 432.00
9873 PETTY CASH Reimbursement to Petty Cash 10/31/23 62.97
9874 PG&E 217-2 Utilities 10/31/23 2,319.61
9875 PG&E 494-7 Utilities : Gas 10/31/23 1,411.18
9876 QUINN CO. Equipment Maintenance & Repair 10/31/23 623.83
9877 RAUL HERRERA ECN POLYGRAPH & INVESTIGATION Pre-Employment Polygraphs 10/31/23 250.00
9878 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer Support & Maintenance 10/31/23 1,205.00
9879 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 10/31/23 3,145.47
9880 ROTARY CLUB OF KERMAN Quartly Ciub Dues 10/31/23 291.00
9881 SPARKLETTS Drinking Water 10/31/23 689.02
9882 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY Life & LTD insurance 10/31/23 2,175.00
9883 THE LEADERSHIP COLLABORATIVE, LLC LLeadership Training 10/31/23 21,000.00
9884 U.S. BANK CAL-CARD Credit Card Payment 10/31/23 14,824.22
9885 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Contributions 10/31/23 54,727.48
9886 UBEO WEST, LLC Copier Maintenance & Repair 10/31/23 390.96
9887 UNWIRED BROADBAND, LLC Radio Communications 10/31/23 9.98
9888 VERIZON Toughbooks data plan 10/31/23 646.17
9889 VERIZON WIRELESS Cell phone operations 10/31/23 18.35
9890 VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Communication Radio 10/31/23 488.36
Total $ 914,879.78

Board Action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as presented for the

total amount of $914,879.78 for October 2023.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
NOVEMBER 01, 2023 - NOVEMBER 30, 2023

TOTAL
CKi# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

PAYROLL Employee Payroll 11/14/23 $ 199,690.01
PAYROLL Employee Payroll 11/17/23 1,067.14
PAYROLL Employee Payroll 11/29/23 199,080.36

9892 EMPLOYEE PAYROLL Final Check 11/03/23 1,421.82
9894 ALERT-ALL Promotional items 2,838.80
9895 ARAMARK, INC - 3595 Linen Service 62.42
9896 ARAMARK, INC - 3596 Linen Service 62.42
9897 ARAMARK, INC - 3597 Linen Service 98.40
9898 ARAMARK, INC - 3598 Linen Service 86.91
9899 ARAMARK, INC - 4172 Linen Service 153.22
9900 ARAMARK, INC - 4301 Linen Service 159.82
9901 ARBA Life Ins. & Voluntary life Ins. 215.69
9902 ASI| ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS Dental/Vision insurance 2,618.00
9903 AT&T Phone & Long distance service 55.87
9904 AT&T MOBILITY - FIRSTNET Phone & Long Distance service 1,495.14
9905 BARRIOS SITE SERVICES, INC. Portable restroom service 800.00
9906 BASILEA CONSULTING Fire Inspection Consultants 1,200.00
9907 BAUER COMPRESSORS, INC. SCBA Repair 806.42
9908 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT Employee Distribution 100.50
9909 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES Utilities 110.40
9910 CITY OF KERMAN - 4000 Utilities 597.64
9911 CITY OF KERMAN -4001 Utilities 132.92
9912 CLYDE LANSING Consulting services 1.419.00
9913 COMCAST BUSINESS - 6142 Internet & Phone Service 1,618.97
9914 CONSOLIDATED SERVICES, INC. Repair to A/C 14,670.00
9915 COUNTY OF FRESNO - POB November 2023 28,354.27
9916 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC Fire Plan Review 1,170.00
9917 ELMER'S SEPTIC SERVICE Septic Tank pumped 460.00
9918 ESO SOLUTIONS INC. ER - Fire Package 453.69
9919 FASTENAL COMPANY Station supplies 397.72
9920 FIRE SAFETY SOLUTIONS INC. Plan Reviews 2,372.50
9921 FRANK VISCUSO Leadership Development 500.00
9922 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE Zachary Emmerling/registration 89.00
9923 FRESNO COUNTY DPH - EMS DIVISION Dispatch Services 15,781.92
9924 FRESNO COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Property Tax 312-240-05 53.34
9925 FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES Health Insurance 73,585.04
9926 GILL CHEVROLET Vehicle Maint. & Repair 683.35
9927 INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY Electrical Services 2,892.50
9928 JOHN HANCOCK USA Pars 457 4,672.32
9929 JOHN NIPP Station #54 Lease 3,400.00
9930 JORGENSEN COMPANY, INC. Fire Extinguisher Maint. 1,749.63
9931 BOARD REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 799.00
9932 L.N. CURTIS & SONS Apparatus Equipment 12,309.04
9933 LOPERENA ANTENNA SITES Tower Rental 1,853.00
9934 MAC'S EQUIPMENT Station supplies 1,042.45
9935 BOARD REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 901.00
9936 BOARD REIMBURSEMENT Board Reimbursement Health Ins 171.46



CKi# VENDOR

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL
DATE AMOUNT

9937 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 2400
9938 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL - 4900
9939 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL 9100
9940 NATIONAL FIREFIGHTER CORP
9941 NBS

9942 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260

9943 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS
9944 OVERHEAD DOOR, INC.

9945 PG&E 601-6

9946 PRICELESS KREATIONS, INC.
9947 QUINN CO.

9948 REAL-TIME, INC.

9949 REPUBLIC

9950 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT
9951 ROBERT V. JENSEN

9952 BOARD REIMBURSEMENT

9953 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR CONTROL DIST.

9954 SEBASTIAN 207-6

9955 SEBASTIAN 325-8

9956 SIERRA DATA MANAGEMENT
9957 SIERRA HR PARTNERS, INC.
9958 SLUMBERGER

9959 SPARKLETTS

9960 STREAMLINE

9961 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT
9962 U.S. BANK PARS

9963 UNITED HEALTH CENTERS
9964 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS
9965 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY, INC.
9966 YOURMEMBERSHIP.COM, INC.
9967 EMPOLYEE PAYROLL

9968 EMPOLYEE PAYROLL

9969 ACTION TOWING

9970 ARAMARK, INC - 3595

9971 ARAMARK, INC - 3596

9972 ARAMARK, INC - 3597

9973 ARAMARK, INC - 3598

9974 ARAMARK, INC - 4172

9975 ARAMARK, INC - 4301

9976 BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN
9977 BIOLA CSD

9978 CAL FIRE

9979 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
9980 CHRISTOPHER W. KING

9981 CITY OF FRESNO - UTILITIES
9982 COMCAST BUSINESS

9983 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC
9984 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
9985 DUNN - EDWARDS CORPORATION
9986 EDD

9987 VOID

Trash Disposal

Trash Disposal

Trash Disposal

Apparatus equip -Acct; U6712
Consulting Services

Union Dues

Employee Physicals

Door repair & maint.

Utilities

Employee Uniform

Generator Service

Computer support & maint.
Utilities : Trash

Employee Reimbursement flex
Fuel

Board Reimbursement Health Ins
Annual Permit to operate
Phone & Long Distance
Phone & Long Distance
Storage of files

HR Consulting

Station Maint.

Drinking Water

Web Maintenance
Reimbursement Health Ins
Pension Contributions
Physical Exam

Prior Board Health Insurance
Station Supplies & Maintenance
Fire Eng- Personnel SP
FINAL CHECK

FINAL CHECK

Apparatus Maintenance & Repair
Linen Service

Linen Service

Linen Service

Linen Service

Linen Service

Linen Service

Legal Services

Utilities

Training : Vehicle Tech
Employee Distribution
Company Office 2A

Utilities : Water

Internet & Phone Services
Fire inspections

Fingerprints

Station maintenance
0456560208 Payroli Tax Liab
VOID

487.84
104.70
176.56
7,199.99
595.00
3,000.00
1,170.00
1,979.58
1,213.90
1,872.97
4,319.18
1,347.00
128.51
295.00
4,767.69
901.00
286.00
104.55
64.16
58.52
125.00
191.23
678.04
497.00
1,648.00
55,559.51
4,800.00
455.94
395.22
199.00
3,730.55
3,612.52
575.00
62.42
62.42
65.60
28.97
76.61
79.91
954.80
189.12
700.00
100.50
1,840.00
91.57
222.39
5,202.50
147.00
561.09
239.72
0.00



TOTAL

CKi# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
9988 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS Apparatus Maint. VIN2587 4,157.88
9989 FIRE SPECIALTIES Fire Investigation 538.44
9990 INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY Electrical Services 191.10
9991 JOHN HANCOCK USA Membership 457 4,652.32
9992 L.N. CURTIS & SONS Turnout 1,143.69
9993 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE Legal Council 1,150.50
9994 METRO UNIFORM HAIX Airpower XR1 Boots C 381.41
9995 EMPLOYMENT REIMBURSEMENT Uniform Reimbursement 470.00
9996 NCPFA, LOCAL 5260 Union Dues 3,000.00
9997 NICK ESQUEDA SFT Aerial Ops 1,800.00
9998 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Office Supplies 245.98
9999 ORKIN, LLC Pest Control service 150.98

10000 PG&E 217-2 Utilities 1,968.20

10001 PG&E 494-7 Utilities 1,395.94

10002 REAL-TIME, INC. Computer support & Maint. 165.00

10003 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT Employee Reimbursement flex 361.54

10004 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 3,135.16

10005 SEBBASTIAN NCFPD Microwave upgrade 43,927.56

10006 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY Life & LTD Insurance 2,175.00

10007 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSC. VOYAGER Fuel 5,523.19

10008 U.S. BANK PARS Pension Contributions 55,631.94

10009 UNWIRED BROADBAND, LLC Radio Communications 9.98

10010 VERIZON WIRELESS Cell phone operations 18.35

10011 VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Communication Radio 1,603.58

10012 FASTENAL COMPANY Station Supplies 3,774.75

10013 VOID VOID 0.00

10014 FRESNO COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Property Tax 326-160-10 3,171.84

10015 EMPLOYEE PAYROLL Final Check 2,572.06

Total $ 840,733.27

Board Action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as presented for the
total amount of $840,733.27 for November 2023.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE * ROTECTION DISTRICT

FUND CASK-<ALANCES
CAPITAL SICK RESERVE RISK
FUND CASH BALANCES GENERAL EQUIPMENT BUILDING EMS LEAVE FUND CONTINGENCY TOTAL OF ALL
FUNDS
FUND CLASS # 10000 20000 41400 41410 41420 41430 41440
Beg Balance 8/1/2023 $ 2,731,701.33 $4,397,732.81 $325404.39 $ 672,601.66 $35729.49 $ 354,358.23 $ 124,094.37 $ 8,641,622.28

Ending Balance 11/30/2023  $ 1,339,902.05 § 3,285,503.03 $327,586.80 $ 698,873.49 $35,965.40 $ 356,698.00 $ 12491375 $ 6,169,442.52




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
'ND MAINTENANCE

BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2023 - JUNE 2024

SERVICES, SUPPLII

Fiscal Year . August,
Services, Supplies and Maintenance 2023 - 2024 Activity thru September, YTD Total % of Budget Bud_ge_t il B.u c_lget
Budget July October & Used Remaining Remaining
November_

County of Fresno - Dispatch Services 189,400 $ 15,781.92 $ 63,127.68 $ 78,909.60 41.7% $ 110,490.40 58.3%
Pension Obligation Bonds 340,800 28,354.27 113,417.08 141,771.35 41.6% 199,028.65 58.4%
FCERA Payment Financing 417,400 208,179.60 0.00 208,179.60 49.9% 209,220.40 50.1%
Apparatus Financing Payment 49,200 49,160.54 0.00 49,160.54 99.9% 39.46 0.1%
Station 54 Lease 40,800 3,400.00 13,600.00 17,000.00 4M1.7% 23,800.00 58.3%
Property, Auto & Liability Insurance 160,000 158,999.00 0.00 158,999.00 99.4% 1,001.00 0.6%
Personal Protective Equipment 100,000 14,051.05 43,496.99 57,548.04 57.5% 42,451.96 42.5%
Communications 132,000 22,791.05 40,631.59 63,422.64 48.0% 68,577.36 52.0%
Apparatus Maintenance 370,000 23,715.37 170,419.89 194,135.26 52.5% 175,864.74 47.5%
Station Equipment Maintenance 10,000 0.00 4,680.01 4,680.01 46.8% 5,319.99 53.2%
Computers & Office Equipment 112,200 9,415.92 35,873.68 45,289.60 40.4% 66,910.40 59.6%
Facility Maintenance 185,000 19,343.96 55,612.57 74,956.53 40.5% 110,043.47 59.5%
Station Supplies 68,900 3,172.24 34,648.30 37,820.54 54.9% 31,079.46 45.1%
Fuel 163,000 13,942.40 57,620.81 71,563.21 43.9% 91,436.79 56.1%
Utilities 100,000 24,549.95 39,511.13 64,061.08 64.1% 35,938.92 35.9%
Legal & Accounting 124,100 17,573.88 57,863.33 75,437.21 60.8% 48,662.79 39.2%
Professional Services 206,300 29,374.74 64,551.97 93,926.71 45.4% 112,873.29 54.6%
Membership Dues & Subscriptions 19,100 599.99 16,072.01 16,672.00 87.3% 2,428.00 12.7%
Travel Expenses 45,000 481.00 1,682.15 2,163.15 4.8% 42,836.85 95.2%
Training 335,400 2,967.42 72,053.53 75,020.95 22.4% 260,379.05 77.6%
Health, Fitness and Safety 40,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 40,000.00 100.0%
Office Supplies 24,300 1,928.55 10,278.56 12,207.11 50.2% 12,092.89 49.8%
Food 6,000 205.58 1,383.27 1,588.85 26.5% 4,411.15 73.5%
Fire Prevention 125,000 9,622.17 44,959.17 54,581.34 43.7% 70,418.66 56.3%
Apparatus Tools, Equipment & Hose 155,000 22,302.03 120,503.79 142,805.82 92.1% 12,194.18 7.9%
SCBA Masks & Maintenance 84,000 2,377.31 1,093.35 3,470.66 4.1% 80,529.34 95.9%

Totals $ 3,603,400.00 $ 682,289.94 $ 1,063,080.86 $ 1,745,370.80 48.4% $ 1,858,029.20 51.6%

5th month of fiscal year - average = 42%




NORTH CENTRAL FIR"

*OTECTION DISTRICT

WAGES, BENEFITS, POB »~0 FUND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2023 - JUNE 2024

Fiscal Year —  iivity thru SeA l:grl:f:;r %of Budget  Budget % of Budget
Wages, Benefits and POB 2023 - 2024 Ju}’y o:’tober 2 YTD Total ° Us: , ge Rem"aif:ng Ezmai“nig;
Budget November

Current Board Wages and Benefits $ 50,458 $ 3,94885 $ 15,848.45 $ 19,797.30 39.2% $ 30,660.70 60.8%

Prior Board Member Benefits 5,600 474.25 1,850.76 2,325.01 41.5% 3,274.99 58.5%

Surviving Spouse Benefits 11,600 946.77 3,778.08 4,724.85 40.7% 6,875.15 59.3%

Employee Wages and Benefits 9,564,859 1,183,672.99 2,498,601.99 3,682,274.98 38.5% 5,882,584.02 61.5%

Total Wages and Benefits $ 9,632,517 $ 1,189,042.86 $ 2,520,079.28 $ 3,709,122.14 38.5% $ 5,923,394.86 61.5%
Fund Expenditures per Budget

Weed Abatement $ 10,600 $ 3,300.00 $ 21,427.27 $ 24,727.27 233.3% $ (14127.27) -133.3%

CDBG Off-Road Water Tender 600,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 600,000.00 100.0%

Apparatus Sales Tax - 0.00 67,788.00 67,788.00 (67,788.00)

Misc Capital Improvement Projects 20,000 0.00 14,670.00 14,670.00 73.4% 5,330.00 26.7%
Station 55 Improvements 89,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 89,000.00 100.0%
NCFPD Microwave Upgrades 0.00 131,737.68 131,737.68 (131,737.68)

Stations 57 & 58 Gates/Fencing 50,000 0.00 23,472.81 23,472.81 46.9% 26,527.19 53.1%
Station 59 Renovations 100,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 100,000.00 100.0%
American Ambulance Qtrs Renovations 50,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 50,000.00 100.0%

Two Fire Prevention Vehicles 85,000 0.00 83,060.22 83,060.22 97.7% 1,939.78 2.3%

Total Fund Expenditures $ 1,004,600 $ 3,300.00 $ 342,155.98 $ 345,455.98 34.4% $ 659,144.02 65.6%




NORTH CENTRAL FIRF " "OTECTION DISTRICT
REVENUE AND | _ .BURSEMENTS
BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2023 - JUNE 2024

Fiscal Year SeA l:grl:‘s:;r % of Budget  Budget
Revenue 2023-2024  Activity thru July O:tober 2 YTD Total °Rece:‘ve% Rer:ai‘:“;'ng %
Budget November
Property Taxes $ 11,966,200 $ - $ 123,738.56 $ 123,738.56 1% 11,842,461.44 99%
Interest (County Investment Pool) 189,200 0.00 2,036.76 2,036.76 1% 187,163.24 99%
Fees, Permits and Plan Checks 96,800 19,430.25 33,305.86 52,736.11 54% 44,063.89 46%
Ambulance Station Lease 20,300 0.00 15,041.19 15,041.19 74% 5,258.81 26%
Tower Rental 31,400 2,753.00 11,012.00 13,765.00 44% 17,635.00 56%
FCC ISA/Training Reimbursement 189,600 0.00 21,431.58 21,431.58 11% 168,168.42 89%
Reimbursement for Priority One Calls 8,000 11,444.18 0.00 11,444.18 143% -3,444.18 -43%
Miscellaneous Income 23,500 5,992.83 11,623.04 17,615.87 75% 5,884.13 25%
Revenue Totals $ 12,525,000 $ 39,620.26 $ 218,188.99 $§  257,809.25 2.06% 12,267,190.75 97.9%
Reimburseable Items
SHSGP and OES Grant Reimbursements $ 11,100 $ - $ - $ - 0% $ 11,100.00 100%
Strike Team Reimbursement 0.00 9,243.96 9,243.96
CDBG Grant for Off-Road Tender 300,000 0.00 241,570.00 241,570.00 81% 58,430.00 19%
2019 SAFER Grant 789,677 160,580.64 275,731.20 436,311.84 55% 353,365.16 45%
2020 SAFER Grant 720,000 0.00 308,026.77 308,026.77 43% 411,973.23 57%
2022 Office of Traffic Safety Grant 50,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 50,000.00 100%
2022 AFG Training Grant 163,100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 163,100.00 100%
Reimbursement Totals $ 2,033,877 $ 160,580.64 $ 834,571.93 $  995,152.57 48.93% $ 1,047,968.39 52%




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2023
START TIME: 2:45 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

MINUTES

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1.

CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call
Board Members Present: Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Michael Foglio, Mr. Rusty
Nonini, Mr. Ken Abrahamian, and Ms. Amanda Souza

INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
The invocation and the flag salute were led by Chief Henry.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 24, 2023

MOTION: To approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 24,
2023

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Abstain Aye Aye 4/0

RESOLUTION NO. 23-11 AMENDING RESOLUTION 23-04 TO MAKE
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL SPECIALIST JOB TITLE AND SALARY

SCALE
A) Action item - Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-11 amending Resolution No.
23-04 to make adjustments to the Personnel Specialist job title and salary scale.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. 23-11 amending Resolution No. 23-04 to make
adjustments to the Personnel Specialist job title and salary scale.

Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Foglio.



Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

. APPARATUS PURCHASE FINANCING AGENCY

A) Action item — Consider and approve contracting with Brandis Tallman (a division
of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.) for financing the purchase of three apparatus and
authorize the Fire Chief to execute all required documents related to the financing.

MOTION: Approve contracting with Brandis Tallman (a division of Oppenheimer &
Co., Inc.) for financing the purchase of three apparatus and authorize the Fire Chief
to execute all required documents related to the financing.

Moved by: Ms. Souza, second by Mr. Foglio.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

. BOARD MEETING DATES - CALENDAR YEAR 2024

A) Action item — Consider and approve proposed board meeting dates for the 2024
calendar year.

MOTION: Consider and approve the proposed board meeting dates for the 2024
calendar year.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments

. CLOSED SESSION

A) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
(Government Code 54956.9(d)(1).)
Name of Case: Savitt v. North Central Fire Protection District
Case No. OAH No. 2022120027
B) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: Number of cases: 1

Report out of Closed Session:

Item 9 A) MOTION: to adopt in its entirety in the matter of Savitt vs NCFPD Case
No. OAH 2022-120027.



Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Mr. Foglio.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Item 9 B) No action to report.
10.BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS

11.ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Cancellation of Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, October 26, 2023
B) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, November 16, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
C) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, December 14, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.

12. ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: To ADJOURN the meeting at 5:05 p.m.
Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary Date
North Central Fire Protection District



November 2023

i T e

Average Response Times
TOTAL FIRE LOSS

9|1z |_1‘-’l6 |12l6[i1 $20,500

6
4
2
0
NCR54 NCR55 NCR56 NCR57 NCR58 NCR59 NCKer NCBio
LiGoal Time ®Max Time Average FIRES BY TYPE
Overlapping call % by Station
11.96 12.31 o ast. 55
10 o /% of Calls st o8
8 st o6 by i ST. 57
6 L1St. 57 : :
" mst, 58 . Station i
5 0 HSt. 59 R u St. 59
0 0 09 o

St. 54 St. 55 St. 56 St. 57 St.58 St. 59



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Foglio
Michael Golden « Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters
15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 + FAX (559) 846-3788

www.northcentralfire.org

SUMMARY OF GRANT ACTIVITY
AMOUNT
GRANT YEAR AWARDED POP REQUESTED
2023- 06/16/23 - .
CDBG 24 S 299,206 2/16/24 Water Tender - Biola
10/01/23 - ] L .
OTS 2023 | S 50,000 09/30/24 Vehicle Extrication Equipment
$163,090.90 +
AFG 2022 $16,309.10 08/09/23 = Leadership Academy
08/08/25
Match
First Aid Kits, Rolling Walker,
FP&S 2022 $ lslzlzé)sgg'l?llsa:ch 0:2{/2;3//2235- Mannequins, AEDs, Inflatable
A Fire Safety House, AED Trainer
2021- )
CDBG 22 S 241,570 | 01/18/2-4/3/23 Type lll - Biola
SAFER 2020 | $ 2,312,175 | 2/27/22 -2/26/25 9 FF's
Cal OES 2020 | S 120,000 | 7/1/20-12/31/22 2 Generators
11/01/20 -
11/30/23 (Brown) . .
SJVAPCD 2020 | S 100,000 05/01/21 - 5 ZeroNox Electric Vehicles
05/30/24 (White)
Regional Crash Response &
oTS 2020 | S 86,000 | 10/1/20-9/30/21 Extrication Improvement
Program
SAFER 2019 | S 3,132,324 | 3/10/21-3/9/24 12 FF's
AFG - Regional $172,401.82 +
City of Selma 2018 $17,240.18 SCBA's
Lead Match

Total Grant Funds
Awarded to Date

S 6,706,386

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”




Grant Submissions Not Awarded

SAFER 2022 | $ 2,540,583 9 Firefighters - $2,540,583
AFG 2021 | S 915,390 Type | Pumper/Engine
FP&S | 2021 $ 168,027 Fire Safety Tral.ler & Digital Fire Ext
Training System
SAFER 2021 | $ 2,470,986 9 FF's
AFG 2020 | S 291,381 60 Portable Radios
AFG 2020 | $ 254,000 Type VI Light Rescue Vehicle
ARG 1 o000 | 8 84,438 PPE
Supp
Fire Safety House, ARC GIS Pro, iPads
6PES, | 2020 | 5 o & Fire Ext Training System
AFG 2019 | S 93,849 5 Extractors/Dryers
AFG 2019 | S 233,429 Mobile & Portable Radios
AFG 2019 | S 196,900 Light Rescue Vehicle
FP&S 2019 | 3 243,009 Fire Safety Ho'us-e, Helmets & Fire Ext
Training System
Grant
Submissions Not | $ 7,685,599

Awarded

“‘Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Foglio
Michae! Golden « Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(659) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: December 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Response to Forced Overtime Inquiry

On October 10, 2023, at the Special Board of Directors meeting, a request was made of
staff to provide information on the status of Mandatory/Forced overtime in the District at
the next scheduled board meeting. This summary will provide an informational report of
the districts calendar year 2023 forced overtime statistics, causal impacts, and ongoing
mitigation strategies to fill vacancies and reduce forced overtime to district members.

Calendar year 2023 has shown forced overtime increases from 2022. Primarily for the
reasons listed below:

Vacancies

Sick leave usage
Vacation

FMLA

Workers comp

While forced overtime has increased in the summer and early fall months of 2023, the
historical analysis shows those numbers returning to the baseline as the year closes. The
following informational tabular data, graphs, and charts display forced overtime variable
statistics for calendar year 2023.

While forced overtime increased, the District has implemented immediate and long-term
recruitment and retention initiatives to fill current and future vacancies including;
participating in Fresno City college’s internship program and establishing an ROP
program, to increasing future candidate pools. The District accepted applications for
lateral captain and engineer positions for the first time since 2019. The District has been
accepting application for employment in all ranks throughout 2023, four internal

‘Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



December 14, 2023
RE: Response to Forced Overtime Inquiry
Page 2 of 2

promotions processes occurred and multiple lateral hiring processes occurred. Job
announcements were advertised throughout California and the western states.

The District has worked with Local 5260 to modify the job announcements to include
larger candidature pools as well as expediting the onboarding process to fill current
openings. Additionally, the District implemented an enhanced succession planning,
training, and development to its members with a 2023 FEMA grant award, preparing
members for internal promotional opportunities and potentially filling vacant company
officers and engineer positions.

With the District’'s ongoing internal and external hiring processes (all ranks) the testing
processes is scheduled in January of 2024; the District anticipates the continue reduction
of forced overtime in the first quarter of the year.

Recruitment and retention are not exclusively a District issue. The fire service as a whole,
is experiencing significant challenges with the limited candidates in the job market. We
have seen the same issue in most of the fire departments in Fresno and Madera counties,
as well as statewide. The District will continue to identify and implement recruitment
solutions to reduce the impact of forced overtime, while maintaining the appropriate level
of emergency response and coverage across the fire district.

Recommended Action: Information Only

‘Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



District Forced OT Statistics

Reason for forced OT

53%

H FMLA

1 SICK

® VACANCY

r1 VACATION

.| WORKERS COMP

1 OTHER

FMLA 840 35
Sick 1987 83
Vacancy 4365 182
Vacation 912 38
Workers Comp 585 24
Other 690 29




District Forced OT Statistics

Forced OT hours by Unit
E54

~ E55 E54 816 34
o E55 790 33

E56 2335 97
E57

E57 2271 95
mES8 E58 1701 71
[T E59 E59 1178 49
R E259 288 12

B shif |2 A e N ] 3351 Shift forced OT hours
a-shire N >0

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000



2000

1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

48

Jan

District Forced OT Statistics

48 | 360 | 384 | 288 | 456 | 931 | 1603 | 1678 | 1726 | 1239 | 666

Forced OT hours by Month

1678 1726

1603
1239
666
360 384
288 I

Feb March  April June July Aug Sept ov




District Forced OT Statistics

Forced OT by Rank

CPT 4966 207
ENG 3023 126
FF 1390 58

B CPT BENG ©FF




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian + Michael Foglio
Michael Golden * Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: December 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution 23-12 and the Bank of America Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement and Related Documents

At the October 10, 2023 meeting, the board approved utilizing Brandis Taliman (a division
of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.), to facilitate the lease purchase financing for three apparatus
that are currently in production with the first engine to be received in early 2024.

The cost of the three replacement engines is $2,839,616.06 plus related safety equipment
not available from the engines being replaced. The ten-year term of the lease calls for
semi-annual payments of approximately $179,725, or $359,450 per year on average. The
interest rate is set at 4.588%. The lease payments will be made from the Capital Fund
with no anticipated impact on the General Fund.

Resolution No. 23-12 will authorize the execution and delivery of the lease/purchase
agreement and equipment schedules to complete the financing.

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution No. 23-12, A Resolution Of The Governing
Body Of North Central Fire Protection District, Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of
A Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement And Separate Equipment Schedules
Thereto For The Acquisition, Financing And Leasing Of Certain Equipment For The Public
Benefit Within The Terms Herein Provided; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of
Other Documents Required In Connection Therewith; And Authorizing The Taking Of All
Other Actions Necessary To The Consummation Of The Transactions Contemplated By
This Resolution.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION (AGREEMENT)

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF NORTH CENTRAL FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE A GREEMENT
AND SEPARATE EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES THERETO FOR THE
ACQUISITION, FINANCING AND LEASING OF CERTAIN EQUIPMENT FOR
THE PUBLIC BENEFIT WITHIN THE TERMS HEREIN PROVIDED;
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF OTHER DOCUMENTS
REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION
OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION.

WHEREAS, North Central Fire Protection District (the “Lessee”), a special district duly
organized and existing as a political subdivision, municipal corporation or similar public entity of
the State of CALIFORNIA, is authorized by the laws of the State of CALIFORNIA, to acquire, finance
and lease personal property (tangible and intangible) for the benefit of the Lessee and its
inhabitants and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and

WHEREAS, the goveming body of the Lessee (the “Board”) has determined that a need
exists for the acquisition, financing and leasing of certain equipment consisting of fire apparatus
and related equipment, which constitutes personal property necessary for the Lessee to perform
essential governmental functions (collectively, the “Equipment”) on the terms herein provided,;
and

WHEREAS, in order to acquire such Equipment, the Lessee proposes to enter into that
certain Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Bank of America,
National Association (or one of its affiliates), as lessor (the “Lessor”), substantially in the
proposed form presented to the Board at this meeting, and separate Equipment Schedules thereto
substantially in the form attached to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it for the benefit of the Lessee and for the efficient and
effective administration thereof to enter into the Agreement and separate Equipment Schedules
thereunder and the other documentation relating thereto from time to time as provided in the
Agreement for the acquisition, financing and leasing of the Equipment to be therein described on
the terms and conditions therein and herein provided;

Now, THEREFORE, BEIT ANDITIS HEREBY RESOLVED by the governing body of the Lessee
as follows:

Section 1. Findings and Determinations. 1t is hereby found and determined that the
terms of the Agreement (including the form of Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment
Schedule, both attached thereto), in the form presented to the Board at this meeting, are in the best
interests of the Lessee for the acquisition financing and leasing of the Equipment.



Section 2. Approval of Documents. The form, terms and provisions of the Agreement
(including the form of Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment Schedule, both attached
thereto) are hereby approved in substantially the forms presented at this meeting, with such
insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by Board Chairperson or the Deputy Fire
Chief of the Lessee or other members of the goveming body of the Lessee (the “Authorized
Officials”) executing the same, the execution of such documents being conclusive evidence of
such approval; and the Deputy Fire Chief or Board Chairperson of the Lessee is hereby authorized
and directed to execute, and the Board Secretary of the Lessee is hereby authorized and directed
to attest, the Agreement and any related Exhibits attached thereto and to deliver the Agreement
(including such Exhibits) to the respective parties thereto, and the Board Secretary of the Lessee
is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Lessee to such documents. The Authorized Officials
are each hereby authorized and directed to sign and deliver on behalf of the Lessee the Agreement,
each Equipment Schedule thereto under which a separate Lease (as defined in the Agreement) is
created, each Payment Schedule attached thereto, any related Escrow Agreement and any related
exhibits attached thereto if and when required; provided, however, that, without further
authorization from the goveming body of the Lessce, (a) the aggregate principal component of
Rental Payments under all Leases entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall not exceed
$3,000,000; (b) the maximum term under any Lease entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall
not exceed ten (10) years; and (c) the maximum interest rate used to determine the interest
component of Rental Payments under each Lease shall not exceed the lesser of the maximum rate
permitted by law or four and three quarters percent (4.75%) per annum. The Authorized Officials
may sign and deliver Leases to the Lessor on behalf of the Lessee pursuant to the Agreement on
such terms and conditions as they shall determine are in the best interests of the Lessee up to the
maximum aggregate principal component, maximum term and maximum interest rate provided
above. The foregoing authorization shall remain in effect fora period of [two] years from the date
hereof during which the Authorized Officials are authorized to sign and deliver Leases pursuant
to the Agreement on the terms and conditions herein provided and to be provided in each such
Lease.

Section 3. Other Actions Authorized. The officers and employees of the Lessee shall
take all action necessary or reasonably required by the parties to the Agreement to carry out, give
effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby (including the execution and
delivery of Final Acceptance Certificates, Escrow Agreements, Disbursement Requests and any
tax certificate and agreement, as contemplated in the Agreement) and to take all action necessary
in conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing
and other documents required to be delivered in connection with the Agreement and each Lease.

Section 4.  No General Liability. Nothing contained in this Resolution, the Agreement,
any Lease, any Escrow Agreement nor any other instrument shall be construed with respect to the
Lessee as incurring a pecuniary liability or charge upon the general credit of the Lessee or against
its taxing power, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in this Resolution, the
Agreement, any Lease, any Escrow Agreement or any other instrument or document executed in
connection therewith impose any pecuniary liability upon the Lessee or any charge upon its general
credit or against its taxing power, except to the extent that the Rental Payments payable under each
Lease entered into pursuant to the Agreement are limited obligations of the Lessee, subject to
annual appropriation, as provided in the Agreement.

F-2



Section 5. Appointment of Authorized Lessee Representatives. The Deputy Fire Chief
of the Lessee is each hereby designated to act as authorized representatives of the Lessee for
purposes of each Lease and related Escrow Agreement until such time as the goveming body of
the Lessee shall designate any other or different authorized representative for purposes of the
Agreement and any Lease or Escrow Agreement.

Section 6.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution.

Section 7. Repealer. All bylaws, orders and resolutions or parts thereof, inconsistent
herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency with respect to this
Resolution. This repealer shall not be construed as reviving any bylaw, order, resolution or
ordinance or part thereof.

Section 8.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its
approval and adoption.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the governing body of the Lessee this 14th day of December,
2023.

NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT,

as lessee
[SEAL]
By:
Printed Name: Ken Abrahamian
Title: Director/Board Chairperson
ATTEST:
By:

Printed: Name: Amanda Souza
Title: Board Secretary



The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Board Secretary of the Lessee
identified in the above Resolution No.23-12 (the “Resolution”), hereby certifies that the
Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of such Resolution as adopted by the governing body of
the Lessee on December 14, 2023. The Resolution is in full force and effect on the date hereof
and has not been amended, modified or otherwise changed by the goveming body of the Lessee
since the date of adoption of the Resolution.

DATED this 14th day of December, 2023.

Name: Amanda Souza
Title: Board Secretary

F-4



APPENDIX A
REQUIRED DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 5852.1
1. True Interest Cost of the Lease Purchase Agreement (Estimated): 4.588%

2. Finance charge of the Lease Purchase Agreement, being the sum of all fees and
charges paid to third parties (Estimated): $12,500

3. Proceeds of the Lease Purchase Agreement expected to be received by the District
for the Equipment (Estimated): $2,841,000

4. Total Repayment Amount for the Lease Purchase Agreement through the final maturity thereof
(Estimated): $3,594,491.34

F-5



MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of
December 21, 2023, and entered into by and between Bank of America, National Association, a
national banking association (together with its successors, assigns and transferees, and as more
particularly defined herein, “Lessor”), and North Central Fire Protection District a special district
existing under the laws of the State of California ( “Lessee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease and acquire from Lessor certain Equipment described in
each Equipment Schedule (as each such term is defined herein), subject to the terms and conditions
of and for the purposes set forth in each Lease; and

WHEREAS, the relationship between the parties shall be a continuing one and items of
equipment and other personal property may be financed pursuant to one or more Leases entered
into from time to time in accordance with this Agreement by execution and delivery of additional
Equipment Schedules by the parties hereto, subject to the terms and conditions provided herein;
and

WHEREAS, Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State (as such term
is defined herein) to enter into this Agreement and each Equipment Schedule for the purposes set
forth herein and therein;

Now, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

Section 1.01.  Definitions. The following terms will have the meanings indicated below
unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

“Acquisition Amount” means, with respect to each Lease, the amount specified in the
related Equipment Schedule and represented by Lessee to be sufficient for the purpose of acquiring
and installing the Equipment listed in such Lease.

“Acquisition Period” means, with respect to each Lease for which an Escrow Account is
established, that period identified in the related Equipment Schedule during which the Acquisition
Amount attributable to such Lease may be expended on Equipment Costs pursuant to the related
Escrow Agreement.

“Agreement” means this Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, including the
exhibits hereto, together with any amendments and modifications to this Agreement pursuant to
Section 13.04.

MELPA BANA
January 2020



“Casualty Value” means, with respect to each Lease, the amount that is shown on the
Payment Schedule for each Rental Payment Date under the column titled either (i) the Prepayment
Price or (ii) the “Casualty Value,” if any.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Each reference to a
Section of the Code in this Agreement and a Lease shall be deemed to include the relevant United
States Treasury Regulations proposed or in effect thereunder.

“Commencement Date” means, for each Lease, the date when Lessec’s obligation to pay
rent commences under such Lease, which date shall be the earlier of (a) the date on which the
Equipment listed in such Lease is accepted by Lessee in the manner described in Section 5.01, or
(b) the date on which the Acquisition Amount is deposited in an Escrow Account for the purpose
of acquiring and installing the Equipment listed in such Lease.

“Contract Rate” means, with respect to each Lease, the rate identified as such in the related
Payment Schedule.

“Disbursement Request” means, with respect to each Lease for which an Escrow Account
is established, the disbursement request attached to the applicable Escrow Agreement as Schedule
1 and made a part thereof.

“Equipment” means, with respect to each Lease, the property listed in the related
Equipment Schedule and all replacements, repairs, restorations, modifications and improvements
thereof or thereto made pursuant to Article V or Section 8.01. Whenever reference is made in this
Agreement to Equipment listed in a Lease, such reference shall be deemed to include all such
replacements, repairs, restorations, modifications and improvements of or to such Equipment.

“Equipment Costs” means, with respect to each Lease, the total cost of the Equipment
listed in the related Equipment Schedule, including related soft costs such as freight, installation
and taxes and other capitalizable costs, legal fees, financing costs and other costs necessary to vest
full, clear legal title to the Equipment in Lessee, subject to the security interest granted to and
retained by Lessor as set forth in each Lease, and other costs incurred in connection with the
acquisition, installation and/or financing of the Equipment as provided in the related Lease;
provided that (a) any such soft costs on a cumulative basis shall not exceed a percentage approved
by Lessor of the total cost of the Equipment subject to such Lease and (b) in no event shall
capitalizable delivery costs, installation charges, taxes and similar capitalizable soft costs relating
to such Equipment be included without Lessor’s prior consent.

“Equipment Schedule” means each separately numbered Equipment Schedule,
substantially in the form of either Exhibit A-1 (general Equipment) or Exhibit A-2 (energy services
Equipment) hereto, together with the related Payment Schedule.

“Escrow Account” means, with respect to any Lease, the account established and held by
the Escrow Agent pursuant to the related Escrow Agreement.

2
MELPA BANA
January 2020



“Escrow Agent” means, with respect to each Lease for which an Escrow Account is
established, the Escrow Agent identified in the related Escrow Agreement, and its successors and
assigns.

“Escrow Agreement” means, with respect to each Lease for which an Escrow Account is
established, an Escrow and Account Control Agreement in form and substance acceptable to and
executed by Lessee, Lessor and the Escrow Agent, pursuant to which an Escrow Account is
established and administered.

“Event of Default” means an Event of Default described in Section 12.01.

“Event of Non-appropriation” means, with respect to a Lease, the failure of Lessee’s
governing body to appropriate or otherwise make available funds to pay Rental Payments under
such Lease following the Original Term or then current Renewal Term sufficient for the continued
performance of such Lease by Lessee.

“Lease” means an Equipment Schedule and the terms and provisions of this Agreement
which are incorporated by reference into such Equipment Schedule.

“Lease Term” means, with respect to each Lease, the Original Term and all Renewal
Terms provided in the related Equipment Schedule.

“Lessee” means the entity referred to as Lessee in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“Lessor” means (a) the entity referred to as Lessor in the first paragraph of this Agreement
and its successors or (b) any assignee or transferee pursuant to Section 11.01 of any right, title or
interest of Lessor in and to the Equipment under the applicable Lease (including the Rental
Payments and other amounts due thereunder), any related Escrow Agreement and Escrow
Account, but does not include any entity solely by reason of that entity retaining or assuming any
obligation of Lessor to perform hereunder or under such Lease.

“Material Adverse Change” means (a) any change in Lessee’s creditworthiness that could
have a material adverse effect on (i) the financial condition or operations of Lessee, or (ii) Lessee’s
ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or any Lease or (b) a downgrade in Lessee’s
external debt rating from the date of this Agreement of two or more subgrades by either Moody’s
Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings or any equivalent successor credit rating agency, or
any downgrade by either such agency that would cause Lessee’s credit rating to be below
investment grade, or, if any such rating agency no longer publishes such ratings at the date of
determination, any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization that is selected by
Lessee for purposes of such long-term general obligation bond ratings and long-term general fund
related bond ratings.

MELPA BANA
January 2020



“Original Term” means, with respect to each Lease, the period from the Commencement
Date identified in the related Equipment Schedule until the end of the fiscal year of Lessee in effect
at such Commencement Date.

“Outstanding Balance” means, with respect to each Lease, the amount that is shown for
each Rental Payment Date under the column titled “Outstanding Balance” on the Payment
Schedule.

“Payment Schedule” means, with respect to each Lease, the Payment Schedule attached
to and made a part of the related Equ1pment Schedule and substantially in the form of Exhibit B
attached to this Agreement.

“Prepayment Price” means, with respect to each Lease, the amount that is shown for each
Rental Payment Date under the column titled “Prepayment Price” on the Payment Schedule.

“Principal Portion” means, with respect to each Lease, the amount that is shown for each
Rental Payment Date under the column titled “Principal Portion” on the Payment Schedule.

“Related Documents” means, with respect to each Lease, the Lease, this Agreement and,
if applicable, the related Escrow Agreement, each as may be amended and supplemented.

“Renewal Terms” means, with respect to each Lease, the consecutive renewal terms of
such Lease as specified in the related Equipment Schedule, the first of which commences
immediately after the end of the Original Term and each having a duration and a term coextensive
with each successive fiscal year of Lessee; provided that the final such Renewal Term shall
commence on the first day of the last such fiscal year and end on the first business day after the
last scheduled Rental Payment Date.

“Rental Payment Date” means, with respect to each Lease, each date on which Lessee is
required to make a Rental Payment under such Lease as specified in the related Payment Schedule.

“Rental Payments” means, with respect to each Lease, the basic rental payments payable
by Lessee on the Rental Payment Dates and in the amounts as specified in the related Payment
Schedule, consisting of a principal component and an interest component, and in all cases
sufficient to repay the principal component under such Lease and interest thereon at the applicable
Contract Rate (or Taxable Rate if then in effect).

“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
“State” means the State of California.

“Taxable Rate” means, with respect to each Lease, for each day that the interest component
of Rental Payments is taxable for Federal income tax purposes, an interest rate equal to the
Contract Rate plus a rate sufficient such that the total interest to be paid on any Rental Payment
Date would, after such interest was reduced by the amount of any Federal, state or local income

4
MELPA BANA
January 2020



tax (including any interest, penalties or additions to tax) actually imposed thereon, equal the
amount of interest otherwise due to Lessor.

“Vendor” means the manufacturer, installer or supplier of the Equipment listed in an
Equipment Schedule or any other person as well as the agents or dealers of the manufacturer,
installer or supplier with whom Lessee arranged Lessee’s acquisition, installation, maintenance
and/or servicing of the Equipment pursuant to the applicable Lease.

“Vendor Agreement” means any contract entered into by Lessee and any Vendor for the
acquisition, installation, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment under a Lease.

ARTICLE I1

Section 2.01.  Representations and Covenants of Lessee. Lessee represents, covenants and
warrants for the benefit of Lessor on the date hereof and as of the Commencement Date of each
Lease as follows:

(a)  Lessee is [the State] [a political subdivision of the State within the meaning
of Section 103(c) of the Code, duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws
of the State], with full power and authority to enter into the Related Documents and the
transactions contemplated thereby and to perform all of its obligations thereunder.

(b) Lessee has duly authorized the execution and delivery of the Related
Documents by proper action of its governing body at a meeting duly called, regularly
convened and attended throughout by the requisite quorum of the members thereof, or by
other appropriate official approval, and all requirements have been met and procedures
have occurred in order to ensure the validity and enforceability of the Related Documents.

(c)  No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the
lapse of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof. No
Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with respect to any Lease.

(d)  Lessee will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep
in full force and effect its existence as a special district of the State.

(¢) Lessee has complied with such procurement and public bidding
requirements as may be applicable to the Related Documents and the acquisition and
installation by Lessee of the Equipment as provided in each Lease.

(D  During the Lease Term under each Lease, the Equipment will be used by
Lessee only for the purpose of performing essential governmental or proprietary functions
of Lessee consistent with the permissible scope of Lessee’s authority. Lessee does not
intend to sell or otherwise dispose of the Equipment or any interest therein prior to the last
Rental Payment (including all Renewal Terms) scheduled to be paid under the related
Lease.

MELPA BANA
January 2020



(8) Lessee has kept, and throughout the Lease Term of each Lease shall keep,
its books and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
practices consistently applied, and shall deliver to Lessor (i) annual audited financial
statements (including (1) a balance sheet, (2) statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in fund balances for budget and actual, (3) statement of cash flows, and (4) footnotes,
schedules and attachments to the financial statements) within two hundred seventy (270)
days after the end of its fiscal year, (ii) such other financial statements and information as
Lessor may reasonably request, and (iii) upon Lessor’s request, its annual budget for any
prior or current fiscal year or for the following fiscal year when approved but not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the end of its current fiscal year. The financial statements described
in this subsection (g)(i) shall be accompanied by an unqualified opinion of Lessee’s
independent auditor. Credit information relating to Lessee may be disseminated among
Lessor and any of its affiliates and any of their respective successors and assigns.

(h)  Lessee has an immediate need for the Equipment listed on each Equipment
Schedule and expects to make immediate use of the Equipment listed on each Equipment
Schedule. Lessee’s need for the Equipment is not temporary and Lessee does not expect
the need for any item of the Equipment to diminish during the related Lease Term.

(1)  The payment of the Rental Payments or any portion thereof is not (under
the terms of any Lease or any underlying arrangement) directly or indirectly (x) secured by
any interest in property used or to be used in any activity carried on by any person other
than a state or local governmental unit or payments in respect of such property; or (y) on a
present value basis, derived from payments (whether or not to Lessee) in respect of
property, or borrowed money, used or to be used in any activity carried on by any person
other than a state or local governmental unit. The Equipment will not be used, directly or
indirectly, in any activity carried on by any person other than a state or local governmental
unit. No portion of the Acquisition Amount relating to any Lease will be used, directly or
indirectly, to make or finance loans to any person other than Lessee. Lessee has not entered
into any management or other service contract with respect to the use and operation of the
Equipment.

()  There is no pending litigation, tax claim, proceeding or dispute that may
adversely affect Lessee’s financial condition or impairs its ability to perform its obligations
under the Related Documents. Lessee will, at its expense, maintain its legal existence and
do any further act and execute, acknowledge, deliver, file, register and record any further
documents Lessor may reasonably request in order to protect Lessor’s first priority security
interest in the Equipment and the Escrow Account and Lessor’s rights and benefits under
cach Lease and related Escrow Agreement.

&) Lessee is the fee owner of the real estate where the Equipment under each
Lease is and will be located (the “Real Property”) and has good and marketable title
thereto, and there exists no mortgage, pledge, lien, security interest, charge or other
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever on or with respect to such Real Property.

MELPA BANA
January 2020



Q] No lease, rental agreement, lease-purchase agreement, payment agreement
or contract for purchase to which Lessee has been a party at any time has been terminated
by Lessee as a result of insufficient funds being appropriated in any fiscal year. No event
has occurred which would constitute an event of default under any debt, revenue bond or
obligation which Lessee has issued during the past ten (10) years.

(m)  In connection with the Lessee’s compliance with any continuing disclosure
undertakings (each, a “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) entered into by the Lessee
pursuant to SEC Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), the Lessee may be required to file with the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or its
successor (“EMMA”), notice of its incurrence of its obligations under the Related
Documents and notice of any accommodation, waiver, amendment, modification of terms
or other similar events reflecting financial difficulties in connection with the Related
Documents, in each case including posting a full copy thereof or a description of the
material terms thereof (each such posting, an “EMMA Posting”). Except to the extent
required by applicable law, including the Rule, the Lessee shall not file or submit or permit
the filing or submission of any EMMA Posting that includes the following unredacted
confidential information about the Lessor or its affiliates and any Escrow Agent in any
portion of such EMMA Posting: address and account information of the Lessor or its
affiliates and any Escrow Agent; e-mail addresses telephone numbers, fax numbers, names
and signatures of officers, employees and signatories of the Lessor or its affiliates and any
Escrow Agent; and the form of Disbursement Request that is attached to the Escrow
Agreement.

The Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the Lessor and its affiliates are not
responsible for the Lessee’s or any other entity’s (including, but not limited to, any broker-
dealer’s) compliance or noncompliance (or any claims, losses or liabilities arising
therefrom) with the Rule, any Continuing Disclosure Agreement or any applicable
securities or other laws, including but not limited to those relating to the Rule.

ARTICLE ITI

Section 3.01.  Lease of Equipment. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
Lessor agrees to provide the funds specified in each Lease to be provided by it for Lessee to acquire
the Equipment described in the related Equipment Schedule. Upon the execution and delivery of
each Lease, Lessor thereby demises, leases and transfers to Lessee, and Lessee thereby acquires,
rents and leases from Lessor, the Equipment as set forth in such Lease and in accordance with the
terms thereof. The Lease Term for each Lease may be continued, solely at the option of Lessee,
at the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for the next succeeding Renewal Term up
to the maximum Lease Term set forth in such Lease. At the end of the Original Term and at the
end of each Renewal Term until the maximum Lease Term has been completed, Lessee shall be
deemed to have exercised its option to continue each Lease for the next Renewal Term unless
Lessee shall have terminated such Lease pursuant to Section 3.03 or Section 10.01 of this
Agreement. The terms and conditions during any Renewal Term shall be the same as the terms
and conditions during the Original Term, except that the Rental Payments shall be as provided in

7
MELPA BANA
January 2020



the applicable Lease. Each Equipment Schedule signed and delivered by Lessor and Lessee
pursuant to this Agreement shall constitute a separate and independent lease and installment
purchase of the Equipment therein described.

Section 3.02.  Continuation of Lease Term. Lessee intends, subject to Section 3.03 hereof,
to continue the Lease Term of each Lease through the Original Term and all Renewal Terms and
to pay the Rental Payments due thereunder. Lessee affirms that sufficient funds are legally
available for the current fiscal year, and Lessee reasonably believes that an amount sufficient to
make all Rental Payments during the entire Lease Term of each Lease can be obtained from legally
available funds of Lessee. Lessee further intends to do all things lawfully within its power to
obtain and maintain funds sufficient and available to discharge its obligation to make Rental
Payments due under each Lease, including making provision for such payments to the extent
necessary in each budget or appropriation request submitted and adopted in accordance with
applicable provisions of law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision whether or not to budget
and appropriate funds or to extend the Lease Term for any Renewal Term for each Lease is within
the sole discretion of the governing body of Lessee.

Section 3.03.  Non-appropriation. Lessee is obligated only to pay such Rental Payments
under each Lease as may lawfully be made during Lessee’s then current fiscal year from funds
budgeted and appropriated for that purpose. Should Lessee fail to budget, appropriate or otherwise
make available funds to pay Rental Payments under any Lease following the then current Original
Term or Renewal Term, such Lease or Leases shall be deemed terminated at the end of the then
current Original Term or Renewal Term thereunder and Lessee shall have no further financial or
performance obligation except as provided in this Section 3.03. Lessee agrees to deliver notice to
Lessor of such termination promptly after any decision to non-appropriate is made, but failure to
give such notice shall not extend the term beyond such Original Term or Renewal Term. If any
Lease is terminated in accordance with this Section 3.03, Lessee agrees to cease use of the
Equipment thereunder and peaceably remove and deliver to Lessor, at Lessee’s sole expense (from
legally available funds), such Equipment to Lessor at the location(s) to be specified by Lessor on
or before the end of the applicable Original Term or Renewal Term for which Rental Payments
have been appropriated for the applicable Lease (each, a “Non-Appropriation Return Date”).
Lessor may take whatever action at law or in equity as may be necessary or desirable to enforce
Lessee’s obligations in the immediately preceding sentence. Without limiting or reducing in any
way Lessee’s obligations in the second preceding sentence or Lessor’s rights in the immediately
preceding sentence, if the Lessee fails to return the Equipment to Lessor on or before the applicable
Non-Appropriation Return Date pursuant to this Section 3.03, Lessee shall pay month-to-month
rent at the Contract Rate (or the Taxable Rate if then in effect) set forth in the affected Lease for
each month or part thereof that Lessee fails to return the Equipment thereunder pursuant to this
Section 3.03.

Section 3.04.  Conditions to Lessor’s Performance. (a) As a prerequisite to the performance
by Lessor of any of its obligations pursuant to any Lease, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor, in form
and substance satisfactory to Lessor, the following:

(i) A fully completed Equipment Schedule, executed by Lessee;

8
MELPA BANA
January 2020



(it)  If an Escrow Account is to be established with respect to such Lease, an
Escrow Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I, satisfactory to
Lessor and executed by Lessee and the Escrow Agent;

(1ii) A certified copy of a resolution, ordinance or other official action of
Lessee’s governing body, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-14 or
Exhibit C-1B, as applicable, authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and
the applicable Lease and related Escrow Agreement, if any, entered into pursuant hereto
and performance by Lessee of its obligations under this Agreement and the applicable
Lease and related Escrow Agreement, if any, entered into pursuant hereto;

(iv) A Certificate completed and executed by the Clerk or Secretary or other
comparable officer of Lessee, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-24 or
Exhibit C-2B, as applicable, completed to the satisfaction of Lessor;

(v)  An opinion of counsel to Lessee, substantially in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit D, and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor;

(vi)  Evidence of insurance as required by Section 7.02 hereof;

(vii)  All documents, including financing statements, affidavits, notices and
similar instruments, which Lessor deems necessary or appropriate at that time pursuant to
Section 6.02 hereof;

(viii) A waiver or waivers of interest in the Equipment from any mortgagee or
any other party having an interest in the real estate on which the Equipment will be located
and/or landlord of the real estate on which the Equipment will be located;

(ix)  If Lessee has designated the Lease then being entered into as a “qualified
tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, a certificate
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G executed by an authorized official of
Lessee;

(x) A copy of the Form 8038-G with respect to the Lease then being entered
into, fully completed and executed by Lessee;

(xi)  In the event that Lessee is to be reimbursed for expenditures that it has paid
more than sixty (60) days prior to the Commencement Date for the Lease then being
entered into, evidence of the adoption of a reimbursement resolution or other official action
covering the reimbursement from tax exempt proceeds of expenditures incurred not more
than sixty (60) days prior to the date of such resolution;

(xii) If any items of Equipment are motor vehicles, properly completed
certificates of title or certificates of origin (or applications therefor) for such vehicles with
Lessor’s interest noted thereon in accordance with the instructions of Lessor;

9
MELPA BANA
January 2020



(xiti)  Copies of invoices (and proofs of payment of such invoices, if Lessee seeks
reimbursement) and bills of sale (if title to Equipment has passed to Lessee), to the extent
required by Section 5.01(b) hereof’;

(xiv)  Wire instructions for payments to be made to Vendors and Form W-9 from
each such Vendor; and

(xv)  Such other items as are set forth in the related Equipment Schedule or are
reasonably required by Lessor.

(b) In addition to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in subsection (a) of this
Section 3.04, the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations under the Related Documents
shall be subject to: (i) no Material Adverse Change having occurred since the date of this
Agreement, (ii) no Event of Default having occurred and then be continuing under any Lease then
in effect, (iii) no Event of Non-appropriation under any Lease then in effect having occurred or
being threatened, and (iv) no Lease having been terminated as the result of the occurrence of an
Event of Default or an Event of Non-appropriation.

(c) Subject to satisfaction of the foregoing, (i) Lessor will pay the Acquisition Amount
for Equipment described in an Equipment Schedule to the Vendor or reimburse Lessee for its prior
expenditures with respect to such Equipment (subject to satisfaction of Section 3.04(a)(xi) hereof),
upon receipt of the documents described in Sections 5.01(a) and (b) hereof; or (ii) if an Escrow
Account is being established with respect to the related Lease, Lessor will deposit the Acquisition
Amount for Equipment described in the applicable Equipment Schedule with the Escrow Agent to
be held and disbursed pursuant to the related Escrow Agreement.

(d) This Agreement is not a commitment by Lessor or Lessee to enter into any Lease not
currently in existence, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to impose any obligation
upon Lessor or Lessee to enter into any proposed Lease, it being understood that whether Lessor
or Lessee enters into any proposed Lease shall be a decision solely within their respective
discretion.

(e) Lessee will cooperate with Lessor in Lessor’s review of any proposed Lease. Without
limiting the foregoing, Lessee will provide Lessor with any documentation or information Lessor
may request in connection with Lessor’s review of any proposed Lease. Such documentation may
include, without limitation, documentation concerning the Equipment and its contemplated use
and location and documentation or information concerning the financial status of Lessee and other
matters related to Lessee.

(D In the event of any conflict in terms between an Equipment Schedule and this
Agreement, the terms of the Equipment Schedule shall control in the interpretation of the Lease
created thereby.

Section 3.05 Evidence of Filing Form 8038-G. As soon as it is available, with respect to
each Lease under this Agreement, Lessee shall provide to Lessor evidence that it, or its paid

10
MELPA BANA
January 2020



preparer, has filed the Form 8038-G for the applicable Lease with the Internal Revenue Service
by delivering to Lessor proof of mailing such Form 8038-G. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Agreement or the applicable Lease, it shall not be an Event of Default hereunder
or thereunder if Lessee does not provide to Lessor evidence that it (or its paid preparer) filed the
Form 8038-G for the applicable Lease with the Internal Revenue Service.

ARTICLE IV

Section 4.01.  Rental Payments. Subject to Section 3.03 of this Agreement, Lessee shall
promptly pay Rental Payments, in lawful money of the United States of America, to Lessor on the
Rental Payment Dates and in such amounts as provided in each Lease. If any Rental Payment or
other amount payable hereunder is not paid within ten (10) days of its due date, Lessee shall pay
an administrative late charge of five percent (5%) of the amount not timely paid or the maximum
amount permitted by law, whichever is less. Lessee shall not permit the Federal Government to
guarantee any Rental Payments under any Lease. Rental Payments consist of principal and interest
components as more fully detailed on the Payment Schedule for each Lease, the interest on which
begins to accrue as of the Commencement Date for each such Lease.

Section 4.02.  Interest and Principal Components. A portion of each Rental Payment is
paid as, and represents payment of, interest, and the balance of each Rental Payment is paid as,
and represents payment of, principal. Each Lease shall set forth the principal and interest
components of each Rental Payment payable thereunder during the applicable Lease Term.

Section 4.03.  Rental Payments to Constitute a Current Expense of Lessee. Lessor and
Lessee understand and intend that the obligation of Lessee to pay Rental Payments under each
Lease shall constitute a current expense of Lessee payable solely from its general fund or other
funds that are legally available for that purpose and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt
of Lessee in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement
concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained in this Agreement
or in any Lease constitute a pledge of the general tax revenues, funds or moneys of Lessee.

Section 4.04.  Rental Payments to be Unconditional. Except as provided in Section 3.03 of
this Agreement, the obligations of Lessee to make Rental Payments and to perform and observe
the other covenants and agreements contained in each Lease shall be absolute and unconditional
in all events without abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense, for any reason,
including without limitation any failure of the Equipment, disputes with the Lessor or the Vendor
of any Equipment, any defects, malfunctions, breakdowns or infirmities in the Equipment or any
accident, condemnation or unforeseen circumstances or failure of any Vendor to deliver any
Equipment or otherwise perform any of its obligations for whatever reason, including bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or any similar event with respect to any Vendor.

Section 4.05  Tax Covenants. Lessee agrees that it will not take any action that would cause
the interest component of Rental Payments to be or to become ineligible for the exclusion from
gross income of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes, nor will it omit to
take or cause to be taken, in a timely manner, any action, which omission would cause the interest

11
MELPA BANA
January 2020



component of Rental Payments to be or to become ineligible for the exclusion from gross income
of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. In connection with the foregoing,
Lessee hereby agrees that (a) so long as any Rental Payments under a Lease remain unpaid,
moneys on deposit in the Escrow Account under any Escrow Agreement related to such Lease
shall not be used in a manner that will cause such Lease to be classified as an “arbitrage bond”
within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code; and (b) Lessee shall rebate, from funds legally
available for the purpose, an amount equal to excess earnings on the Escrow Account under any
Escrow Agreement to the Federal Government if required by, and in accordance with,
Section 148(f) of the Code, and make the determinations and maintain the records required by the
Code.

Section 4.06.  Event of Taxability. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Taxability with
respect to a Lease, the interest component of Rental Payments under such Lease and any charge
on Rental Payments or other amounts payable based on the Contract Rate shall have accrued and
be payable at the Taxable Rate applicable to such Lease retroactive to the date as of which the
interest component is determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be includible in the gross
income of the owner or owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes (which retroactive date
for such Lease shall be the earliest date as of which the interest component of any Rental Payment
for such Lease is deemed includible in the gross income of the owner or owners thereof for Federal
income tax purposes, which may be earlier than the date of delivery of such determination by the
Internal Revenue Service), and Lessee will pay such additional amount as will result in the owner
recetving the interest component at the Taxable Rate identified in the related Lease.

For purposes of this Section, “Event of Taxability” means the circumstance of the interest
component of any Rental Payment paid or payable pursuant to a Lease becoming includible for
Federal income tax purposes in an owner’s gross income as a consequence of any act, omission or
event whatsoever, including but not limited to the matters described in the immediately succeeding
sentence, and regardless of whether the same was within or beyond the control of Lessee. An
Event of Taxability shall be presumed to have occurred upon (a) the receipt by Lessor or Lessee
of an original or a copy of an Internal Revenue Service Technical Advice Memorandum or
Statutory Notice of Deficiency or other written correspondence which legally holds that the interest
component of any Rental Payment under such Lease is includable in the gross income of the owner
thereof; (b) the issuance of any public or private ruling of the Internal Revenue Service that the
interest component of any Rental Payment under such Lease is includable in the gross income of
the owner thereof; or (c) receipt by Lessor or Lessee of a written opinion of a nationally recognized
firm of attorneys experienced in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on
obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions, selected by Lessor and acceptable to
Lessee, to the effect that the interest component of any Rental Payment under a Lease has become
includable in the gross income of the owner thereof for Federal income tax purposes. For all
purposes of this definition, an Event of Taxability shall be deemed to occur on the date as of which
the interest component of any Rental Payment is deemed includable in the gross income of the
owner thereof for Federal income tax purposes.

Section 4.07.  Mandatory Prepayment. 1f the Acquisition Amount for a Lease is deposited
into an Escrow Account, any funds not applied to Equipment Costs and remaining in such Escrow

12
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Account on the earlier of (a) the expiration of the applicable Acquisition Period, (b) the date on
which Lessee delivers to the Lessor the executed Disbursement Request to effect the final
disbursement to pay (or reimburse) Equipment Costs from such Escrow Account or (c)a
termination of the Escrow Account as provided in the Escrow Agreement shall be applied by
Lessor on each successive Rental Payment Date thereafter to pay all or a portion of the Rental
Payment due and owing in the succeeding twelve (12) months and any remaining amounts shall
be applied by Lessor as prepayment to the applicable unpaid Principal Portion of Rental Payments
owing under the related Lease in the inverse order of the Rental Payment Dates.

ARTICLE V

Section 5.01.  Acquisition, Delivery Installation and Acceptance of Equipment. (a) With
respect to each Lease, Lessee shall order the Equipment to be acquired and financed thereunder,
cause the Equipment to be delivered and installed at the location specified in such Lease and pay
any and all delivery and installation costs and other Equipment Costs in connection therewith.
When the Equipment listed in a Lease has been delivered and installed, Lessee shall promptly
accept such Equipment and evidence said acceptance by executing and delivering to Lessor a Final
Acceptance Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E; provided, however, that if an
Escrow Account has been established with respect to such Lease as provided in Section 3.04
hereof, Lessee shall execute and deliver Disbursement Requests to the Lessor pursuant to the
related Escrow Agreement for the purpose of effecting disbursements from the Escrow Account
to pay (or reimburse) Equipment Costs for the Equipment so acquired and installed pursuant to
such Lease. In connection with the execution and delivery by Lessee to Lessor of the final
Disbursement Request under the applicable Escrow Agreement for a Lease, Lessee shall deliver
to Lessor a “Final Acceptance Certificate” in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E.

(b) (i) With respect to a Lease entered into without an Escrow Agreement, Lessee shall
deliver to Lessor copies of invoices (and proof of payment of such invoices if Lessee seeks
reimbursement for prior expenditures) and bills of sale (if title to such Equipment has passed to
Lessee) relating to each item of Equipment accepted by Lessee. Lessee shall execute and deliver
to Lessor an Equipment Schedule pursuant to Section 3.04(a)(i) within 5 business days of receipt
from Lessor, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 3.04.

(if) With respect to a Lease entered into with an Escrow Agreement, Lessor shall
prepare an Equipment Schedule. In connection with the execution and delivery of the related
Escrow Agreement, Lessee shall execute and deliver to Lessor such Equipment Schedule pursuant
to Section 3.04(a)(i) within 5 business days of receipt, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set
forth in Section 3.04. Lessee shall deliver to Lessor together with each Disbursement Request
invoices (and proof of payment of such invoices if Lessee seeks reimbursement for prior
expenditures) and bills of sale or other evidence of title transfer to Lessee relating to each item of
Equipment accepted by Lessee as evidenced by such Disbursement Request. Once approved,
Lessor shall deliver such Disbursement Request to the Escrow Agent for disbursement from the
Escrow Account in accordance with the Escrow Agreement.

13
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Section 5.02.  Quiet Enjoyment of Equipment. So long as no Event of Default exists under
the related Lease, neither Lessor nor any entity claiming by, through or under Lessor, shall interfere
with Lessee’s quiet use and enjoyment of the Equipment during the Lease Term under such Lease.

Section 5.03.  Location; Inspection. Once installed, no item of the Equipment will be
moved or relocated from the location (or the base location with respect to motor vehicles) specified
for it in the related Lease without Lessor’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Lessor shall have the right at all reasonable times during regular business
hours to enter into and upon the property where the Equipment is located for the purpose of
inspecting the Equipment.

Section 5.04.  Use and Maintenance of the Equipment. Lessee shall not install, use, operate
or maintain the Equipment (or cause the Equipment to be installed, used, operated or maintained)
impropetly, carelessly, in violation of any applicable law or in a manner contrary to that
contemplated by the related Lease. Lessee shall provide all permits and licenses, if any, necessary
for the installation and operation of the Equipment. In addition, Lessee agrees to comply in all
respects with all applicable laws, regulations and rulings of any legislative, executive,
administrative or judicial body, including, without limitation, all anti-money laundering laws and
regulations; provided that Lessee may contest in good faith the validity or application of any such
law, regulation or ruling in any reasonable manner that does not, in the opinion of Lessor, adversely
affect the interest of Lessor in and to the Equipment or its interest or rights under the related Lease.

Lessee agrees that it shall maintain, preserve and keep the Equipment in good repair and
working order, in a condition comparable to that recommended by the manufacturer. Lessor shall
have no responsibility to maintain, repair or make improvements or additions to the Equipment.
In all cases, Lessee agrees to pay any costs necessary for the manufacturer to re-certify the
Equipment as eligible for manufacturer’s maintenance upon the return of the Equipment to Lessor
as provided for in Sections 3.03 and 12.02(b) of this Agreement.

Lessee shall not alter any item of Equipment or install any accessory, equipment or device
on an item of Equipment if that would impair any applicable warranty, the originally intended
function or the value of that Equipment. All repairs, parts, accessories, equipment and devices
furnished, affixed to or installed on any Equipment, excluding temporary replacements, shall
thereupon become subject to the security interest of Lessor.

ARTICLE VI

Section 6.01.  Title to the Equipment. During the Lease Term under each Lease, and so long
as Lessee is either not in default under Article XII hereof or an Event of Non-appropriation has
not occurred, all right, title and interest in and to each item of the Equipment under the related
Lease shall be vested in Lessee immediately upon its acceptance of each item of Equipment,
subject to the terms and conditions hereof and under the applicable Lease. Lessee shall at all times
protect and defend, at its own cost and expense, its title, and Lessor’s first priority security interest,
in and to the Equipment (and Lessor’s other Collateral as defined in Section 6.02 hereof) from and
against all claims, liens and legal processes of its creditors, and keep all Equipment (and such other

14
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Collateral) free and clear of all such claims, liens and processes. Upon the occurrence of an Event
of Default under a Lease or upon termination of a Lease pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof, full and
unencumbered legal title to the Equipment shall, at Lessor’s option, pass to Lessor, and Lessee
shall have no further interest therein. In addition, upon the occurrence of such an Event of Default
or such termination, Lessee shall execute and deliver to Lessor such documents as Lessor may
request to evidence the passage of such legal title to Lessor and the termination of Lessee’s interest
therein, and upon request by Lessor shall deliver possession of the Equipment to Lessor in
accordance with Section 3.03 or 12.02 of this Agreement, as applicable. Upon payment of all
amounts due and owing under a Lease by Lessee in accordance with Section 10.01 hereof
(including upon payment of all Rental Payments and other amounts payable under such Lease),
Lessor’s security interest or other interest in the Equipment under such Lease shall terminate, and
Lessor shall execute and deliver to Lessee such documents as Lessee may request to evidence the
termination of Lessor’s security interest in the Equipment subject to the related Lease.

Section 6.02.  Security Interest. As additional security for the payment and performance of
all of Lessee’s obligations under each Lease, upon the execution of such Lease, Lessee hereby
grants to Lessor a first priority security interest constituting a first lien on (a) the Equipment subject
to such Lease, (b) moneys and investments held from time to time in any related Escrow Account
and (c) any and all proceeds of any of the foregoing, including, without limitation, insurance
proceeds (collectively, the “Collateral”). Upon the execution of each Lease, Lessee authorizes
Lessor to file (and Lessee agrees to execute, if applicable) such notices of assignment, chattel
mortgages, financing statements and other documents, in form satisfactory to Lessor, which Lessor
deems necessary or appropriate to establish and maintain Lessor’s security interest in the
Collateral, including, without limitation, such financing statements with respect to personal
property and fixtures under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code in effect in the State and
treating such Article 9 as applicable to entities such as Lessee.

Section 6.03.  Personal Property; No Encumbrances. Lessee agrees that the Equipment is
deemed to be and will remain personal property and will not be deemed to be affixed to or a part
of the real estate on which it may be situated, notwithstanding that the Equipment or any part
thereof may be or hereafter become in any manner physically affixed or attached to real estate or
any building thereon. Lessee shall not create, incur, assume or permit to exist any mortgage,
pledge, lien, security interest, charge or other encumbrance of any nature whatsoever on any of the
real estate where the Equipment under a Lease is or will be located or enter into any agreement to
sell or assign or enter into any sale/leaseback arrangement of such real estate without the prior
written consent of Lessor; provided, that if Lessor or its assigns is furnished with a waiver of
interest in the Equipment under such Lease acceptable to Lessor or its assigns in their respective
discretion from any party taking an interest in any such real estate prior to such interest taking
effect, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE VII

Section 7.01.  Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. Lessee
shall keep the Equipment under each Lease free of all levies, liens, and encumbrances except those
created by such Lease. The parties to this Agreement contemplate that the Equipment under each

15
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Lease will be used for a governmental or proprietary purpose of Lessee and that the Equipment
will therefore be exempt from all property taxes. If the lease, sale, purchase, operation, use,
possession or acquisition of any Equipment is nevertheless determined to be subject to taxation,
Lessee shall pay when due all taxes and governmental charges lawfully assessed or levied against
or with respect to such Equipment. Lessee shall pay all utility and other charges incurred in the
operation, use and maintenance of the Equipment. Lessee shall pay such taxes, assessments or
charges as the same may become due; provided that, with respect to any such taxes, assessments
or charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, Lessee shall be
obligated to pay only such installments as accrue during the Lease Term under the affected Lease.
During the Lease Term under each Lease, Lessor will not claim ownership of the Equipment
thereunder for the purposes of any tax credits, benefits or deductions with respect to such
Equipment.

Section 7.02.  Insurance. Lessee shall, during the Lease Term under each Lease, maintain
or cause to be maintained (a) casualty insurance naming Lessor and its assigns as loss payee and
insuring the Equipment against loss or damage by fire and all other risks covered by the standard
extended coverage endorsement then in use in the State, and any other risks reasonably required
by Lessor, in an amount at least equal to the greater of (i) the then applicable Casualty Value of
the Equipment under such Lease or (ii) the replacement cost of such Equipment; (b) liability
insurance naming Lessor and its assigns as additional insured that protects Lessor from liability
for bodily injury and property damage coverage (i) in such coverage amounts as may be required
by Lessor for the applicable Equipment or (ii) in such minimum coverage amounts as may be
agreed upon between Lessor and Lessee in connection with the execution and delivery of a Lease,
and in all events under clauses (a) and (b) issued in form and amount satisfactory to Lessor and by
an insurance company that is authorized to do business in the State and having a financial strength
rating by A.M. Best Company of “A-” or better; and (c) worker’s compensation coverage as
required by the laws of the State. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee may self-insure against
the risks described in clauses (a) and/or (b) through a government pooling arrangement,
self-funded loss reserves, risk retention program or other self-insurance program, in each case with
Lessor’s prior consent (which Lessor may grant, withhold or deny in its sole discretion) and
provided that Lessee has delivered to Lessor such information as Lessor may request with respect
to the adequacy of such self-insurance to cover the risks proposed to be self-insured and otherwise
in form and substance acceptable to Lessor. In the event Lessee is permitted, at Lessor’s sole
discretion, to self-insure as provided in this Section 7.02, Lessee shall provide to Lessor a
self-insurance letter in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit F. Lessee shall furnish to
Lessor evidence of such insurance or self-insurance coverage throughout the Lease Term under
each Lease. Lessee shall not cancel or modify such insurance or self-insurance coverage in any
way that would affect the interests of Lessor without first giving written notice thereof to Lessor
at least thirty (30) days in advance of such cancellation or modification.

Section 7.03.  Risk of Loss. Whether or not covered by insurance or self-insurance, Lessee
hereby assumes all risk of loss of, or damage to and liability related to injury or damage to any
persons or property arising from the Equipment under any Lease from any cause whatsoever, and
no such loss of or damage to or liability arising from the Equipment under any Lease shall relieve
Lessee of the obligation to make the Rental Payments or to perform any other obligation under

16
MELPA BANA
January 2020



any Lease. Whether or not covered by insurance or self-insurance, Lessee hereby agrees to
reimburse Lessor (to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, but only from legally available
funds) for any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, costs, claims, taxes or damages suffered or
incurred by Lessor, regardless of the cause thereof and all expenses incurred in connection
therewith (including, without limitation, counsel fees and expenses, and penalties connected
therewith imposed on interest received) arising out of or as a result of (a) entering into this
Agreement or any Lease or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, (b) the
ordering, acquisition, ownership, use, operation, condition, purchase, delivery, acceptance,
rejection, storage or return of any item of the Equipment under any Lease, (c) any accident in
connection with the operation, use, condition, possession, storage or return of any item of the
Equipment under any Lease resulting in damage to property or injury to or death to any person,
and/or (d) the breach of any covenant of Lessee under or in connection with this Agreement or any
Lease or any material misrepresentation provided by Lessee under or in connection with this
Agreement or any Lease. The provisions of this Section 7.03 shall continue in full force and effect
notwithstanding the full payment of all obligations under any or all Leases or the termination of
the Lease Term under any or all Leases for any reason.

Section 7.04.  Advances. In the event Lessee shall fail to keep the Equipment in good repair
and working order or shall fail to maintain any insurance required by Section 7.02 hereof, Lessor
may, but shall be under no obligation to, maintain and repair the Equipment or obtain and maintain
any such insurance coverages, as the case may be, and pay the cost thereof. All amounts so
advanced by Lessor shall constitute additional rent for the then current Original Term or Renewal
Term under the affected Lease, and Lessee covenants and agrees to pay such amounts so advanced
by Lessor with interest thereon from the due date until paid at a rate equal to the Contract Rate (or
the Taxable Rate if then in effect) plus five percent (5%) per annum or the maximum amount
permitted by law, whichever is less.

ARTICLE VIII

Section 8.01.  Damage, Destruction and Condemnation. If, prior to the termination of the
Lease Term under the related Lease, (a) the Equipment or any portion thereof is destroyed, in
whole or in part, or is damaged by fire or other casualty or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the
Equipment or any part thereof shall be taken under the exercise or threat of the power of eminent
domain by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting pursuant to
governmental authority, (i) Lessee and Lessor will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim
or condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation to be applied to the prompt
replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Equipment or such part
thereof and any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed shall
be paid to Lessee or (ii) Lessee shall exercise its option to prepay the obligations under the affected
Lease in accordance with Section 10.01(b) hereof.

If Lessee elects to replace any item of the Equipment (the “Replaced Equipment ) pursuant
to this Section 8.01, the replacement equipment (the “Replacement Equipment”) shall be new or
of a quality type, utility and condition at least as good as the Replaced Equipment and shall be of
equal or greater value than the Replaced Equipment as determined and approved by Lessor in its

17
MELPA BANA
January 2020



sole discretion. Lessee shall grant to Lessor a first priority security interest in any such
Replacement Equipment. Lessee shall represent, warrant and covenant to Lessor that each item of
Replacement Equipment is free and clear of all claims, liens, security interests and encumbrances,
excepting only those liens created by or through Lessor, and shall provide to Lessor any and all
documents as Lessor may reasonably request in connection with the replacement, including, but
not limited to, documentation in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor evidencing Lessor’s
security interest in the Replacement Equipment. Lessor and Lessee hereby acknowledge and agree
that any Replacement Equipment acquired pursuant to this paragraph shall constitute “Equipment”
for purposes of this Agreement and the related Lease. Lessee shall complete the documentation
of Replacement Equipment on or before the next Rental Payment Date after the occurrence of a
casualty event, or be required to prepay the obligations under the related Lease with respect to the
damaged Equipment for an amount that shall be determined and approved by Lessor in its sole
discretion.

For purposes of this Article VIII, the term “Net Proceeds” shall mean the amount
remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation award or sale under
threat of condemnation after deducting all expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in the
collection thereof.

Section 8.02.  Insufficiency of Net Proceeds. 1f the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in
full the cost of any repair, restoration, modification or improvement referred to in Section 8.01,
Lessee shall either (a) complete such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or
improvement and pay any costs thereof in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, or (b) pay or
cause to be paid to Lessor the amount of the then applicable Casualty Value under the related
Lease plus all other amounts then owing thereunder, and, upon such payment, the applicable Lease
Term shall terminate and Lessor’s security interest in the Equipment shall terminate as provided
in Section 6.01 hereof. The amount of the Net Proceeds remaining, if any, after completing such
repair, restoration, modification or improvement or after paying such Casualty Value for such
Lease plus all other amounts then owing thereunder shall be retained by Lessee. If Lessee shall
make any payments pursuant to this Section 8.02, Lessee shall not be entitled to any reimbursement
therefor from Lessor nor shall Lessee be entitled to any diminution of the amounts payable under
Article IV.

ARTICLE IX

Section 9.01.  Disclaimer of Warranties. Lessor makes no warranty or representation,
either express or implied, as to the value, design, condition, merchantability or fitness for particular
purpose or fitness for use of any of the Equipment under each Lease, or any other warranty or
representation, express or implied, with respect thereto and, as to Lessor, Lessee’s acquisition of
the Equipment under each Lease shall be on an “as is” basis. In no event shall Lessor be liable for
any incidental, indirect, special or consequential damage in connection with or arising out of this
Agreement, any Lease, any Equipment or the existence, furnishing, functioning or Lessee’s use of
any item, product or service provided for in this Agreement or any Lease.

18
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Section 9.02.  Vendor Agreements; Warranties. Lessee covenants that it shall not in any
material respect amend, modify, rescind or alter any Vendor Agreement for any Lease without the
prior written consent of Lessor. Lessor hereby irrevocably appoints Lessee its agent and
attorney-in-fact during the Lease Term under each Lease, so long as Lessee shall not be in default
under such Lease, to assert from time to time whatever claims and rights (including without
limitation warranties) relating to the Equipment that Lessor may have against a Vendor. Lessee’s
sole remedy for the breach of such warranty, indemnification or representation shall be against the
applicable Vendor of the Equipment and not against Lessor. Any such matter shall not have any
effect whatsoever on the rights and obligations of Lessor with respect to any Lease, including the
right to receive full and timely Rental Payments and other payments under each Lease. Lessee
expressly acknowledges that Lessor makes, and has made, no representations or warranties
whatsoever as to the existence or the availability of such warranties relating to any of the
Equipment under each Lease.

ARTICLE X
Section 10.01.  Prepayment; Payment in Full.

(@) Prepayment. Lessee shall have the option to prepay or satisfy all, but not less
than all, of its obligations under a Lease, at the following times and upon the following terms:

(1)  Optional Prepayment. From and after the date specified (if any) in the
applicable Payment Schedule (the “Prepayment Option Commencement Date”), on the
Rental Payment Dates specified in such Payment Schedule, upon not less than thirty
(30) days prior written notice, and upon payment in full of the sum of all Rental Payments
then due under the related Lease plus the then applicable Prepayment Price, which may
include a prepayment premium on the unpaid Outstanding Balance as set forth in such
Payment Schedule plus all other amounts then owing thereunder; or

(i)  Casualty or Condemnation Prepayment. In the event of substantial damage
to or destruction or condemnation of substantially all of the Equipment listed in a Lease,
on the day specified in Lessee’s notice to Lessor of its exercise of the prepayment option
(which shall be the earlier of the next Rental Payment Date or sixty (60) days after the
casualty event) upon payment in full to Lessor of (A) in the event such prepayment occurs
on a Rental Payment Date, the sum of (i) all Rental Payments then due under such Lease
plus (ii) the then applicable Casualty Value for such Lease plus (iii) all other amounts then
owing thereunder OR, (B) in the event such prepayment for such Lease occurs on a date
other than a Rental Payment Date, the sum of (i) the applicable Casualty Value shown on
the Payment Schedule for such Lease for the Rental Payment Date immediately preceding
the applicable date of such prepayment (or if the date of such prepayment occurs prior to
the first Rental Payment Date for such Lease, the earliest Casualty Value shown on the
related Payment Schedule) plus (ii) accrued interest at the Contract Rate (or the Taxable
Rate if then in effect) on the Outstanding Balance as of the Rental Payment Date
immediately preceding the applicable date of such prepayment from such Rental Payment
Date (or if the date of such prepayment occurs prior to the first Rental Payment Date, the

19
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Commencement Date for such Lease) to the date of such prepayment plus (iii) all other
amounts then owing thereunder.

(b)  Payment in Full. Upon the expiration of the Lease Term under a Lease, the
payment in full of all Rental Payments then due and all other amounts then owing under such
Lease by Lessee to Lessor.

(c) Lessor’s security interests in and to the related Equipment under such Lease
will be terminated and Lessee will own such Equipment free and clear of Lessor’s security interest
in such Equipment after either (i) payment of either (A) the applicable Prepayment Price and all
other amounts then owing under a Lease in accordance with Section 10.01(a)(i) of this Agreement
or (B) the applicable Casualty Value and all other amounts then owing under a Lease in accordance
with Section 10.01(a)(ii) of this Agreement or (ii) upon the expiration of the Lease Term of a Lease
and payment in full of all Rental Payments then due and all other amounts then owing thereunder
in accordance with Section 10.01(b) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XI

Section 11.01.  Assignment by Lessor. (a) Lessor’s right, title and interest in and to the Rental
Payments and any other amounts payable by Lessee under any and all of the Leases and the Escrow
Agreement relating to any Lease, its security interest in the Equipment subject to the related Lease
and in any related Escrow Account, and all proceeds therefrom (collectively, with respect to each
Lease and related Escrow Agreement, the “Related Assigned Rights”), may be assigned and
reassigned by Lessor at any time, in whole or in part, to one or more assignees or sub-assignees
without the necessity of obtaining the consent of Lessee; provided, that any such assignment,
transfer or conveyance (i) shall be made only to investors each of whom Lessor reasonably
believes is a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined in Rule 144A(a)(1) promulgated under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or an “accredited investor” as defined in Section 501(a)(1),
(2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and in
either case is purchasing the Related Assigned Rights (or any interest therein) for its own account
with no present intention to resell or distribute such Related Assigned Rights (or interest therein),
subject to each investor’s right at any time to dispose of the Related Assigned Rights (or any
interest therein) as it determines to be in its best interests, (ii) shall not result in more than
35 owners of the Related Assigned Rights with respect to a Lease or the creation of any interest in
the Related Assigned Rights with respect to a Lease in an aggregate principal component that is
less than $100,000 and (iii) shall not require Lessee to make Rental Payments, to send notices or
otherwise to deal with respect to matters arising under the Related Assigned Rights with respect
to a Lease with or to more than one Lease Servicer (as such term is defined below), and any trust
agreement, participation agreement or custodial agreement under which multiple ownership
interests in the Related Assigned Rights with respect to a Lease are created shall provide the
method by which the owners of such interests shall establish the rights and duties of a single entity,
trustee, owner, servicer or other fiduciary or agent acting on behalf of all of the assignees (herein
referred to as the “Lease Servicer”) to act on their behalf with respect to the Related Assigned
Rights with respect to a Lease, including with respect to the exercise of rights and remedies of
Lessor on behalf of such owners upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of

20
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Non-appropriation under the related Lease. Lessor and Lessee hereby acknowledge and agree that
the restrictions and limitations on transfer as provided in this Section 11.01 shall apply to the first
and subsequent assignees and sub-assignees of any of the Related Assigned Rights with respect to
a Lease (or any interest therein).

(b)  Unless to an affiliate controlling, controlled by or under common control with Lessor,
no assignment, transfer or conveyance permitted by this Section 11.01 shall be effective as against
Lessee until Lessee shall have received a written notice of assignment that discloses the name and
address of each such assignee; provided, that if such assignment is made to a bank or trust company
as trustee or paying agent for owners of certificates of participation, participation interests, trust
certificates or partnership interests with respect to the Rental Payments payable under a Lease, it
shall thereafter be sufficient that Lessee receives notice of the name and address of the bank, trust
company or other entity that acts as the Lease Servicer for such Lease. Notices of assignment
provided pursuant to this Section 11.01(b) shall contain a confirmation of compliance with the
transfer requirements imposed by Section 11.01(a) hereof. During the Lease Term under each
Lease, Lessee shall keep, or cause to be kept, a complete and accurate record of all such
assignments in form necessary to comply with Section 149 of the Code. Lessee shall retain all
such notices as a register of all assignees and shall make all payments to the assignee or assignees
or Lease Servicer last designated in such register. Lessee shall not have the right to and shall not
assert against any assignee any claim, counterclaim or other right Lessee may have against Lessor
or any Vendor. Assignments in part may include, without limitation, assignment of all of Lessor’s
security interest in and to the Equipment listed in a particular Lease and all rights in, to and under
the Lease related to such Equipment and all of Lessor’s security interest in and to the related
Escrow Account, or all rights in, to and under the related Escrow Agreement.

(c) If Lessor notifies Lessee of its intent to assign a Lease, Lessee agrees that it shall
execute and deliver to Lessor a Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment with respect to such
Lease, substantially in the form of Exhibit H attached hereto, within five (5) business days after its
receipt of such request.

Section 11.02.  Assignment and Subleasing by Lessee. None of Lessee’s right, title and
interest in, to and under this Agreement, any Lease or any portion of the Equipment, any
Escrow Agreement or the Escrow Account related thereto may be assigned, encumbered or
subleased by Lessee for any reason, and any purported assignment, encumbrance or sublease
without Lessor’s prior written consent shall be null and void.

ARTICLE XII

Section 12.01.  Events of Default Defined. Any of the following events shall constitute an
“Event of Default” under a Lease:

(a)  Failure by Lessee to (i) pay any Rental Payment or other payment required
to be paid under any Lease within ten (10) days of the date when due as specified therein,
(i) maintain insurance as required under such Lease (including Section 7.02 of this
Agreement, which is incorporated therein), or (iii) observe and perform any covenant,

21
MELPA BANA
January 2020



condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under Section 6.01 or 6.02
hereof for any Lease;

(b) Failure by Lessee to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement contained in this Agreement or any Lease on its part to be observed or
performed, other than as referred to in subsection (a) above, for a period of thirty (30) days
after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to
Lessee by Lessor, unless Lessor shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to
its expiration; provided that, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within
the applicable period, Lessor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of
such time if corrective action is instituted by Lessee within the applicable period and
diligently pursued until the default is corrected,

(c)  Any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in or pursuant to
this Agreement or any Lease or its execution, delivery or performance shall prove to have
been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when
made;

(d)  Any default occurs under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease
financing of property or otherwise receiving credit under which Lessee is an obligor, if
such default (i) arises under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease financing of
property or provision of credit provided by Lessor or any affiliate of Lessor (including,
without limitation, the occurrence of any Event of Default under any other Lease), or
(ii) arises under any obligation under which there is outstanding, owing or committed an
aggregated amount in excess of $100,000.00;

()  Lessee shall (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee,
custodian or liquidator of Lessee, or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee,
(ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become
due, (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an order for relief
entered against it under applicable Federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a voluntary petition
in bankruptcy or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with
creditors or taking advantage of any insolvency law or any answer admitting the material
allegations of a petition filed against Lessee in any bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium
or insolvency proceeding; or

()  An order, judgment or decree shall be entered by any court of competent
jurisdiction, approving a petition or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator
for Lessee or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, in each case without its
application, approval or consent, and such order, judgment or decree shall continue
unstayed and in effect for any period of thirty (30) consecutive days.

Section 12.02.  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default exists under any
Lease, Lessor shall have the right, at its sole option without any further demand or notice, to take
one or any combination of the following remedial steps with respect to any or all Leases with an

22
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Event of Default under this Agreement, including those with an Event of Default pursuant to
Section 12.01(d) (each a “Defaulted Lease™):

(a) By written notice to Lessee, Lessor may declare all Rental Payments
payable by Lessee pursuant to one or more Defaulted Leases and other amounts payable
by Lessee under each such Defaulted Lease to the end of the then current Original Term or
Renewal Term to be immediately due and payable;

(b) With or without terminating the Lease Term under any one or more
Defaulted Leases, Lessor may enter the premises where the Equipment listed in any one or
more of each such Defaulted Leases is located and retake possession of such Equipment or
require Lessee at Lessee’s expense to promptly return any or all of such Equipment to the
possession of Lessor at such place within the United States as Lessor shall specify, and sell
or lease such Equipment or, for the account of Lessee, sublease such Equipment,
continuing to hold Lessee liable, but solely from legally available funds, for the difference
between (i) the Rental Payments payable by Lessee pursuant to each such Defaulted Lease
and other amounts related to each such Defaulted Lease that are payable by Lessee to the
end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term, as the case may be, and (ii) the
net proceeds of any such sale, leasing or subleasing (after deducting all expenses of Lessor
in exercising its remedies under each such Defaulted Lease, including without limitation
all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing such
Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneer’s and attorney’s fees), subject, however, to the
provisions of Section 3.03 of this Agreement. The exercise of any such remedies
respecting any such Event of Default under any such Defaulted Lease shall not relieve
Lessee of any other liabilities under each such Defaulted Lease or any other Lease that
Lessor determines not to treat as a Defaulted Lease or with respect to the Equipment listed
therein;

(c)  Lessor may terminate the Escrow Agreement relating to any one or more of
such Defaulted Leases and apply any proceeds in each such applicable Escrow Account
thereunder to the Rental Payments scheduled to be paid under any one or more of such
Defaulted Leases as Lessor shall determine; and/or

(d)  Lessor may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary
or desirable to enforce its rights under any one or more of such Defaulted Leases or each
such Escrow Agreement relating thereto or as a secured party in any or all of the Equipment
subject to any one or more of such Defaulted Leases or with respect to the related Escrow
Account for one or more of such Defaulted Leases.

Section 12.03.  No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to
Lessor is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in
addition to every other remedy given hereunder and/or under any Lease now or hereafter existing
at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right
or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order

23
MELPA BANA
January 2020



to entitle Lessor to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article XII it shall not be necessary
to give any notice other than such notice as may be required in this Article XII.

Section 12.04.  Application of Moneys. Any net proceeds from the exercise of any remedy
under this Agreement, including the application specified in Section 12.02(b)(ii) (after deducting
all expenses of Lessor in exercising such remedies including without limitation all expenses of
taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing Equipment and all brokerage,
auctioneer’s or attorney’s fees), shall be applied as follows:

(@)  If such remedy is exercised solely with respect to a single Defaulted Lease,
Equipment listed in such Defaulted Lease or rights thereunder, then to amounts due
pursuant to such Defaulted Lease and to other amounts related to such Defaulted Lease or
such Equipment.

(b)  If'such remedy is exercised with respect to more than one Defaulted Lease,
Equipment listed in more than one Defaulted Lease or rights under more than one
Defaulted Lease, then to amounts due pursuant to one or more of such Defaulted Leases as
Lessor shall determine and distribute on a pro rata basis or on such other basis as Lessor
shall determine.

ARTICLE XIII

Section 13.01.  Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications under this
Agreement or any Lease shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered or
mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, or delivered by overnight courier, or sent by facsimile
transmission (with electronic confirmation) to the parties hereto at the addresses immediately after
the signatures to this Agreement (or at such other address as either party hereto shall designate in
writing to the other for notices to such party) and to any assignee at its address as it appears on the
registration books maintained by Lessee.

Section 13.02.  Binding Effect. This Agreement and each Lease shall inure to the benefit of
and shall be binding upon Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 13.03.  Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement or any Lease shall
be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof or thereof.

Section 13.04.  Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Agreement and each Lease
may only be amended by Lessor and Lessee in writing.

Section 13.05.  Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement and each Lease may be
simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which
shall constitute but one and the same instrument; provided that only Counterpart No. 1 of each
Lease (including the terms and provisions of this Agreement incorporated therein by reference)
shall constitute chattel paper for purposes of the applicable Uniform Commercial Code.

24
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Section 13.06.  Applicable Law; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement and each
Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State. The parties
hereto consent and submit to the jurisdiction of the State and venue in any state or Federal court
of such State for the purposes of any suit, action or other proceeding arising in connection with
this Agreement or any Lease, and each party expressly waives any objections that it may have to
the venue of such courts. The parties hereto expressly waive any right to trial by jury in any action
brought on or with respect to this Agreement or any Lease.

Section 13.07.  Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement and in each Lease are
for convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions
or sections of this Agreement or any Lease.

Section 13.08.  No Advisory or Fiduciary Relationship. In connection with all aspects of each
transaction contemplated by this Agreement and each Lease thereunder (including in connection
with any amendment, waiver or other modification hereof or of any other related document), the
Lessee acknowledges and agrees that: (a) (i) the transactions regarding this Agreement and each
Lease thereunder provided by the Lessor and any affiliate thereof are arm’s-length commercial
transactions between the Lessee, on the one hand, and the Lessor and its affiliates, on the other
hand, (ii) the Lessee has consulted its own legal, accounting, regulatory and tax advisors to the
extent it has deemed appropriate, and (iii) the Lessee is capable of evaluating, and understands and
accepts, the terms, risks and conditions of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and
each Lease thereunder and by the other related documents; (b) (i) the Lessor and its affiliates each
is and has been acting solely as a principal and, except as expressly agreed in writing by the
relevant parties, has not been, is not, and will not be acting as an advisor, agent or fiduciary, for
the Lessee, or any other person and (ii) neither the Lessor nor any of its affiliates has any obligation
to the Lessee with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and each Lease
thereunder except those obligations expressly set forth herein and in the other related documents;
and (c) the Lessor and its affiliates may be engaged in a broad range of transactions that involve
interests that differ from those of the Lessee, and neither the Lessor nor any of its affiliates has any
obligation to disclose any of such interests to the Lessee. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
the Lessee, hereby waives and releases any claims that it may have against the Lessor or any of its
affiliates with respect to any breach or alleged breach of agency or fiduciary duty in connection
with any aspect of any transactions contemplated by this Agreement and each Lease thereunder.

Section 13.09.  Entire Agreement. The parties agree that this Agreement and each Lease
hereunder constitutes the final and entire agreement between the parties superseding all conflicting
terms or provisions of any prior proposals, term sheets, solicitation documents, requests for
proposals, award notices, approval letters or any other agreements or understandings between the
parties.

Section 13.10.  Electronic Signatures. The Related Documents may be executed and
delivered by facsimile signature or other electronic or digital means (including, without limitation,
Adobe’s Portable Document Format (“PDF™)). Any such signature shall be of the same force and
effect as an original signature, it being the express intent of the parties to create a valid and legally
enforceable contract between them. The exchange and delivery of the Related Documents and the
related signature pages via facsimile or as an attachment to electronic mail (including in PDF) shall

25
MELPA BANA
January 2020



constitute effective execution and delivery by the parties and may be used by the parties for all
purposes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at the request of either party, the parties hereto agree to
exchange inked original replacement signature pages as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

26
MELPA BANA

January 2020



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have caused this Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement to be executed in their names by their duly authorized representatives

as of the date first above written.

LESSOR:

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley II

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration
Fax No.: (443) 541-3057

By:

Name:

Title:

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District
15850 W Kearney Blvd

Kerman, CA 93630

Attention: Fire Chief

Phone No.: (559) 878-4550

By:

Name: Timothy V. Henry
Title: Fire Chief

ATTEST:
By:

Name: Amanda Souza
Title: Secretary

Signature Page of Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement



LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit A-1
Exhibit A-2
Exhibit B
Exhibit C-1A
Exhibit C-1B
Exhibit C-2A
Exhibit C-2B
Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Exhibit H
Exhibit I

Form of Equipment Schedule — General Equipment

Form of Equipment Schedule — Energy Services Equipment
Form of Payment Schedule

Form of Authorizing Resolution (Agreement)

Form of Authorizing Resolution (Lease)

Form of Incumbency and Authorization Certificate (Agreement)
Form of Incumbency and Authorization Certificate (Lease)
Form of Opinion of Counsel to Lessee

Form of Final Acceptance Certificate

Form of Self-Insurance Certificate

Form of Bank Qualification Certificate

Form of Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment
Form of Escrow and Account Control Agreement



EXHIBIT A-1

ForM OF EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE NO. - GENERAL EQUIPMENT

Re:  Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of
between Bank of America, National Association, a national bankmg
association, as Lessor, and North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

1. Defined Terms. All terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the
above-referenced Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”).

2. Equipment. For purposes of the Lease created hereby, the following items of
Equipment are hereby included under this Equipment Schedule together with all attachments,
additions, accessions, parts, repairs, improvements, replacements and substitutions thereto as
provided in the Agreement.

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION SERIAL NoO. MODEL No. LocATION

3. Payment Schedule.

(@) Rental Payments; Commencement Date. The Rental Payments shall be in such
amounts and payable on such Rental Payment Dates as set forth in the Payment Schedule attached
to this Equipment Schedule and incorporated herein by this reference, subject to adjustment upon
the occurrence of an Event of Taxability as provided in Section 4.06 of the Agreement. Lessee’s
obligation to pay Rental Payments under the Lease created hereby shall commence on the earlier
of (i) the date on which the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is accepted by Lessee in
the manner described in Section 5.01 of the Agreement, as evidenced by the Final Acceptance
Certificate executed by Lessee and substantially in the form of Exhibit E attached to the
Agreement, or (ii) the date on which the Acquisition Amount is deposited in an Escrow Account
for the purpose of acquiring and installing the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule
pursuant to Section 3.04(c) of the Agreement (the earlier of such two dates being herein referred
to as the “Commencement Date”).

(b)  Prepayment Price Schedule. The Prepayment Price on each Rental Payment Date
shall be the amount set forth for such Rental Payment Date in the “Prepayment Price” column of

2
MELPA BANA
January 2020



the Payment Schedule attached to this Equipment Schedule plus all Rental Payments then due
(including the Rental Payment due on such Rental Payment Date) plus all other amounts then
owing under this Equipment Schedule.

4. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Lessee hereby represents, warrants and
covenants that its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in the Agreement
(particularly Section 2.01 thereof) are true and correct as though made on the Commencement
Date. Lessee further represents and warrants that (a) no Material Adverse Change has occurred
since the dated date of the Agreement; (b) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing
under any Lease currently in effect; (c) no Event of Non-appropriation under any Lease currently
in effect has occurred or is threatened; (d) no Lease has been terminated as the result of the
occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-appropriation; (e) the governing body of
Lessee has authorized the execution and delivery of the Agreement and this Equipment Schedule;
(f) the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is essential to the functions of Lessee or to
the services Lessee provides its citizens; (g) Lessee has an immediate need for, and expects to
make immediate use of, substantially all such Equipment, which will be used by Lessee only for
the purpose of performing one or more of Lessee’s governmental or proprietary functions
consistent with the permissible scope of its authority; and (h) Lessee expects and anticipates
adequate funds to be available for all future payments or rent due after the current budgetary
period.

5. The Lease. The terms and provisions of the Agreement (other than to the extent that
they relate solely to other Equipment Schedules or Equipment listed on other Equipment
Schedules) are hereby incorporated into this Equipment Schedule by reference and made a part
hereof.

[OPTION: IF ESCROW AGREEMENT Is USED:

6. Acquisition Amount. The Acquisition Amount that Lessor shall pay to the Escrow
Agent for deposit into the Escrow Account in connection with this Equipment Schedule is
$ . Itis expected that by [six (6)] [twelve (12)] [eighteen (18)] months from the date
of this Equipment Schedule No. , Lessee will have taken possession of all items of
Equipment shown above and that the Lessee’s final Disbursement Request pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement will be signed by Lessee, approved by Lessor and delivered to the Escrow Agent on or
before [six (6)] [twelve (12)] [eighteen (18)] months from the date of this Equipment Schedule.

OR IF VENDOR PAID DIRECTLY USE:

6. Acquisition Amount. The Acquisition Amount for the Equipment listed in this
Equipment Schedule to be paid to the Vendor (or reimbursed to Lessee) is $

[OPTION: IF ESCROW AGREEMENT Is USED:

MELPA BANA
January 2020



7. Acquisition Period. The Acquisition Period applicable to this Equipment Schedule
shall end at the conclusion of the month following the date hereof.

[8]. Health and Safety Code Section 13906 Representations. Pursuant to
California Health and Safety Code Section 13906(b), Lessee represents and warrants that the
amount of indebtedness to be incurred shall not exceed an amount equal to three times the actual
income from property taxes received pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13896 for the
fiscal year preceding the year in which the indebtedness is incurred. The Lease shall be repaid
within 10 years from the Commencement Date. The resolution of Lessee authorizing this Lease
was adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of the total membership of Lessee’s board of directors.

[OPTION: IF ESCROW AGREEMENT IS USED AND A SURETY BOND IS REQUIRED:

[8.]  Surety Bonds; Lessee to Pursue Remedies Against Contractors and Sub-
Contractors and Their Sureties. Lessee shall secure from each Vendor directly employed by
Lessee in connection with the acquisition, construction, installation, improvement or equipping of
the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule, a payment and performance bond (“Surety
Bond”) executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State, having a financial
strength rating by A M. Best Company of “A-" or better, and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor and
naming Lessor as a co-obligee in a sum equal to the entire amount to become payable under each
Vendor Agreement. Each bond shall be conditioned on the completion of the work in accordance
with the plans and specifications for the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule and upon
payment of all claims of subcontractors and suppliers. Lessee shall cause the surety company to
add Lessor as a co-obligee on each Surety Bond, and shall deliver a certified copy of each Surety
Bond to Lessor promptly upon receipt thereof by Lessee. Any proceeds from a Surety Bond shall
be applied in accordance with such Surety Bond to the payment and performance of the Vendor’s
obligations in accordance with the related Vendor Agreement and, if for whatever reason such
proceeds are not so applied, first to amounts due Lessor under this Equipment Schedule, and any
remaining amounts shall be payable to Lessee.

In the event of a material default of any Vendor under any Vendor Agreement in connection with
the acquisition, construction, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment listed in this
Equipment Schedule or in the event of a material breach of warranty with respect to any material
workmanship or performance guaranty with respect to such Equipment, Lessee will promptly
proceed to exhaust its remedies against the Vendor in default. Lessee shall advise Lessor of the
steps it intends to take in connection with any such default. Any amounts received by Lessee in
respect of damages, refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the foregoing shall be
paid to Lessor and applied against Lessee’s obligations under this Equipment Schedule.

As a prerequisite to the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations undet this Equipment
Schedule, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor, in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor, a certified
copy of each Surety Bond satisfying the conditions set forth in this Section __, or, at Lessor’s
sole discretion, such Surety Bonds may be provided after the Commencement Date of this
Equipment Schedule, provided however, that no “Disbursement Request” pursuant to the Escrow

4
MELPA BANA
January 2020



Agreement for this Equipment Schedule shall be authorized by Lessor until such Surety Bonds
satisfying the conditions set forth in this Section have been delivered to Lessor.

[71(8][9].Lease Term. The Lease Term shall consist of the Original Term and consecutive
Renewal Terms, with the final Renewal Term ending on , subject to earlier
termination pursuant to the Agreement.

[OPTION: IF MOTOR VEHICLES ARE BEING FINANCED:

[8I[91(10]. Registration. Any Equipment that is a motor vehicle is to be registered and titled as
follows:

(a) Registered Owner: North Central Fire Protection District
Bank of America, National Association
Bank of America Plaza

600 Peachtree Street NE, 11" Floor
Atlanta, GA 30308-2265

b) Lienholder:

Lessee shall be responsible for the correct titling of all Equipment leased hereunder. Lessee will
cause the original Certificates of Title to be delivered to Lessor for retention in Lessor’s files
throughout the Lease Term of the Lease created hereby.

Dated:

LESSOR: LESSEE:

LESSOR: LESSEE:

Bank of America, National Association North Central Fire Protection District
11333 McCormick Road 15850 W Kearney Blvd

Hunt Valley II Kerman, CA 93630

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration
Fax No.: (443) 541-3057

By:

Name:

Title:

MELPA BANA
January 2020

Attention: Fire Chief
Phone No.: (559) 878-4550

By:

Name:
Title: Fire Chief

ATTEST:

By:




Name:
Title: Secretary

Counterpart No. of manually executed and serially numbered counterparts.
To the extent that the Lease created hereby constitutes chattel paper (as defined in the applicable
Uniform Commercial Code), no security or ownership interest herein may be created through the
transfer or possession of any Counterpart other than Counterpart No. 1.

MELPA BANA
January 2020



EXHIBIT A-2

ForM OF EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE No. - ENERGY SERVICES EQUIPMENT

Re:  Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21,
2023, between Bank of America, National Association, a national banking
association, as Lessor, and North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

1. Defined Terms. All terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the
above-referenced Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”).

2. Equipment.

(2) Location of Equipment: For purposes of the Lease created hereby, the location
of Equipment is set forth below:

(b) Equipment Description (Scope of Work): For purposes of the Lease created
hereby, the description of the Equipment and the scope of work is set forth
below:

3. Payment Schedule.

(@)  Rental Payments; Commencement Date. The Rental Payments shall be in such
amounts and payable on such Rental Payment Dates as set forth in the Payment Schedule attached
to this Equipment Schedule and incorporated herein by this reference, subject to adjustment upon
the occurrence of an Event of Taxability as provided in Section 4.06 of the Agreement. Lessee’s
obligation to pay Rental Payments under the Lease created hereby shall commence on the earlier
of (i) the date on which the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is accepted by Lessee in
the manner described in Section 5.01 of the Agreement, as evidenced by the Final Acceptance
Certificate executed by Lessee and substantially in the form of Exhibit E attached to the
Agreement, or (ii) the date on which the Acquisition Amount is deposited in an Escrow Account
for the purpose of acquiring and installing the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule
pursuant to Section 3.04(c) of the Agreement (the earlier of such two dates being herein referred
to as the “Commencement Date”).

(b)  Prepayment Price Schedule. The Prepayment Price on each Rental Payment Date
shall be the amount set forth for such Rental Payment Date in the “Prepayment Price” column of
the Payment Schedule attached to this Equipment Schedule plus all Rental Payments then due
(including the Rental Payment due on such Rental Payment Date) plus all other amounts then
owing under this Equipment Schedule.

A-1



4. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Lessee hereby represents, warrants and
covenants that its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in the Agreement
(particularly Section 2.01 thereof) are true and correct as though made on the Commencement
Date. Lessee further represents and warrants that (a) no Material Adverse Change has occurred
since the dated date of the Agreement; (b) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing
under any Lease currently in effect; (c) no Event of Non-appropriation under any Lease currently
in effect has occurred or is threatened; (d) no Lease has been terminated as the result of the
occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-appropriation; (€) the governing body of
Lessee has authorized the execution and delivery of the Agreement and this Equipment Schedule;
(f) the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is essential to the functions of Lessee or to
the services Lessee provides its citizens; (g) Lessee has an immediate need for, and expects to
make immediate use of, substantially all such Equipment, which will be used by Lessee only for
the purpose of performing one or more of Lessee’s governmental or proprietary functions
consistent with the permissible scope of its authority; and (h) Lessee expects and anticipates
adequate funds to be available for all future payments or rent due after the current budgetary
period.

5. The Lease. The terms and provisions of the Agreement (other than to the extent that
they relate solely to other Equipment Schedules or Equipment listed on other Equipment
Schedules) are hereby incorporated into this Equipment Schedule by reference and made a part
hereof.

6.  Acquisition Amount. The Acquisition Amount that Lessor shall pay to the Escrow

Agent for deposit into the Escrow Account in connection with this Equipment Schedule is

. Itis expected that by [six (6)] [twelve (12)] [eighteen (18)] months from the date

of this Equipment Schedule No. , Lessee will have taken possession of all items of

Equipment shown above and that the Lessee’s final Disbursement Request pursuant to the Escrow

Agreement will be signed by Lessee, approved by Lessor and delivered to the Escrow Agent on or
before [six (6)] [twelve (12)] [eighteen (18)] months from the date of this Equipment Schedule.

7. Acquisition Period. The Acquisition Period applicable to this Equipment Schedule
shall end at the conclusion of the month following the date hereof.

8. Health and Safety Code Section 13906 Representations. Pursuant to California
Health and Safety Code Section 13906(b), Lessee represents and warrants that the amount of
indebtedness to be incurred shall not exceed an amount equal to three times the actual income from
property taxes received pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13896 for the fiscal year
preceding the year in which the indebtedness is incurred. The Lease shall be repaid within 10 years
from the Commencement Date. The resolution of Lessee authorizing this Lease was adopted by a
two-thirds majority vote of the total membership of Lessee’s board of directors.

A-2



9. Additional Representation Regarding the Use and Maintenance of the Equipment;
Additional Representation Regarding Damage, Destruction and Condemnation.

(a) Lessee agrees that it shall (a) proceed promptly, at its expense, to protect its rights and
exercise its remedies under any warranty then in effect with respect to the Equipment under this
Equipment Schedule; and (b) replace or rebuild any component of the Equipment under this
Equipment Schedule that becomes permanently unfit for normal use or inoperable during the Lease
Term of this Equipment Schedule (herein, the “Inoperable Component™) in order to keep the
Equipment as a whole in good repair and working order during the Lease Term of this Equipment
Schedule. Lessec shall promptly notify Lessor in writing when any component of the Equipment
under this Equipment Schedule is reasonably expected within forty-five (45) days to become an
Inoperable Component. Lessee shall promptly replace or rebuild the Inoperable Component under
this Equipment Schedule with a similar component of comparable or improved make and model
that has at least the equivalent value and utility of the applicable Inoperable Component, a
remaining useful life of no less than the remaining Lease Term under this Equipment Schedule
and such replacement or rebuilt component shall be in good operating condition.

(b) If Lessee elects to replace any item of the Equipment with Replacement Equipment
pursuant to Section 8.01 of the Agreement, in addition to the other requirements set forth in Section
8.01, the Replacement Equipment shall also provide at least the same level of energy and/or
operational savings expected in the aggregate from the Replaced Equipment prior to such casualty,
destruction or condemnation.

10.  Liability Insurance. Lessee shall, during the Lease Term under this Equipment
Schedule, maintain or cause to be maintained liability insurance naming Lessor and its assigns as
additional insured that protects Lessor from liability with limits of at least $5,000,000 per
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage coverage (such liability insurance coverage may
be in a combination of primary general liability and/or excess liability umbrella coverage).

1. Surety Bonds; Lessee to Pursue Remedies Against Contractors and Sub-
Contractors and Their Sureties. Lessee shall secure from each Vendor directly employed by
Lessee in connection with the acquisition, construction, installation, improvement or equipping of
the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule, a payment and performance bond (“Surety
Bond”) executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State, having a financial
strength rating by A.M. Best Company of “A-” or better, and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor and
naming Lessor as a co-obligee in a sum equal to the entire amount to become payable under each
Vendor Agreement. Each bond shall be conditioned on the completion of the work in accordance
with the plans and specifications for the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule and upon
payment of all claims of subcontractors and suppliers. Lessee shall cause the surety company to
add Lessor as a co-obligee on each Surety Bond, and shall deliver a certified copy of each Surety
Bond to Lessor promptly upon receipt thereof by Lessee. Any proceeds from a Surety Bond shall
be applied in accordance with such Surety Bond to the payment and performance of the Vendor’s
obligations in accordance with the related Vendor Agreement and, if for whatever reason such

A-3



proceeds are not so applied, first to amounts due Lessor under this Equipment Schedule, and any
remaining amounts shall be payable to Lessee.

In the event of a material default of any Vendor under any Vendor Agreement in connection with
the acquisition, construction, maintenance and/or servicing of the Equipment listed in this
Equipment Schedule or in the event of a material breach of warranty with respect to any material
workmanship or performance guaranty with respect to such Equipment, Lessee will promptly
proceed to exhaust its remedies against the Vendor in default. Lessee shall advise Lessor of the
steps it intends to take in connection with any such default. Any amounts received by Lessee in
respect of damages, refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the foregoing shall be
paid to Lessor and applied against Lessee’s obligations under this Equipment Schedule.

As a prerequisite to the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations under this Equipment
Schedule, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor, in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor, a certified
copy of each Surety Bond satisfying the conditions set forth in this Section __, or, at Lessor’s
sole discretion, such Surety Bonds may be provided after the Commencement Date of this
Equipment Schedule, provided however, that no “Disbursement Request” pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement for this Equipment Schedule shall be authorized by Lessor until such Surety Bonds
satisfying the conditions set forth in this Section have been delivered to Lessor.

12.  Lease Term. The Lease Term shall consist of the Original Term and consecutive
Renewal Terms, with the final Renewal Term ending on , subject to earlier
termination pursuant to the Agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

A-4



Dated:

LESSOR: LESSEE:

Bank of America, National Association North Central Fire Protection District
11333 McCormick Road 15850 W Keamey Blvd

Hunt Valley II Kerman, CA 93630

M/C MD5-032-07-05 Attention: Fire Chief

Hunt Valley, MD 21031 Phone No.: (559) 878-4550

Attention: Contract Administration
Fax No.: (443) 541-3057

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title: Fire Chief
ATTEST:
By:
Name:

Title: Secretary

Counterpart No. of manually executed and serially numbered counterparts.
To the extent that the Lease created hereby constitutes chattel paper (as defined in the applicable
Uniform Commercial Code), no security or ownership interest herein may be created through the
transfer or possession of any Counterpart other than Counterpart No. 1.

A-5



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF PAYMENT SCHEDULE

PREPAYMENT CASUALTY

PRICE VALUE
[including [including
RENTAL RENTAL prepayment casualty
PAYMENT PAYMENT INTEREST PRINCIPAL OUTSTANDING  premium; if premium; if
DATE AMOUNT PORTION PORTION BALANCE applicable] applicable]

Contract Rate; Taxable Rate. The Contract Rate for this Equipment Schedule is
% per annum. The Taxable Rate for this Equipment Schedule is % per
annum.

Prepayment Option Commencement Date. For purposes of Section 10.01 of the
Agreement, the Prepayment Option Commencement Date for this Equipment Schedule is

LESSOR: LESSEE:

Bank of America, National Association North Central Fire Protection District
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:




EXHIBIT C-1A
FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION (AGREEMENT)

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF NORTH CENTRAL FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT
AND SEPARATE EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES THERETO FOR THE
ACQUISITION, FINANCING AND LEASING OF CERTAIN EQUIPMENT FOR
THE PUBLIC BENEFIT WITHIN THE TERMS HEREIN PROVIDED;
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF OTHER DOCUMENTS
REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION
OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION.

WHEREAS, North Central Fire Protection District (the “Lessee”), a special district duly
organized and existing as a political subdivision, municipal corporation or similar public entity of
the State of California, is authorized by the laws of the State of California to acquire, finance and
lease personal property (tangible and intangible) for the benefit of the Lessee and its inhabitants
and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Lessee (the “Board”) has determined that a need
exists for the acquisition, financing and leasing of certain equipment consisting of
, which constitutes personal property necessary for the Lessee to perform
essential governmental functions (collectively, the “Equipment”) on the terms herein provided;
and

WHEREAS, in order to acquire such Equipment, the Lessee proposes to enter into that
certain Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Bank of America,
National Association (or one of its affiliates), as lessor (the “Lessor”), substantially in the
proposed form presented to the Board at this meeting, and separate Equipment Schedules thereto
substantially in the form attached to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it for the benefit of the Lessee and for the efficient and
effective administration thereof to enter into the Agreement and separate Equipment Schedules
thereunder and the other documentation relating thereto from time to time as provided in the
Agreement for the acquisition, financing and leasing of the Equipment to be therein described on
the terms and conditions therein and herein provided;

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the governing body of the Lessee
as follows:

Section 1. Findings and Determinations. 1Tt is hereby found and determined that the
terms of the Agreement (including the form of Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment
Schedule, both attached thereto), in the form presented to the Board at this meeting, are in the best
interests of the Lessee for the acquisition financing and leasing of the Equipment.



Section 2. Approval of Documents. The form, terms and provisions of the Agreement
(including the form of Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment Schedule, both attached
thereto) are hereby approved in substantially the forms presented at this meeting, with such
insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by [insert title of
officials] of the Lessee or other members of the governing body of the Lessee (the “Authorized
Officials ) executing the same, the execution of such documents being conclusive evidence of
such approval; and the of the Lessee is hereby authorized and
directed to execute, and the of the Lessee is hereby authorized and directed to
attest, the Agreement and any related Exhibits attached thereto and to deliver the Agreement
(including such Exhibits) to the respective parties thereto. The Authorized Officials are each
hereby authorized and directed to sign and deliver on behalf of the Lessee the Agreement, each
Equipment Schedule thereto under which a separate Lease (as defined in the Agreement) is created,
each Payment Schedule attached thereto, any related Escrow Agreement and any related exhibits
attached thereto if and when required; provided, however, that, without further authorization from
the governing body of the Lessee, (a) the aggregate principal component of Rental Payments under
all Leases entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall not exceed $ ; (b) the
maximum term under any Lease entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall not exceed
[ ] years; and (c) the maximum interest rate used to determine the interest
component of Rental Payments under each Lease shall not exceed the lesser of the maximum rate
permitted by law or | percent (__ %)] per annum. The Authorized Officials may sign
and deliver Leases to the Lessor on behalf of the Lessee pursuant to the Agreement on such terms
and conditions as they shall determine are in the best interests of the Lessee up to the maximum
aggregate principal component, maximum term and maximum interest rate provided above. The
foregoing authorization shall remain in effect for a period of [two] years from the date hereof
during which the Authorized Officials are authorized to sign and deliver Leases pursuant to the
Agreement on the terms and conditions herein provided and to be provided in each such Lease.

Section 3.  Other Actions Authorized. The officers and employees of the Lessee shall
take all action necessary or reasonably required by the parties to the Agreement to carry out, give
effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby (including the execution and
delivery of Final Acceptance Certificates, Escrow Agreements, Disbursement Requests and any
tax certificate and agreement, as contemplated in the Agreement) and to take all action necessary
in conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing
and other documents required to be delivered in connection with the Agreement and each Lease.

Section 4.  No General Liability. Nothing contained in this Resolution, the Agreement,
any Lease, any Escrow Agreement nor any other instrument shall be construed with respect to the
Lessee as incurring a pecuniary liability or charge upon the general credit of the Lessee or against
its taxing power, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in this Resolution, the
Agreement, any Lease, any Escrow Agreement or any other instrument or document executed in
connection therewith impose any pecuniary liability upon the Lessee or any charge upon its general
credit or against its taxing power, except to the extent that the Rental Payments payable under each
Lease entered into pursuant to the Agreement are limited obligations of the Lessee, subject to
annual appropriation, as provided in the Agreement.



Section 5.  Appointment of Authorized Lessee Representatives. The
and of the Lessee are each hereby
designated to act as authorized representatives of the Lessee for purposes of each Lease and related
Escrow Agreement until such time as the governing body of the Lessee shall designate any other
or different authorized representative for purposes of the Agreement and any Lease or Escrow
Agreement.

Section 6.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution.

Section 7. Repealer. All bylaws, orders and resolutions or parts thereof, inconsistent
herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency with respect to this
Resolution. This repealer shall not be construed as reviving any bylaw, order, resolution or
ordinance or part thereof.

Section 8.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its
approval and adoption.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the governing body of the Lessee this day of

North Central Fire Protection District,

as lessee
By:
Printed Name;:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:

Printed: Name:
Title:




The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary
of the Lessee identified in the above Resolution No. ___ (the “Resolution”), hereby certifies that
the Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of such Resolution as adopted by the governing body
of the Lessee on ,20__. The Resolution is in full force and effect on the date hereof
and has not been amended, modified or otherwise changed by the governing body of the Lessee
since the date of adoption of the Resolution.

DATED this day of , 20

Name:
Title:




ExHIBIT C-1B
FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION (LLEASE)

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF NORTH CENTRAL FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF AN EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE TO THE MASTER EQUIPMENT
LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION, FINANCING
AND LEASING OF CERTAIN EQUIPMENT FOR THE PUBLIC BENEFIT
WITHIN THE TERMS PROVIDED HEREIN; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF OTHER DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS
NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION.

WHEREAS, North Central Fire Protection District (the “Lessee™), a special district duly
organized and existing as a political subdivision, municipal corporation or similar public entity of
the State of California, is authorized by the laws of the State of California to acquire, finance and
lease personal property (tangible and intangible) for the benefit of the Lessee and its inhabitants
and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Lessee (the “Board”) has determined that a need
exists for the acquisition, financing and leasing of certain equipment with a cost not to exceed
$ and consisting of , which constitutes personal property
necessary for the Lessee to perform essential governmental functions (collectively, the
“Equipment”) on the terms herein provided; and

WHEREAS, in order to acquire such Equipment, the Lessee proposes to enter into that
certain Equipment Schedule (the “Equipment Schedule”) with Bank of America, National
Association (or one of its affiliates), as lessor (the “Lessor”), substantially in the proposed form
presented to the Board at this meeting, which Equipment Schedule incorporates by reference the
terms and provisions of that certain Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of
December 21, 2023, by and between Lessor and Lessee (the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it for the benefit of the Lessee and for the efficient and
effective administration thereof to enter into the Equipment Schedule and the other documentation
relating to the acquisition, financing and leasing of the Equipment to be therein described on the
terms and conditions therein and herein provided;

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the governing body of the Lessee
as follows:

Section 1. Findings and Determinations. 1t is hereby found and determined that the
terms of the Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment Schedule, in the form presented to the
Board at this meeting, are in the best interests of the Lessee for the acquisition financing and
leasing of the Equipment.



Section 2. Approval of Documents. The form, terms and provisions of the Equipment
Schedule and Payment Schedule are hereby approved in substantially the forms presented at this
meeting, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by
[insert title of officials] ] of the Lessee or other members of the governing
body of the Lessee (the “Authorized Officials”) executing the same, the execution of such
documents being conclusive evidence of such approval. The Authorized Officials are each hereby
authorized and directed to sign and deliver on behalf of the Lessee the Equipment Schedule under
which a separate Lease (as defined in the Agreement) is created, the Payment Schedule attached
thereto, the Escrow Agreement and any related exhibits attached thereto.

Section 3. Other Actions Authorized. The officers and employees of the Lessee shall
take all action necessary or reasonably required by the parties to the Lease to carry out, give effect
to and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby (including the execution and delivery
of a Final Acceptance Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, Disbursement Requests and any tax
certificate and agreement, as contemplated in the Agreement) and to take all action necessary in
conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing and
other documents required to be delivered in connection with the Lease.

Section 4.  No General Liability. Nothing contained in this Resolution, the Lease, the
Escrow Agreement nor any other instrument shall be construed with respect to the Lessee as
incurring a pecuniary liability or charge upon the general credit of the Lessee or against its taxing
power, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in this Resolution, the Lease, the Escrow
Agreement or any other instrument or document executed in connection therewith impose any
pecuniary liability upon the Lessee or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing power,
except to the extent that the Rental Payments payable under the Lease entered into pursuant to the
Agreement are limited obligations of the Lessee, subject to annual appropriation, as provided in
the Agreement.

Section 5.  Appointment of Authorized Lessee Representatives. The
and of the Lessee are each hereby
designated to act as authorized representatives of the Lessee for purposes of the Lease and the
Escrow Agreement until such time as the goveming body of the Lessee shall designate any other
or different authorized representative for purposes of the Lease or the Escrow Agreement.

Section 6.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution.

Section 7. Repealer. All bylaws, orders and resolutions or parts thereof, inconsistent
herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency with respect to this
Resolution. This repealer shall not be construed as reviving any bylaw, order, resolution or
ordinance or part thereof.

Section 8.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its
approval and adoption.



ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the governing body of the Lessee this day of

North Central Fire Protection District,

as lessee
By:
Printed Name;
Title:
ATTEST:
By:

Printed: Name:
Title;




The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary
of the Lessee identified in the above Resolution No.  (the “Resolution”), hereby certifies that
the Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of such Resolution as adopted by the governing body
of the Lessee on ,20__. The Resolution is in full force and effect on the date hereof
and has not been amended, modified or otherwise changed by the governing body of the Lessee
since the date of adoption of the Resolution.

DATED this day of , 20

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT C-2A
FORM OF INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE (AGREEMENT)

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary of North Central Fire
Protection District ( “Lessee ) certifies as follows:

A. The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting officials of
Lessee (the “Officials”’) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names below and the
facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof; and

B. THE OFFICIALS ARE DULY AUTHORIZED, ON BEHALF OF LESSEE, TO NEGOTIATE,
EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
DECEMBER 21, 2023 (THE “AGREEMENT”) AND SEPARATE EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES RELATING
THERETO FROM TIME TO TIME AS PROVIDED IN THE AGREEMENT (COLLECTIVELY, THE “EQUIPMENT
SCHEDULES”), EACH BY AND BETWEEN LESSEE AND BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(“LESSOR”), THE ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT DATED AS OF BY AND
AMONG LESSOR, LESSEE AND AS ESCROW AGENT, ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED
THERETO AND DELIVERED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AND ANY FUTURE MODIFICATION(S) OR
AMENDMENTS THEREOF (COLLECTIVELY, THE “OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS”), AND THE OPERATIVE
AGREEMENTS EACH ARE THE BINDING AND AUTHORIZED AGREEMENTS OF LESSEE, ENFORCEABLE IN
ALL RESPECTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR RESPECTIVE TERMS.

Name of Official Title Signature

DATED: By:
NAME:
TITLE: SECRETARY

(THE SIGNER OF THIS CERTIFICATE CANNOT BE LISTED ABOVE AS AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE
OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS.)



ExHIBIT C-2B
FORM OF INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE (LLEASE)

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary of North Central Fire
Protection District (“Lessee”) certifies as follows:

A.  The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting officials of
Lessee (the “Officials ) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names below and the
facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof: and

B. THE OFFICIALS ARE DULY AUTHORIZED, ON BEHALF OF LESSEE, TO NEGOTIATE,
EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE NO. _ DATED AS OF (THE
“EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE”), WHICH INCORPORATES BY REFERENCE THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF
THE MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF DECEMBER 21, 2023 (THE
“AGREEMENT”), EACH BY AND BETWEEN LESSEE AND BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(“LESSOR”), [THE ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT DATED AS OF BY AND
AMONG LESSOR, LESSEE AS ESCROW AGENT,] AND ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED
THERETO AND DELIVERED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AND ANY FUTURE MODIFICATION(S) OR
AMENDMENTS THEREOF (COLLECTIVELY, THE “OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS”), AND THE OPERATIVE
AGREEMENTS EACH ARE THE BINDING AND AUTHORIZED AGREEMENTS OF LESSEE, ENFORCEABLE IN
ALL RESPECTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR RESPECTIVE TERMS.

Name of Official Title Signature

DATED: By:
NAME:;
TITLE: SECRETARY

(THE SIGNER OF THIS CERTIFICATE CANNOT BE LISTED ABOVE AS AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE
OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS.)



EXHIBITD

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO LESSEE
(to be typed on letterhead of counsel)

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley 11

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re:  Equipment Schedule No. , dated , to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023, by
and between Bank of America, National Association, as Lessor, and North
Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Baker Manock & Jensen, PC serves as legal counsel to North Central Fire Protection
District (“Lessee ), | have examined (a) an executed counterpart of that certain Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Agreement”) and Exhibits
thereto, by and between Bank of America, National Association, as lessor (“Lessor ), and Lessee;
(b) an executed counterpart of Equipment Schedule No. , dated , by and
between Lessor and Lessee, which incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of the
Agreement (such Equipment Schedule No. together with such incorporated terms and
provisions are herein referred to collectively as the “Equipment Schedule”), has attached the
Payment Schedule with respect thereto (the “Payment Schedule”) executed by Lessee, and
provides for the lease of certain property listed in the Equipment Schedule (the “Equipment”);
(¢) an executed counterpart of that certain Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of

(the “Escrow Agreement”), by and among Lessor, Lessee and ,as
Escrow Agent; (d) an executed counterpart of the ordinances or resolutions of Lessee with respect
to authorization of the transaction contemplated by the Agreement, the Equipment Schedule, the
Escrow Agreement and documents related thereto; and (e) such other opinions, documents and
matters of law as I have deemed necessary in connection with the following opinions. The
Agreement, the Equipment Schedule, including the terms and provisions of the Agreement
incorporated therein by reference, the related Payment Schedule, the Escrow Agreement and the
documents relating thereto are herein collectively referred to as the “Transaction Documents.”

Based on the foregoing, I am of the following opinions:

1. Lessee is a special district, duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State, and is a political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(c)
of the Interal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the obligations of



Lessee under the Lease will constitute an obligation of Lessee within the meaning of
Section 103(a) of the Code, notwithstanding Section 103(b) of the Code.

2. Lessee has the requisite power and authority to lease and acquire the
Equipment and to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents and to perform its
obligations under the Transaction Documents.

3. The Transaction Documents have been duly authorized, approved, executed
and delivered by and on behalf of Lessee and the Transaction Documents are legal, valid
and binding obligations of Lessee, enforceable against Lessee in accordance with their
respective terms, except to the extent limited by State and Federal law affecting creditor’s
remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general
application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights.

4.  The authorization, approval, execution and delivery of the Transaction
Documents and all other proceedings of Lessce relating to the transactions contemplated
thereby have been performed in accordance with all open meeting laws, procurement and
public bidding laws and all other applicable State or Federal laws.

5. There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would
adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents or the
security interest of Lessor or its assigns, as the case may be, in the Equipment under the
Lease, the Escrow Account or other Collateral thereunder.

[6. The portion of Rental Payments designated as interest is excluded from
Lessor’s gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code and
1s exempt from State of personal income taxes; and such interest is not
a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the Federal alternative minimum tax.!]

[6.  The portion of Rental Payments designated as interest or constituting or
accruing as original issue discount is excluded from Lessor’s gross income for Federal
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code and is exempt from State of
personal income taxes; and such interest and original issue discount are
not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the Federal alternative minimum tax.2]

| Please use this provision if the opinion of counsel will include a tax opinion.
2 Please use this provision if the opinion of counsel will include a tax opinion and there is OID.



All capitalized terms herein shall have the same meanings as in the Transaction
Documents, unless otherwise provided herein. Lessor and its successors and assigns, and any
counsel rendering an opinion on the tax-exempt status of the Rental Payments3, are entitled to rely
on this opinion. This opinion is limited to the express statements contained herein and may not be
relied upon for any other purpose except as expressly provided herein.

Printed Name: Signature:
Firm: Dated:
Address:

Telephone No.:

\) 3 Please use this provision if bond counsel will be providing a separate tax opinion.



EXHIBIT E
FORM OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley II

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re:  Equipment Schedule No. , dated , to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023, by
and between Bank of America, National Association, as Lessor, and North
Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the above-referenced Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement

(the “Agreement”), the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with,
Lessor as follows:

1. All of the Equipment listed in the above-referenced Equipment Schedule
(the “Equipment Schedule ") has been delivered, installed and accepted on the date hereof.

2. Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment listed
in the Equipment Schedule as it deems necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges
that it accepts the Equipment for all purposes.

3. Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by
Section 7.02 of the Agreement.

4.  Lessee hereby reaffirms that the representations, warranties and covenants
contained in the Agreement and incorporated into the Equipment Schedule by reference
are true and correct as of the date hereof.

5. (a) No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or
both, would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof under any Lease
currently in effect; (b) no Material Adverse Change has occurred since the date of the
execution and delivery of the Agreement; (c) no Event of Non-appropriation under any
Lease currently in effect has occurred or been threatened; and (d) no Lease has been
terminated as the result of the occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of
Non-appropriation.

Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Final Acceptance Certificate shall have the
same meanings as when such terms are used in the Agreement.



Date:

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:

Title:




ExuiBiT F
FORM OF SELF-INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley II

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re: Equipment Schedule No. , dated , to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21,
2023, by and between Bank of America, National Association, as
Lessor, and North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

In connection with the above-referenced Equipment Schedule (the “Equipment
Schedule”), North Central Fire Protection District (the “Lessee”) hereby warrants and represents
to Bank of America, National Association the following information. The terms capitalized herein
but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the above-referenced Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) incorporated into the Equipment
Schedule by reference.

1. The Lessee is self-insured for damage or destruction to the Equipment listed in the
Equipment Schedule (herein, the “Equipment”). The dollar amount limit for property damage to
the Equipment under such self-insurance program is $ . [The Lessee
maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for
property damage to the Equipment which policy has a dollar limit for property damage to the
Equipment under such policy of $ ]

2. The Lessee is self-insured for liability for injury or death of any person or damage or
loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment. The
dollar limit for such liability claims under the Lessee’s self-insurance program is
$ . [The Lessee maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess
of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for liability which policy has a dollar limit for liabilities for injury
and death to persons as well as damage or loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition
or operation of the Equipment in the amount of $

[3]. The Lessee maintains a self-insurance fund. Monies in the self-insurance fund
[are/are not] subject to annual appropriation. The total amount maintained in the self-insurance
fund to cover Lessee’s self-insurance liabilities is $ . [Amounts paid from the
Lessee’s self-insurance fund are subject to a dollar per claim of $ ]




[3]. The Lessee does not maintain a self-insurance fund. The Lessee obtains funds to pay
claims for which it has self-insured from the following sources:
Amounts payable for claims from such sources are limited as follows:

4. Attached hereto are copies of certificates of insurance with respect to policies
maintained by Lessee.

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT G
FORM OF BANK QUALIFICATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, a duly authorized official of North Central Fire Protection District (the

“Lessee”) certifies in connection with Schedule of Property No. , dated as of

, which incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of that certain Master

Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023 (such Schedule of Property

and incorporated terms and provisions are herein referred to as the “Lease ”), each by and between
Bank of America, National Association and Lessee, as follows:

1. The obligations evidenced by the Lease are not “private activity bonds” as defined in
Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);

2. The Lessee hereby designates the principal components of the Rental Payments
payable under the Lease as “qualified tax-exempt obligations™ for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
of the Code;

3. The reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than private
activity bonds, treating qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as not being private activity bonds) which will
be issued by the Lessee (and all entities treated as one issuer with the Lessee, and all subordinate
entities whose obligations are treated as issued by the Lessee) during the current calendar year will
not exceed $10,000,000; and

4. Not more than $10,000,000 of obligations issued by the Lessee during the current
calendar year has been designated for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

DATE:

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT H
FORM OF NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASSIGNMENT

Dated

BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ( “Assignor”) hereby gives notice that, as of
, 20, it has assigned and sold to (“Assignee”) all of
Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and under Equipment Schedule No. , dated
(including the Payment Schedule attached thereto, the “Equipment
Schedule”), which incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of that certain Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Agreement”), each
by and between Assignor and North Central Fire Protection District ( “Lessee”), together with all
exhibits, schedules, riders, addenda and attachments related thereto, and all certifications and other
documents delivered in connection therewith, the Rental Payments and other amounts due under
the Lease (as such term is hereinafter defined), all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in the
Equipment listed in the Equipment Schedule and all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and
under the Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of ,20 _ (the “Escrow
Agreement”) by and among Lessee, Assignor and , as Escrow Agent,
together with the Escrow Account related thereto (collectively, the “Assigned Property”).

For purposes of this Notice and Acknowledgment of Assignment (the
“Acknowledgment”), “Lease” means collectively the Equipment Schedule and the terms and
provisions of the Agreement incorporated therein by reference, together with all exhibits,
schedules, riders, addenda and attachments related thereto, and all certifications and other
documents delivered in connection therewith. The term “Lease” specifically excludes all other
Equipment Schedules entered into under the Agreement and Rental Payments other than with
respect to the Equipment Schedule. Each capitalized term used but not defined herein has the
meaning set forth in the Agreement.

1. Lessee hereby acknowledges the effect of the assignment of the Assigned Property
and absolutely and unconditionally agrees to deliver to Assignee all Rental Payments and other
amounts coming due under the Lease in accordance with the terms thereof on and after the date of
this Acknowledgment.

2. Lessee hereby agrees that: (i) Assignee shall have all the rights of Lessor under the
Lease and all related documents, including, but not limited to, the rights to issue or receive all
notices and reports, to give all consents or agreements to modifications thereto, to receive title to
the Equipment in accordance with the terms of the Lease, to declare a default and to exercise all
rights and remedies thereunder in connection with the occurrence of an Event of Non-appropriation
or an Event of Default; and (ii) [except as provided in Section 3.03 of the Agreement,] the
obligations of Lessee to make Rental Payments and to perform and observe the other covenants
and agreements contained in the Lease shall be absolute and unconditional in all events without
abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense.



3. Lessce agrees that, as of the date of this Notice and Acknowledgment of Assignment
(this “Acknowledgement”), the following information about the Lease is true, accurate and
complete:

Number of Rental Payments Remaining
Amount of Each Rental Payment

Total Amount of Rental Payments
Remaining

Frequency of Rental Payments

Next Rental Payment Due

Funds Remaining in Escrow Account $

oS

4. The Lease remains in full force and effect, has not been amended, no Event of Default
(or event which with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute a default)
has occurred thereunder and no Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with
respect thereto.

5. Assignor hereby acknowledges the transfer restrictions imposed by Section 11.01 of
the Agreement and confirms that the assignment to Assignee has been made in accordance with
the provisions of that Section.

6. Any inquiries of Lessee related to the Lease and any requests for disbursements from
the Escrow Account, if applicable, and all Rental Payments and other amounts coming due
pursuant to the Lease on and after the date of this Acknowledgment should be remitted to Assignee
at the following address (or such other address as provided to Lessee in writing from time to time
by Assignee):




ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:

LESSEE: NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
[For ExHIBIT PURPOSES ONLY]

By:

Name:;
Title;

ASSIGNOR: BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

[FOrR ExHIBIT PURPOSES ONLY]

By:

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT I

ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT



LIST OF DOCUMENTS

Exhibit A-1 Equipment Schedule — General Equipment

Exhibit B Payment Schedule

Exhibit C-1A Form of Authorizing Resolution (Agreement)

Exhibit C-2A Incumbency and Authorization Certificate (Agreement)

Exhibit D Form of Opinion of Counsel to Lessee

Exhibit E Form of Final Acceptance Certificate

Exhibit F Form of Self-Insurance Certificate — if applicable

Exhibit G Bank Qualification Certificate

Exhibit H Form of Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment — not applicable

Exhibit I Form of Escrow and Account Control Agreement



EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE NO. 01 - GENERAL EQUIPMENT

Re:  Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21,
2023, between Bank of America, National Association, a national banking
association, as Lessor, and North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

1. Defined Terms. All terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the
above-referenced Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”).

2. Equipment. For purposes of the Lease created hereby, the following items of
Equipment are hereby included under this Equipment Schedule together with all attachments,
additions, accessions, parts, repairs, improvements, replacements and substitutions thereto as
provided in the Agreement. The Equipment includes any equipment obtained with proceeds of
this Lease.

3 Spartan/Smeal Type I Pumper
The base location for the three Pumpers shall be 15850 W. Keamey Blvd, Kerman, CA 93630.

At the time of acceptance and disbursement of funds, the Serial Number and Model Number shall
be provided by Lessee to Lessor as a condition to such disbursement.

3. Payment Schedule.

(@) Rental Payments; Commencement Date. The Rental Payments shall be in such
amounts and payable on such Rental Payment Dates as set forth in the Payment Schedule attached
to this Equipment Schedule and incorporated herein by this reference, subject to adjustment upon
the occurrence of an Event of Taxability as provided in Section 4.06 of the Agreement. Lessee’s
obligation to pay Rental Payments under the Lease created hereby shall commence on the earlier
of (i) the date on which the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is accepted by Lessee in
the manner described in Section 5.01 of the Agreement, as evidenced by the Final Acceptance
Certificate executed by Lessee and substantially in the form of Exhibit E attached to the
Agreement, or (ii) the date on which the Acquisition Amount is deposited in an Escrow Account
for the purpose of acquiring and installing the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule
pursuant to Section 3.04(c) of the Agreement (the earlier of such two dates being herein referred
to as the “Commencement Date”).

(b) Prepayment Price Schedule. The Prepayment Price on each Rental Payment Date
shall be the amount set forth for such Rental Payment Date in the “Prepayment Price” column of
the Payment Schedule attached to this Equipment Schedule plus all Rental Payments then due
(including the Rental Payment due on such Rental Payment Date) plus all other amounts then
owing under this Equipment Schedule.



4. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Lessee hereby represents, warrants and
covenants that its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in the Agreement
(particularly Section 2.01 thereof) are true and correct as though made on the Commencement
Date. Lessee further represents and warrants that (a) no Material Adverse Change has occurred
since the dated date of the Agreement; (b) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing
under any Lease currently in effect; (c) no Event of Non-appropriation under any Lease currently
in effect has occurred or is threatened; (d) no Lease has been terminated as the result of the
occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-appropriation; (¢) the governing body of
Lessee has authorized the execution and delivery of the Agreement and this Equipment Schedule;
(f) the Equipment listed in this Equipment Schedule is essential to the functions of Lessee or to
the services Lessee provides its citizens; (g) Lessee has an immediate need for, and expects to
make immediate use of, substantially all such Equipment, which will be used by Lessee only for
the purpose of performing one or more of Lessee’s governmental or proprietary functions
consistent with the permissible scope of its authority; and (h) Lessee expects and anticipates
adequate funds to be available for all future payments or rent due after the current budgetary
period.

5. The Lease. The terms and provisions of the Agreement (other than to the extent that
they relate solely to other Equipment Schedules or Equipment listed on other Equipment
Schedules) are hereby incorporated into this Equipment Schedule by reference and made a part
hereof.

6. Acquisition Amount. The Acquisition Amount that Lessor shall pay to the Escrow
Agent for deposit into the Escrow Account in connection with this Equipment Schedule is
$2,853,500. It is expected that by eighteen (18) months from the date of this Equipment
Schedule No. 01, Lessee will have taken possession of all items of Equipment shown above and
that the Lessee’s final Disbursement Request pursuant to the Escrow Agreement will be signed by
Lessee, approved by Lessor and delivered to the Escrow Agent on or before eighteen (18) months
from the date of this Equipment Schedule.

7.  Acquisition Period. The Acquisition Period applicable to this Equipment Schedule
shall end at the conclusion of the 18th month following the date hereof.

8. Health and Safety Code Section 13906 Representations. Pursuant to California
Health and Safety Code Section 13906(b), Lessee represents and warrants that the amount of
indebtedness to be incurred shall not exceed an amount equal to three times the actual income from
property taxes received pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13896 for the fiscal year
preceding the year in which the indebtedness is incurred. The Lease shall be repaid within 10 years
from the Commencement Date. The resolution of Lessee authorizing this Lease was adopted by a
two-thirds majority vote of the total membership of Lessee’s board of directors.

9. Lease Term. The Lease Term shall consist of the Original Term and 10 consecutive
Renewal Terms, with the final Renewal Term ending on December 21, 2033, subject to earlier
termination pursuant to the Agreement.



10.  Registration. Any Equipment that is a motor vehicle is to be registered and titled as
follows:

(a) Registered Owner: North Central Fire Protection District
(b) Lienholder: Bank of America, National Association
Bank of America Plaza

600 Peachtree Street NE, 11* Floor
Atlanta, GA 30308-2265

Lessee shall be responsible for the correct titling of all Equipment leased hereunder. Lessee will

cause the original Certificates of Title to be delivered to Lessor for retention in Lessor’s files
throughout the Lease Term of the Lease created hereby.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



Dated: December 21, 2023

LESSOR: LESSEE:

Bank of America, National Association North Central Fire Protection District
11333 McCormick Road 15850 W Keamey Blvd

Hunt Valley II Kerman, CA 93630

M/C MD5-032-07-05 Attention: Fire Chief

Hunt Valley, MD 21031 Phone No.: (559) 878-4550

Attention: Contract Administration
Fax No.: (443) 541-3057

By: By:
Name: Name: Timothy V. Henry
Title: Title: Fire Chief
ATTEST:
By:

Name: Amanda Souza
Title: Secretary

Counterpart No. of manually executed and serially numbered counterparts.
To the extent that the Lease created hereby constitutes chattel paper (as defined in the applicable
Uniform Commercial Code), no security or ownership interest herein may be created through the
transfer or possession of any Counterpart other than Counterpart No. 1.




EXHIBIT B

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

RENTAL RENTAL INTEREST

PAYMENT PAYMENT PORTION PRINCIPAL OUTSTANDING PREPAYMENT CASUALTY

DATE AMOUNT (4.5880%) PORTION BALANCE PRICE VALUE

12/21/2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,853,500.00 N/A $2,882,035.00
7/1/2024 $179,724.92 $69,095.92 $110,629.00 $2,742,871.00 N/A $2,770,299.71
1/1/2025 $179,724.46 $62,921.46 $116,803.00 $2,626,068.00 N/A $2,652,328.68
7/1/2025 $179,725.00 $60,242.00 $119,483.00 $2,506,585.00 N/A $2,531,650.85
1/1/2026 $179,725.06 $57,501.06 $122,224.00 $2,384,361.00 N/A $2,408,204.61
7/1/2026 $179,724.24 $54,697.24 $125,027.00 $2,259,334.00 N/A $2,281,927.34
1/1/2027 $179,724.12 $51,829.12 $127,895.00 $2,131,439.00 N/A $2,152,753.39
7/1/2027 $179,724.21 $48,895.21 $130,829.00 $2,000,610.00 N/A $2,020,616.10
1/1/2028 $179,724.99 $45,893.99 $133,831.00 $1,866,779.00 N/A $1,885,446.79
7/1/2028 $179,724 .91 $42,823.91 $136,901.00 $1,729,878.00 N/A $1,747,176.78
1/1/2029 $179,724.40 $39,683.40 $140,041.00 $1,589,837.00 $1,589,837.00 $1,589,837.00
7/1/2029 $179,724.86 $36,470.86 $143,254.00 $1,446,583.00 $1,446,583.00 $1,446,583.00
1/1/2030 $179,724.61 $33,184.61 $146,540.00 $1,300,043.00  $1,300,043.00 $1,300,043.00
7/1/2030 $179,724.99 $29,822.99 $149,902.00 $1,150,141.00  $1,150,141.00  §$1,150,141.00
1/1/2031 $179,724.23 $26,384.23 $153,340.00 $996,801.00 $996,801.00 $996,801.00
7/1/2031 $179,724.61 $22,866.61 $156,858.00 $839,943.00 $839,943.00 $839,943.00
1/1/2032 $179,724.29 $19,268.29 $160,456.00 $679,487.00 $679,487.00 $679,487.00
7/1/2032 $179,724.43 $15,587.43 $164,137.00 $515,350.00 $515,350.00 $515,350.00
1/1/2033 $179,724.13 $11,822.13 $167,902.00 $347,448.00 $347,448.00 $347,448.00
7/1/2033 $179,724.46 $7,970.46 $171,754.00 $175,694.00 $175,694.00 $175,694.00
1/1/2034 $179,724.42 $4,030.42 $175,694.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total $3,594,491.34 $740,991.34 $2,853,500.00

Contract Rate; Taxable Rate. The Contract Rate for this Equipment Schedule is

4.5880% per annum. The Taxable Rate for this Equipment Schedule is 5.7157% per annum.

Prepayment Option Commencement Date. For purposes of Section 10.01 of the

Agreement, the Prepayment Option Commencement Date for this Equipment Schedule is
January 1, 2029.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS. ]



LESSOR: LESSEE:

Bank of America, National Association North Central Fire Protection District
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Signature Page — Exhibit B Payment Schedule

#765386v1A (BAPCC/Gov’t Entity Master Lease) B-2-2 (DISTRIBUTION COPY)



EXHIBIT C-1A
FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION (AGREEMENT)

[See actual resolution in the transcript.]



EXHIBIT C-2A
INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE (AGREEMENT)

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary of North Central Fire
Protection District ( “Lessee ) certifies as follows:

A. The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting officials of
Lessee (the “Officials ) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names below and the
facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof; and

B. THE OFFICIALS ARE DULY AUTHORIZED, ON BEHALF OF LESSEE, TO NEGOTIATE,
EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
DECEMBER 21, 2023 (THE “AGREEMENT”) AND SEPARATE EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES RELATING
THERETO FROM TIME TO TIME AS PROVIDED IN THE AGREEMENT (COLLECTIVELY, THE “EQUIPMENT
SCHEDULES”), EACH BY AND BETWEEN LESSEE AND BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(“LESSOR”), THE ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT DATED AS OF DECEMBER 21, 2023,
BY AND AMONG LESSOR, LESSEE AND ARGENT INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANY, AS ESCROW
AGENT, ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO AND DELIVERED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AND ANY
FUTURE MODIFICATION(S) OR AMENDMENTS THEREOF (COLLECTIVELY, THE “OPERATIVE
AGREEMENTS”’), AND THE OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS EACH ARE THE BINDING AND AUTHORIZED
AGREEMENTS OF LESSEE, ENFORCEABLE IN ALL RESPECTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR RESPECTIVE
TERMS.

Name of Official Title Signature
Timothy V. Henry Fire Chief
DATED:; DECEMBER 21,2023 By:

NAME: AMANDA SouzA
TITLE: SECRETARY

(THE SIGNER OF THIS CERTIFICATE CANNOT BE LISTED ABOVE AS AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE
OPERATIVE AGREEMENTS.)



EXHIBIT D

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO LESSEE
(to be typed on letterhead of counsel)

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley II

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re:  Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023, to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023, by
and between Bank of America, National Association, as Lessor, and North
Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Baker Manock & Jensen, PC serves as legal counsel to North Central Fire Protection
District ( “Lessee”), | have examined (a) an executed counterpart of that certain Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Agreement”) and Exhibits
thereto, by and between Bank of America, National Association, as lessor (“Lessor”"), and Lessee;
(b) an executed counterpart of Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023, by and
between Lessor and Lessee, which incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of the
Agreement (such Equipment Schedule No. 01 together with such incorporated terms and
provisions are herein referred to collectively as the “Equipment Schedule”), has attached the
Payment Schedule with respect thereto (the “Payment Schedule”) executed by Lessee, and
provides for the lease of certain property listed in the Equipment Schedule (the “Equipment”);
(c) an executed counterpart of that certain Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of
December 21, 2023 (the “Escrow Agreement”), by and among Lessor, Lessee and Argent
Institutional Trust Company, as Escrow Agent; (d) an executed counterpart of the ordinances or
resolutions of Lessee with respect to authorization of the transaction contemplated by the
Agreement, the Equipment Schedule, the Escrow Agreement and documents related thereto; and
(¢) such other opinions, documents and matters of law as I have deemed necessary in connection
with the following opinions. The Agreement, the Equipment Schedule, including the terms and
provisions of the Agreement incorporated therein by reference, the related Payment Schedule, the
Escrow Agreement and the documents relating thereto are herein collectively referred to as the
“Transaction Documents.”

Based on the foregoing, I am of the following opinions:

1. Lessee is a special district, duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State, and is a political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(c)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™) and the obligations of

1



Lessee under the Lease will constitute an obligation of Lessee within the meaning of
Section 103(a) of the Code, notwithstanding Section 103(b) of the Code.

2. Lessee has the requisite power and authority to lease and acquire the
Equipment and to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents and to perform its
obligations under the Transaction Documents.

3. The Transaction Documents have been duly authorized, approved, executed
and delivered by and on behalf of Lessee and the Transaction Documents are legal, valid
and binding obligations of Lessee, enforceable against Lessee in accordance with their
respective terms, except to the extent limited by State and Federal law affecting creditor’s
remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general
application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights.

4.  The authorization, approval, execution and delivery of the Transaction
Documents and all other proceedings of Lessee relating to the transactions contemplated
thereby have been performed in accordance with all open meeting laws, procurement and
public bidding laws and all other applicable State or Federal laws.

5. There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would
adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents or the
security interest of Lessor or its assigns, as the case may be, in the Equipment under the
Lease, the Escrow Account or other Collateral thereunder.

All capitalized terms herein shall have the same meanings as in the Transaction
Documents, unless otherwise provided herein. Lessor and its successors and assigns, and any
counsel rendering an opinion on the tax-exempt status of the Rental Payments, are entitled to rely
on this opinion. This opinion is limited to the express statements contained herein and may not be
relied upon for any other purpose except as expressly provided herein.

Printed Name: Signature:
Firm: Dated: December 21, 2023
Address:

Telephone No.:




EXHIBIT E
FORM OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley 11

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re:  Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023, to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023, by
and between Bank of America, National Association, as Lessor, and North
Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the above-referenced Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement

(the “Agreement”), the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with,
Lessor as follows:

1. All of the Equipment listed in the above-referenced Equipment Schedule
(the “Equipment Schedule”) has been delivered, installed and accepted on the date hereof.

2. Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment listed
in the Equipment Schedule as it deems necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges
that it accepts the Equipment for all purposes.

3. Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by
Section 7.02 of the Agreement.

4.  Lessee hereby reaffirms that the representations, warranties and covenants
contained in the Agreement and incorporated into the Equipment Schedule by reference
are true and correct as of the date hereof.

5. (a) No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or
both, would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof under any Lease
currently in effect; (b) no Material Adverse Change has occurred since the date of the
execution and delivery of the Agreement; (c) no Event of Non-appropriation under any
Lease currently in effect has occurred or been threatened; and (d) no Lease has been
terminated as the result of the occurrence of an Event of Default or an Event of
Non-appropriation.

Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Final Acceptance Certificate shall have the
same meanings as when such terms are used in the Agreement.



Date:

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT F
FORM OF SELF-INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road

Hunt Valley II

M/C MD5-032-07-05

Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Attention: Contract Administration

Re: Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023, to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21,
2023, by and between Bank of America, National Association, as
Lessor, and North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee

In connection with the above-referenced Equipment Schedule (the “Equipment
Schedule”’), North Central Fire Protection District (the “Lessee ) hereby warrants and represents
to Bank of America, National Association the following information. The terms capitalized herein
but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the above-referenced Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) incorporated into the Equipment
Schedule by reference.

1. The Lessee is self-insured for damage or destruction to the Equipment listed in the
Equipment Schedule (herein, the “Equipment”). The dollar amount limit for property damage to
the Equipment under such self-insurance program is $ . [The Lessee
maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for
property damage to the Equipment which policy has a dollar limit for property damage to the
Equipment under such policy of § ]

2. The Lessee is self-insured for liability for injury or death of any person or damage or
loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment. The
dollar limit for such liability claims under the Lessee’s self-insurance program is
$ . [The Lessee maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess
of Lessee’s self-insurance limits for liability which policy has a dollar limit for liabilities for injury
and death to persons as well as damage or loss of property arising out of or relating to the condition
or operation of the Equipment in the amount of $

[3]. The Lessee maintains a self-insurance fund. Monies in the self-insurance fund
[are/are not] subject to annual appropriation. The total amount maintained in the self-insurance
fund to cover Lessee’s self-insurance liabilities is $ . [Amounts paid from the
Lessee’s self-insurance fund are subject to a dollar per claim of $ .




[3]. The Lessee does not maintain a self-insurance fund. The Lessee obtains funds to pay
claims for which it has self-insured from the following sources:
Amounts payable for claims from such sources are limited as follows:

4. Attached hereto are copies of certificates of insurance with respect to policies
maintained by Lessee.

LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT G
BANK QUALIFICATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, a duly authorized official of North Central Fire Protection District (the
“Lessee”) certifies in connection with Schedule of Property No. 01, dated as of December 21,
2023, which incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of that certain Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023 (such Schedule of Property and
incorporated terms and provisions are herein referred to as the “Lease™), each by and between
Bank of America, National Association and Lessee, as follows:

1. The obligations evidenced by the Lease are not “private activity bonds” as defined in
Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code ”);

2. The Lessee hereby designates the principal components of the Rental Payments
payable under the Lease as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
of the Code;

3. The reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than private
activity bonds, treating qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as not being private activity bonds) which will
be issued by the Lessee (and all entities treated as one issuer with the Lessee, and all subordinate
entities whose obligations are treated as issued by the Lessee) during the current calendar year will
not exceed $10,000,000; and

4. Not more than $10,000,000 of obligations issued by the Lessee during the current
calendar year has been designated for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

DATE: December 21, 2023
LESSEE:

North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name: Timothy V. Henry
Title: Fire Chief



ExHisiT H
FORM OF NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASSIGNMENT

Dated

BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ( “Assignor”’) hereby gives notice that, as of

, 20__, it has assigned and sold to (“Assignee”) all of
Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and under Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December
21, 2023 (including the Payment Schedule attached thereto, the “Equipment Schedule”), which
incorporates by reference the terms and provisions of that certain Master Equipment
Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Agreement”), each by and
between Assignor and North Central Fire Protection District (“Lessee”), together with all exhibits,
schedules, riders, addenda and attachments related thereto, and all certifications and other
documents delivered in connection therewith, the Rental Payments and other amounts due under
the Lease (as such term is hereinafter defined), all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in the
Equipment listed in the Equipment Schedule and all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and
under the Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Escrow
Agreement”) by and among Lessee, Assignor and Argent Institutional Trust Company, as Escrow
Agent, together with the Escrow Account related thereto (collectively, the “Assigned Property”).

For purposes of this Notice and Acknowledgment of Assignment (the
“Acknowledgment”), “Lease” means collectively the Equipment Schedule and the terms and
provisions of the Agreement incorporated therein by reference, together with all exhibits,
schedules, riders, addenda and attachments related thereto, and all certifications and other
documents delivered in connection therewith. The term “Lease” specifically excludes all other
Equipment Schedules entered into under the Agreement and Rental Payments other than with
respect to the Equipment Schedule. Each capitalized term used but not defined herein has the
meaning set forth in the Agreement.

1. Lessee hereby acknowledges the effect of the assignment of the Assigned Property
and absolutely and unconditionally agrees to deliver to Assignee all Rental Payments and other
amounts coming due under the Lease in accordance with the terms thereof on and after the date of
this Acknowledgment.

2. Lessee hereby agrees that: (i) Assignee shall have all the rights of Lessor under the
Lease and all related documents, including, but not limited to, the rights to issue or receive all
notices and reports, to give all consents or agreements to modifications thereto, to receive title to
the Equipment in accordance with the terms of the Lease, to declare a default and to exercise all
rights and remedies thereunder in connection with the occurrence of an Event of Non-appropriation
or an Event of Default; and (ii) [except as provided in Section 3.03 of the Agreement,] the
obligations of Lessee to make Rental Payments and to perform and observe the other covenants
and agreements contained in the Lease shall be absolute and unconditional in all events without
abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense.



3. Lessec agrees that, as of the date of this Notice and Acknowledgment of Assignment
(this “Acknowledgement”), the following information about the Lease is true, accurate and
complete:

Number of Rental Payments Remaining
Amount of Each Rental Payment

Total Amount of Rental Payments
Remaining

Frequency of Rental Payments

Next Rental Payment Due

Funds Remaining in Escrow Account $

A

4.  The Lease remains in full force and effect, has not been amended, no Event of Default
(or event which with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute a default)
has occurred thereunder and no Event of Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with
respect thereto.

5. Assignor hereby acknowledges the transfer restrictions imposed by Section 11.01 of
the Agreement and confirms that the assignment to Assignee has been made in accordance with
the provisions of that Section.

6. Any inquiries of Lessee related to the Lease and any requests for disbursements from
the Escrow Account, if applicable, and all Rental Payments and other amounts coming due
pursuant to the Lease on and after the date of this Acknowledgment should be remitted to Assignee
at the following address (or such other address as provided to Lessee in writing from time to time
by Assignee):




ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:

LESSEE: NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
[For EXHIBIT PURPOSES ONLY]

By:

Name:
Title:

ASSIGNOR: BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

[FOR EXHIBIT PURPOSES ONLY]

By:

Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT I

FORM OF ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT



ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT

This ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of
December 21, 2023, by and among Bank of America, National Association, a national banking
association (together with its successors and assigns, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”), North
Central Fire Protection District, a special district existing under the laws of the State of California
(hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”) and Argent Institutional Trust Company, a Florida trust
company (hereinafter referred to as “Escrow Agent”).

Reference is made to that certain Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023,
to Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023, between Lessor
and Lessee (hereinafter referred to as the “Lease™), covering the acquisition and lease of certain
Equipment described therein (the “Equipment”). It is a requirement of the Lease that the
Acquisition Amount in the amount of $2,853,500 be deposited into a segregated escrow account
under terms satisfactory to Lessor, for the purpose of fully funding the Lease, and providing a
mechanism for the application of such amounts to the purchase of and payment for the Equipment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Creation of Escrow Account.

(a) There is hereby created an escrow fund to be known as the “North Central
Fire Protection District Escrow Account” (the “Escrow Account”) to be held by the Escrow Agent
for the purposes stated herein, for the benefit of Lessor and Lessee, to be held, disbursed and
returned in accordance with the terms hereof.

(b) Lessee may, from time to time, provide written instructions for Escrow
Agent to use any available cash in the Escrow Account to purchase any money market fund or
liquid deposit investment vehicle that Escrow Agent from time to time makes available to the
parties hereto. Such written instructions shall be provided via delivery to Escrow Agent of a signed
and completed Escrow Account Investment Selection Form (such form available from Escrow
Agent upon request). All funds invested by Escrow Agent at the direction of Lessee in such short-
term investments (as more particularly described in Escrow Agent’s Escrow Account Investment
Selection Form) shall be deemed to be part of the Escrow Account and subject to all the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. If any cash is received for the Escrow Account after the cut-off time
for the designated short-term investment vehicle, the Escrow Agent shall hold such cash
uninvested until the next Business Day. In the absence of written instructions from Lessee (on
Escrow Agent’s Escrow Account Investment Selection Form) designating a short-term investment
of cash in the Escrow Account, cash in the Escrow Account shall remain uninvested and it shall
not be collateralized. Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to pay interest on cash in respect of
any period during which it remains uninvested. Lessee shall be solely responsible for ascertaining
that all proposed investments and reinvestments are Qualified Investments and that they comply
with federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances governing investment of such funds
and for providing appropriate notice to the Escrow Agent for the reinvestment of any maturing
investment. Accordingly, neither the Escrow Agent nor Lessor shall be responsible for any

4855-6991-3093.2



liability, cost, expense, loss or claim of any kind, directly or indirectly arising out of or related to
the investment or reinvestment of all or any portion of the moneys on deposit in the Escrow
Account, and Lessee agrees to and does hereby release the Escrow Agent and Lessor from any
such liability, cost, expenses, loss or claim. Interest on the Escrow Account shall become part of
the Escrow Account, and gains and losses on the investment of the moneys on deposit in the
Escrow Account shall be borne by the Lessee. The Escrow Agent shall have no discretion
whatsoever with respect to the management, disposition or investment of the Escrow Account.
The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for any market decline in the value of the Escrow
Account and has no obligation to notify Lessor and Lessee of any such decline or take any action
with respect to the Escrow Account, except upon specific written instructions stated herein. For
purposes of this Agreement, “Qualified Investments” means any investments which meet the
requirements of applicable laws of the State of California.

(©) Unless the Escrow Account is earlier terminated in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph (d) below, amounts in the Escrow Account shall be disbursed by the
Escrow Agent in payment of amounts described in Section 2 hereof upon receipt of written
instruction(s) from Lessor, as is more fully described in Section 2 hereof. If the amounts in the
Escrow Account are insufficient to pay such amounts, Lessee shall provide any balance of the
funds needed to complete the acquisition of the Equipment. Any moneys remaining in the Escrow
Account on or after the earlier of (i) the expiration of the Acquisition Period or (ii) the date on
which Lessee executes an Acceptance Certificate shall be applied as provided in Section 4 hereof.

(d) The Escrow Account shall be terminated at the earliest of (i) the final
distribution of amounts in the Escrow Account, (ii) the date on which Lessee executes a Final
Acceptance Certificate or (iii) written notice given by Lessor of the occurrence of an Event of
Default under the Lease or termination of the Lease due to an Event of Non-appropriation.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement shall not terminate nor shall the Escrow Account
be closed until all funds deposited hereunder have been disbursed.

(¢)  The Escrow Agent may act in reliance upon any writing or instrument or
signature which it, in good faith, believes to be genuine and may assume the validity and accuracy
of any statement or assertion contained in such a writing or instrument. The Escrow Agent shall
not be liable in any manner for the sufficiency or correctness as to form, manner of execution, or
validity of any instrument nor as to the identity, authority, or right of any person executing the
same; and its duties hereunder shall be limited to the receipt of such moneys, instruments or other
documents received by it as the Escrow Agent, and for the disposition of the same in accordance
herewith. Notwithstanding and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, concurrent with
the execution of this Agreement, Lessee and Lessor, respectively, shall deliver to the Escrow Agent
an authorized signers form in the form of Exhibit A-1 (Lessee) and Exhibit A-2 (Lessor) attached
hereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the Escrow Agent is authorized to comply with
and rely upon any notices, instructions or other communications believed by it to have been sent
or given by the parties or by a person or persons authorized by the parties. The Escrow Agent
specifically allows for receiving direction by written or electronic transmission from an authorized
representative with the following caveat, Lessee and Lessor agree to indemnify and hold harmless
the Escrow Agent against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities, judgments, costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Losses ) incurred or sustained by
the Escrow Agent as a result of or in connection with the Escrow Agent’s reliance upon and



compliance with instructions or directions given by written or electronic transmission given by
each, respectively, provided, however, that such Losses have not arisen from the gross negligence
or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent, it being understood that forbearance on the part of the
Escrow Agent to verify or confirm that the person giving the instructions or directions, is, in fact,
an authorized person shall not be deemed to constitute gross negligence or willful misconduct.

In the event conflicting instructions as to the disposition of all or any portion of the
Escrow Account are at any time given by Lessor and Lessee, the Escrow Agent shall abide by the
instructions or entitlement orders given by Lessor without consent of the Lessee.

® Unless the Escrow Agent is guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct
with regard to its duties hereunder, Lessee agrees to and does hereby release and indemnify the
Escrow Agent and hold it harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, losses, actions, suits or
proceedings at law or in equity, or any other expenses, fees or charges of any character or nature,
which it may incur or with which it may be threatened by reason of its acting as Escrow Agent
under this Agreement; and in connection therewith, does to the extent permitted by law, indemnify
the Escrow Agent against any and all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and the cost
of defending any action, suit or proceeding or resisting any claim.

(g) If Lessee and Lessor shall be in disagreement about the interpretation of the
Lease, or about the rights and obligations, or the propriety of any action contemplated by the
Escrow Agent hereunder, the Escrow Agent may, but shall not be required to, file an appropriate
civil action including an interpleader action to resolve the disagreement. The Escrow Agent shall
be reimbursed by Lessee for all costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connection with
such civil action, and shall be fully protected in suspending all or part of its activities under the
Lease until a final judgment in such action is received.

(h) The Escrow Agent may consult with counsel of its own choice and shall
have full and complete authorization and protection with the opinion of such counsel. The Escrow
Agent shall otherwise not be liable for any mistakes of fact or errors of judgment, or for any acts
or omissions of any kind unless caused by its willful misconduct.

1) Lessee shall reimburse the Escrow Agent for all reasonable costs and
expenses, including those of the Escrow Agent’s attorneys, agents and employees incurred for
non-routine administration of the Escrow Account and the performance of the Escrow Agent’s
powers and duties hereunder in connection with any Event of Default under the Lease, any
termination of the Lease due to an Event of Non-appropriation or in connection with any dispute
between Lessor and Lessee concerning the Escrow Account.

G The Escrow Agent or any successor may at any time resign by giving mailed
notice to Lessee and Lessor of its intention to resign and of the proposed date of resignation (the
“Effective Date ), which shall be a date not less than 60 days after such notice is delivered to an
express catrier, charges prepaid, unless an earlier resignation date and the appointment of a
successor shall have been approved by the Lessee and Lessor. After the Effective Date, the Escrow
Agent shall be under no further obligation except to hold the Escrow Account in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, pending receipt of written instructions from Lessor regarding further
disposition of the Escrow Account.



(k)  The Escrow Agent shall have no responsibilities, obligations or duties other
than those expressly set forth in this Agreement and no implied duties, responsibilities or
obligations shall be read into this Agreement.

2. Acquisition of Property.

(a) Acquisition Contracts. Lessee will arrange for, supervise and provide for,
or cause to be supervised and provided for, the acquisition of the Equipment, with moneys
available in the Escrow Account. Lessee represents the estimated costs of the Equipment are
within the funds estimated to be available therefor, and Lessor makes no warranty or representation
with respect thereto. Lessor shall have no liability under any of the acquisition or construction
contracts. Lessee shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals, if any, for the acquisition,
equipping and installation of the Equipment, and the operation and maintenance thereof. Escrow
Agent shall have no duty to monitor or enforce Lessee’s compliance with the foregoing covenant.

(b) Authorized Escrow Account Disbursements. It is agreed as between Lessee
and Lessor that disbursements from the Escrow Account shall be made for the purpose of paying
(including the reimbursement to Lessee for advances from its own funds to accomplish the
purposes hereinafier described) the cost of acquiring the Equipment.

© Requisition Procedure. No disbursement from the Escrow Account shall be
made unless and until Lessor has approved such requisition. Prior to disbursement from the
Escrow Account there shall be filed with the Escrow Agent a requisition for such payment in the
form of Disbursement Request attached hereto as Schedule 1, stating each amount to be paid and
the name of the person, firm or corporation to whom payment thereof is due. All disbursements
shall be made by wire transfer. The Escrow Agent is authorized to obtain and rely on confirmation
of such Disbursement Request and payment instructions by telephone call-back to the person or
persons designated for verifying such requests on Exhibit A-2 (such person verifying the request
shall be different than the person initiating the request). The Lessor and Lessee hereby confirm
that any call-back performed by Escrow Agent to verify a disbursement instruction pursuant to a
Disbursement Request submitted pursuant to this Section 2(c) before release, shall be made to
Lessor only and Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to call-back Lessee.

Each such Disbursement Request shall be signed by an authorized representative
of Lessee (an “Authorized Representative”) and by Lessor, and shall be subject to the following
conditions, which Escrow Agent shall conclusively presume have been satisfied at such time as a
requisition executed by Lessee and Lessor is delivered to it:

1. Delivery to Lessor of an executed Disbursement Request in the form
attached hereto as Schedule 1; and

2. Delivery to Lessor of copies of invoices (and proofs of payment of such
invoices, if Lessee seeks reimbursement) and bills of sale (if title to such
Equipment has passed to Lessee) therefor as required by Section 3.04 of the
Lease and any additional documentation reasonably requested by Lessor.



Lessee and Lessor agree that their execution of the form attached hereto as Schedule 1 and
delivery of the executed form to Escrow Agent confirms that all of the requirements and conditions
with respect to disbursements set forth in this Section 2 have been satisfied.

3. Deposit to Escrow Account. Upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in
Section 3.04 of the Lease, Lessor will cause the Acquisition Amount to be deposited in the Escrow
Account. Lessee agrees to pay any costs with respect to the Equipment in excess of amounts
available therefor in the Escrow Account.

4. Excessive Escrow Account. Upon receipt of written instructions from Lessor
including a representation that one of the following conditions has been satisfied (upon which
representation Escrow Agent shall conclusively rely), any funds remaining in the Escrow Account
on or after the earlier of (a) the expiration of the Acquisition Period or (b) the date on which Lessee
executes an Acceptance Certificate, or upon a termination of the Escrow Account as otherwise
provided herein, shall be distributed by the Escrow Agent to the Lessor in order for the Lessor to
apply such funds to amounts owed by Lessee under the Lease in accordance with Section 4.07 of
the Lease.

5. Security Interest. The Escrow Agent and Lessee acknowledge and agree that the
Escrow Account and all proceeds thereof are being held by Escrow Agent for disbursement or
return as set forth herein. Lessee hereby grants to Lessor a first priority perfected security interest
in the Escrow Account, and all proceeds thereof, and all investments made with any amounts in
the Escrow Account. If the Escrow Account, or any part thereof, is converted to investments as
st forth in this Agreement, such investments shall be made in the name of Escrow Agent and the
Escrow Agent hereby agrees to hold such investments as bailee for Lessor so that Lessor is deemed
to have possession of such investments for the purpose of perfecting its security interest.

6. Control of Escrow Account. In order to perfect Lessor’s security interest by means
of control in (i) the Escrow Account established hereunder, (ii) all securities entitlements,
investment property and other financial assets now or hereafter credited to the Escrow Account,
(iif) all of Lessee’s rights in respect of the Escrow Account, such securities entitlements,
investment property and other financial assets, and (iv) all products, proceeds and revenues of and
from any of the foregoing personal property (collectively, the “Collateral”), Lessor, Lessee and
Escrow Agent further agree as follows:

(a) All terms used in this Section 6 which are defined in the Commercial Code
of the State of California (“Commercial Code”) but are not otherwise defined herein shall have
the meanings assigned to such terms in the Commercial Code, as in effect on the date of this
Agreement.

(b)  Escrow Agent will comply with all entitlement orders originated by Lessor
with respect to the Collateral, or any portion of the Collateral, without further consent by Lessee.

() Provided that account investments shall be held in the name of the Escrow
Agent, Escrow Agent hereby represents and warrants (i) that the records of Escrow Agent show
that Lessee is the sole owner of the Collateral, (ii) that Escrow Agent has not been served with any
notice of levy or received any notice of any security interest in or other claim to the Collateral, or



any portion of the Collateral, other than Lessor’s claim pursuant to this Agreement, and (iii) that
Escrow Agent is not presently obligated to accept any entitlement order from any person with
respect to the Collateral, except for entitlement orders that Escrow Agent is obligated to accept
from Lessor under this Agreement and entitlement orders that Escrow Agent, subject to the
provisions of paragraph (e) below, is obligated to accept from Lessee.

(d) Without the prior written consent of Lessor, Escrow Agent will not enter
into any agreement by which Escrow Agent agrees to comply with any entitlement order of any
person other than Lessor or, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) below, Lessee, with respect
to any portion or all of the Collateral. Escrow Agent shall promptly notify Lessor if any person
requests Escrow Agent to enter into any such agreement or otherwise asserts or seeks to assert a
lien, encumbrance or adverse claim against any portion or all of the Collateral.

(e) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph (e¢) and subject to
Section 1(b) hereof, Lessee may effect sales, trades, transfers and exchanges of Collateral within
the Escrow Account, but will not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, withdraw any
Collateral from the Escrow Account. Escrow Agent acknowledges that Lessor reserves the right,
by delivery of written notice to Escrow Agent, to prohibit Lessee from effecting any withdrawals
(including withdrawals of ordinary cash dividends and interest income), sales, trades, transfers or
exchanges of any Collateral held in the Escrow Account. Further, Escrow Agent hereby agrees to
comply with any and all written instructions delivered by Lessor to Escrow Agent (once it has had
a reasonable opportunity to comply therewith) and has no obligation to, and will not, investigate
the reason for any action taken by Lessor, the amount of any obligations of Lessee to Lessor, the
validity of any of Lessor’s claims against or agreements with Lessee, the existence of any defaults
under such agreements, or any other matter.

® Lessee hereby irrevocably authorizes Escrow Agent to comply with all
instructions and entitlement orders delivered by Lessor to Escrow Agent.

(2) Escrow Agent will not attempt to assert control and does not claim and will
not accept any security or other interest in, any part of the Collateral, and Escrow Agent will not
exercise, enforce or attempt to enforce any right of setoff against the Collateral, or otherwise
charge or deduct from the Collateral any amount whatsoever.

(h) Escrow Agent and Lessee hereby agree that any property held in the Escrow
Account shall be treated as a financial asset under such section of the Commercial Code as
corresponds with Section 8-102 of the Uniform Commercial Code, notwithstanding any contrary
provision of any other agreement to which Escrow Agent may be a party.

(1) Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and instructed, and hereby agrees, to
send to Lessor at its address set forth in Section 8 below, concurrently with the sending thereof to
Lessee, duplicate copies of any and all monthly Escrow Account statements or reports issued or
sent to Lessee with respect to the Escrow Account.



7. Information Required Under USA PATRIOT ACT. The parties acknowledge that
in order to help the United States government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering
activities, pursuant to Federal regulations that became effective on October 1, 2003 (Section 326
of the USA PATRIOT Act) all financial institutions are required to obtain, verify, record and
update information that identifies each person establishing a relationship or opening an account.
The parties to this Agreement agree that they will provide to the Escrow Agent such information
as it may request, from time to time, in order for the Escrow Agent to satisfy the requirements of
the USA PATRIOT Act, including but not limited to the name, address, tax identification number
and other information that will allow it to identify the individual or entity who is establishing the
relationship or opening the account and may also ask for formation documents such as articles of
incorporation or other identifying documents to be provided.

8. Miscellaneous. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Lease. This Agreement may not be amended except in writing
signed by all parties hereto. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, cach
of which shall be deemed to be an original instrument and each shall have the force and effect of
an original and all of which together constitute, and shall be deemed to constitute, one and the
same instrument. Notices hereunder shall be made in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given when personally delivered or when deposited in the mail, first class postage prepaid, or
delivered to an express carrier, charges prepaid, or sent by facsimile with electronic confirmation,
addressed to each party at its address below.

Notices and other communications hereunder may be delivered or furnished by electronic
mail provided that any formal notice be attached to an email message in PDF format and provided
further that any notice or other communication sent to an e-mail address shall be deemed received
upon and only upon the sender’s receipt of affirmative acknowledgement or receipt from the
intended recipient. For purposes hereof no acknowledgement of receipt generated on an automated
basis shall be deemed sufficient for any purpose hereunder or admissible as evidence of receipt.
It is understood and agreed that for no purpose shall notice to Argent Institutional Trust
Company in its capacity hereunder constitute notice to Bank of America, National
Association in its capacity hereunder.

If to Lessor:
Bank of America, National Association
11333 McCormick Road
Hunt Valley 1T
M/C MD5-032-07-05
Hunt Valley, MD 21031
Attn: Contract Administration
Fax: (443) 541-3057



If to Lessee: North Central Fire Protection District
15850 W Kearney Blvd.
Kerman, CA 93630
Attention: Fire Chief
Phone No.: (559) 878-4550

If to Escrow Agent: Argent Institutional Trust Company
5901 Peachtree Dunwoody Road, Suite C495
Atlanta, GA 30328
Attention: Thomas Popovics
Telephone: 678-221-5946
E-Mail: escrowrequests@argentfinancial.com

9. Lessce and Lessor understand and agree that they are required to provide the
Escrow Agent with a properly completed and signed Tax Certification (as defined below) and that
the Escrow Agent may not perform its duties hereunder without having been provided with such
Tax Certification. As used herein “Tax Certification” shall mean an IRS form W-9 or W-8 as
described above. The Escrow Agent will comply with any U.S. tax withholding or backup
withholding and reporting requirements that are required by law. With respect to earnings
allocable to a foreign person, the Escrow Agent will withhold U.S. tax as required by law and
report such earnings and taxes withheld, if any, for the benefit of such foreign person on IRS Form
1042-8 (or any other required form), unless such earnings and withheld taxes are exempt from
reporting under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1461-11(2)(ii) or under other applicable law. With
respect to earnings allocable to a United States person, the Escrow Agent will report such income,
if required, on IRS Form 1099 or any other form required by law. The IRS Forms 1099 and/or
1042-§ shall show the Escrow Agent as payor and [Lessee] as payee. Escrow Agent shall
recognize [Lessee] as the designated party for regulatory reporting purposes.

Lessee and Lessor agree that they are not relieved of their respective obligations, if any, to
prepare and file information reports under Code Section 6041, and the Treasury regulations
thereunder, with respect to amounts of imputed interest income, as determined pursuant to Code
Sections 483 or 1272. The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for determining or reporting such
imputed interest.

10.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of California and the parties hereto consent to jurisdiction in the State of California and
venue in any state or federal court located in the State of California.

11.  Any bank or corporation into which the Escrow Agent may be merged or with
which it may be consolidated, or any bank or corporation to whom the Escrow Agent may transfer
a substantial amount of its escrow business, shall be the successor to the Escrow Agent without
the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties, anything
herein to the contrary notwithstanding. Any bank or corporation into which the Lessor may be
merged or with which it may be consolidated, or any bank or corporation to whom the Lessor may
transfer a substantial amount of its business, shall be the successor to the Lessor without the
execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties, anything herein
to the contrary notwithstanding.



12. This Agreement may be amended, modified, and/or supplemented only by an
instrument in writing executed by all parties hereto.

13. No party hereto shall assign its rights hereunder until its assignee has submitted to
the Escrow Agent (i) Patriot Act disclosure materials and the Escrow Agent has determined that
on the basis of such materials it may accept such assignee as a customer and (ii) assignee has
delivered an IRS Form W-8 or W-9, as appropriate, to the Escrow Agent which the Escrow Agent
has determined to have been properly signed and completed.

14. Escrow Agent will treat information related to this Agreement as confidential but,
unless prohibited by law, Lessee and Lessor authorize the transfer or disclosure of any information
relating to this Agreement to and between the subsidiaries, officers, affiliates and other
representatives and advisors of Escrow Agent and third parties selected by any of them, wherever
situated, for confidential use in the ordinary course of business, and further acknowledge that
Escrow Agent and any such subsidiary, officer, affiliate or third party may transfer or disclose
any such information as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process.

Lessor will treat information related to this Agreement as confidential but, unless
prohibited by law, Escrow Agent and Lessee authorize the transfer or disclosure of any information
relating to this Agreement to and between the subsidiaries, officers, affiliates, other representatives
and advisors of Lessor and debt and equity sources and third parties selected by any of them, and
to their prospective assignees wherever situated, for confidential use in the ordinary course of
business, and further acknowledge that Lessor and any such subsidiary, officer, affiliate, debt and
equity source or third party or prospective assignee may transfer or disclose any such information
as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process.

Lessee will treat the terms of this Agreement as confidential except on a “need to know”
basis to persons within or outside Lessee’s organization (including affiliates of such party), such
as attorneys, accountants, bankers, financial advisors, auditors and other consultants of such party
and its affiliates, except as required by any law, court, regulator or legal process and except
pursuant to the express prior written consent of the other parties, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page follows]



IN WITNESs WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Escrow and Account Control
Agreement as of the date first above written.

BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
as Lessor as Lessee

By: By:

Name: Name: Timothy V. Henry

Title: Title: Fire Chief

ARGENT INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANY ATTEST:

as Escrow Agent

By:
By: Name: Amanda Souza
Name: Title: Secretary

Title:

[Signature page to Escrow Agreement — Equipment Schedule No. 01]



SCHEDULE 1

to the Escrow and Account Control Agreement

FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST

Re:  Equipment Schedule No. 01, dated December 21, 2023, to Master
Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of December 21, 2023,
by and between Bank of America, National Association, as Lessor, and the
North Central Fire Protection District, as Lessee (the “Lease”) (Capitalized
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them

in the Lease.)

In accordance with the terms of the Escrow and Account Control Agreement, dated as of
December 21, 2023 (the “Escrow and Account Control Agreement”) by and among Bank of
America, National Association (“Lessor "), the North Central Fire Protection District (“Lessee ”)
and Argent Institutional Trust Company, as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), the undersigned
hereby requests the Escrow Agent pay the following persons the following amounts from the
Escrow Account created under the Escrow and Account Control Agreement for the following

purposes:

Disbursement Amounts:

Payee’s Name and Address

Inveice Number Dollar Amount

Purpose

<Payee’s Name>

<Payee Address 1>
<Payee Address 2>
<Payee Address 3>

<Payee Bank Name*>

<Payee Bank ABA/Routing*>
<Payee Bank Account No*>
<Payee Account Name*>

<*Payee Address and Payee Bank
information is required.>

<invoice list OR “see [< invoice amount>
rattached” with a
spreadsheet>

<general description of
equipment; ex “police cruiser”>

<Payee’s Name>

<Payee Address 1>
<Payee Address 2>
<Payee Address 3>

<Payee Bank Name*>

<Payee Bank ABA/Routing*>
<Payee Bank Account No*>
<Payee Account Name*>

<*Payee Address and Payee Bank
information is required.>

<invoice list OR “see [<invoice amount>
attached” with a
spreadsheet>

<general description of
equipment; ex “police cruiser>

Schedule 1-1




Lessee hereby represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of Lessor on the date hereof as
follows:

(i) (2) Each obligation specified in the table herein titled as “Disbursement Amounts” has been
incurred by Lessee in the stated amount, (b) the same is a proper charge against the Escrow Account for
costs relating to the Equipment identified in the Lease, and (c) has not been paid (or has been paid by Lessee
and Lessee requests reimbursement thereof).

(i) Each item of Equipment relating to an obligation specified in the table herein titled as
“Disbursement Amounts™ has been delivered, installed and accepted by Lessee. Attached hereto is a copy
of the invoice with respect to such obligation.

(iii)  The undersigned, as Authorized Representative, has no notice of any vendor’s, mechanic’s
or other liens or rights to liens, chattel mortgages, conditional sales contracts or security interest which
should be satisfied or discharged before such payment is made.

(iv) This requisition contains no item representing payment on account, or any retained
percentages which Lessee is, at the date hereof, entitled to retain (except to the extent such amounts
represent a reimbursement to Lessee).

v) The Equipment is insured in accordance with the Lease.

(vi)  No Event of Default, and no event which with notice or lapse of time, or both, would
become an Event of Default, under the Lease has occurred and is continuing at the date hereof. No Event
of Non-appropriation has occurred or is threatened with respect to the Lease.

(vi))  The disbursement shall occur during the Acquisition Period.

(viii)  The representations, warranties and covenants of Lessee set forth in the Lease are true and
correct as of the date hereof.

(ix)  No Material Adverse Change has occurred since the date of the execution and delivery of
the Lease.

(%) The information in this Disbursement Request regarding each Payee, including
their respective name, address and wiring instructions, (collectively, the “Payee Information ") is
true and correct, such Payee Information has been verified and confirmed by Lessee and the Lessor
can rely on Lessee’s verification and confirmation of the accuracy of such Payee Information.
Lessee hereby acknowledges and agrees that any call-back performed by Lessor to verify the
disbursement instructions pursuant to this Disbursement Request shall be made to Lessee only and
Lessor shall have no obligation to call-back any Payee listed above.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank)

Schedule 1-2



Dated: North Central Fire Protection District

By:

Name:

Title:

Disbursement of funds from the Escrow
Account in accordance with the foregoing
Disbursement Request hereby is authorized

BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
as Lessor under the Lease

By:
Name;
Title:

Schedule 1-3



(AN "EXHIBIT A-1" MUST BE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED AT TIME OF EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT]
EXHIBIT A-1

INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary of the North Central Fire
Protection District (“Lessee”) certifies as follows:

A. The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting officials of
Lessee (the “Officials”) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names below and the
facsimile signatures below are true and correct as of the date hereof; and

B. The Officials are duly authorized, on behalf of Lessee, to negotiate, execute and
deliver Schedule of Property No. 01, dated December 21, 2023 (the “Schedule”), to that certain
Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023 (the “Agreement )
and separate Schedules relating thereto from time to time as provided in the Agreement
(collectively, the “Schedules”), each by and between Lessee and Bank of America, National
Association (“Lessor”), the Escrow and Account Control Agreement dated as of December 21,
2023, by and among Lessor, Lessee and Argent Institutional Trust Company as Escrow Agent, all
documents related thereto and delivered in connection therewith, and any future modification(s)
or amendments thereof (collectively, the “Operative Agreements ), and the Operative Agreements
are binding and authorized agreements of Lessee, enforceable in all respects in accordance with
their respective terms.

Name of Official Title Signature
Timothy V. Henry Fire Chief
Dated: December 21, 2023 By:

Name: Amanda Souza
Title: Secretary

(The signer of this Certificate cannot be listed above as authorized to execute the Operative Agreements.)

A-1-1



[AN “EXHIBIT A-2" MUST BE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED AT TIME OF EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT]

EXHIBIT A-2

TO BE PROVIDED

A-2-1



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Foglio
Michael Golden ¢ Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: December 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Update of Authorized Signers

With the recent staffing changes and appointment of Marci Reyes as General Manager,
updated signatures will be necessary at various agencies that the District conducts
business with.

Staff will be requesting updated signature authorizations for the following:

e County of Fresno for processing special assessments

e County of Fresno for processing of checks drawn on District funds maintained in
the County Treasury on the Special District/Organization Data Sheet

e West America Bank to add Marci Reyes, Michael Golden and Michael Foglio as
authorized signers and to delete Shannon Schroth as an authorized signer.

Recommended Action: Information Only

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



